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PART I
ltem 1. Business

Avnet, Inc., incorporated in New York in 1955, ttiger with its consolidated subsidiaries (the “Comgaor “Avnet”), is one o
the world's largest industrial distributors, based on sabéslectronic components, enterprise computer dachge products ai
embedded subsystems. Avnet creates a vital litkentechnology supply chain that connects more 8@hof the worlds leadiny
electronic component and computer product manufaxgand software developers with a global custdrase of more than 100,(
original equipment manufacturers (“OEMs"), elecimomanufacturing services (“EMSroviders, original design manufactui
(“ODMSs"), and value-added resellers (“VARsAvnet distributes electronic components, computedpcts and software as recei
from its suppliers or with assembly or other vahdded by Avnet. Additionally, Avnet provides engineg design, materie
management and logistics services, system integratid configuration, and supply chain servicesd¢ha be customized to meet
requirements of both customers and suppliers.

Organizational Structure

Avnet has two primary operating groups — Electreridarketing (“EM”) and Technology Solutions (“TS'Both operatin
groups have operations in each of the three manamic regions of the world: the Americas; Eurdpe, Middle East and Afric
(“"EMEA"); and Asia/Pacific, consisting of Asia, Atralia and New Zealand (“Asia” or “Asia/PacBach operating group has its ¢
management team led by a group president and ieslughional presidents and senior executives witieénoperating group wl
manage the various functions within the businedsSash operating group also has distinct finan@gbrting that is evaluated at
corporate level on which operating decisions aratesgic planning for the Company as a whole areenB@isions exist within ear
operating group that serve primarily as sales aadckating units to further streamline the sales aradtketing efforts within eas
operating group and enhance each operating gsaalglity to work with its customers and suppliegenerally along more speci
product lines or geographies. However, each dimisgdies heavily on the support services providgdhe operating group as well
centralized support at the corporate level.

Avnet's operating groups and their sales are dsvist

Fiscal 201:  Percentage

Region Sales of Sales
(Millions)
EM Americas $ 5,113.¢ 19.2%
EM EMEA 4,816.: 18.1
EM Asia 5,136.: 19.4
Total EM 15,066.: 56.¢
TS Americas 6,404. 24.1
TS EMEA 3,577.: 13.F
TS Asia 1,486. 5.6
Total TS 11,468.: 43.2
Total Avnet $ 26,534. 100.(%

A description of each operating group and its besses is presented below. Further financial inftionaby operating grot
and geography is provided in Note 16 to the codatdid financial statements appearing in Item lthisfReport.

Electronics Marketing

EM markets and sells semiconductors and intercdanpassive and electromechanical devices (“IP&i) embedded produ
for more than 300 of the worlsl'leading electronic component manufacturers. ENketa and sells its products and services
diverse customer base serving many eradkets including automotive, communications, cotepthardware and periphel
industrial and manufacturing, medical equipmentjtany and aerospace. EM also offers an array dieradded services that h
customers evaluate, designand procure electronic components throughoutitbeycle of their technology products and systt
By working with EM from the design phase througlwngroduct introduction and throughout the prodifeiclcle, customers al
suppliers can accelerate their time to market aatize cost efficiencies in both the design andufeeturing process.
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EM Design Chain Services

EM Design Chain Services offers engineers a hogedfinical design solutions in support of the salexess of comple
products and technologies. With access to a sditdesign tools and engineering services from anytpim the design cycl
customers can get product specifications along eualuation kits and reference designs that enalidleoad range of applicatic
from concept through detailed design including ngseduct introduction. EM also offers engineeringd aechnical resourc
deployed globally to support product design, bilhmaterials development, design services and teaheiducation and training.
utilizing EM’s Design Chain Services, customers ogtimize their component selection and acceldhadi time to market.

EM Supply Chain Services

EM Supply Chain Services provides endettd solutions focused on OEMs, EMS providers arattelnic compone
manufacturers, enabling them to optimize supplyirshan a local, regional or global basis. By comigninternal competencies
global warehousing and logistics, finance, inforiorattechnology, and asset management with its glfdadprint and extensiy
partner relationships, EM’Supply Chain Services develops a deeper levehghgement with its customers. These custome!
continuously manage their supply chains to meetddmands of a competitive environment globally aitha commensure
investment in physical assets. With proprietarynpiag tools and a variety of inventory managemetateons, EM can provic
unique solutions that meet a customer’s judifite requirements in a variety of scenarios inaigdean manufacturing, demand fl
and outsourcing.

Embedded Solutions

In the Americas, Avnet Electronics Marketing praegdembedded computing solutions including techrdeaign, integratic
and assembly to developers of application-speciimputing solutions in the nd?€ market. Customers include OEMs targeting
medical, telecommunications, industrial and digiditing markets. The Embedded Solutions groupessprts the combination of
EM Americas existing embedded business, the aadjied! Microproducts Inc. embedded business andi®émericas embedd
business that was transferred to EM Americas irfiteequarter of fiscal 2011.

EM Sales and Marketing Divisions

Each of EMS regions has sales and marketing divisions thagrgdly focus on a specific customer segment, @agi produc
lines or a specific geography. The divisions offae of the industry’s broadest line cards and coirg onestop shopping with ¢
emphasis on responsiveness, engineering suppetimendelivery and quality. Certain specialty seegare made available to
individual divisions through common support servitgts. Customers are further supported by a stpaised eeommerce platforn
Avnet Express, that includes a host of powerfulcfions such as parametric parts searches, billaterial optimization and pa
cross-referencing. The site enables endftd-online service from part and inventory searchase checking and ordering to onl
payment. EM Americas addresses the needs of iteroess and suppliers through focused channelsriaceesmall- to medium-
sized customers, global customers, defense andpere customers and contract manufacturers. In EMiaAsions, which at
organized by semiconductors, IP&E products and lguplpain services, address customers on both aEpaopean and regior
basis. EM EMEA does business in over 40 Europeantcies, and over 10 countries in the Middle East Africa. EM Asia goes-
market with sales and marketing divisions withini@h South Asia, Taiwan and Japan. All regions nitiM provide the Desi¢
Chain Services and Supply Chain Services descabete.

Technology Solutions

As a global IT solutions distributor, TS collab@stwith its customers and suppliers to create afidedt services, software a
hardware solutions that address the business rdeeisduser customers locally and around the world. TSides on the glok
valueadded distribution of enterprise computing senard systems, software, storage, services and cansplations from th
world’s foremost technology manufacturers, marketing s@ting them to and through the VAR channel. TS asrves tr
worldwide OEM market for computing technology, systintegrators and ndR€ OEMs that require embedded systems
solutions including engineering, product prototypimtegration and other valselded services. The operating group has sale
marketing divisions dedicated to these customemseags as well as independent software vendors.
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TS enables VARs to grow faster by helping them wvstded their customersinique business requirements so that the)
tailor a complete IT solution spanning supplieesnand delivering a higher return on investmentmek\SolutionsPatR® offers ¢
proven methodology comprising business analysis @adning, training and enablement, and ongoingpsttpto help partne
quickly and cost effectively attain solutigelling expertise they can use to develop and gegoarray of data center solutions
high-growth market segments. Avnet SolutionsPatitludes practices dedicated to vertical marketh @s healthcare, governmi
energy, banking and retail, as well as technologgctres focused on virtualization, storage, nekingy, security, unifie
communications, mobility and cloud computing. TSoalprovides logistics, sales, marketing, finana@al technical service
including engineering support, systems integrasiod configurations.

In EMEA and Asia/Pacific, TS provides embedded cotimg solutions including technical design, inteégna and assembly
developers of application-specific computing salng in the norRC market. Developers include OEMs targeting thelioad
telecommunications, industrial and digital editimgarkets. In these regions, TS also provides thestahard disk drive
microprocessor, motherboard and DRAM module teabgies to manufacturers of general-purpose compatetsystem builders.

Foreign Operations

As noted in the operating group discussions, Avrast significant operations in all three major ecoitoregions of the worls
the Americas, EMEA and Asia/Pacific. The percentaig@vnet’s consolidated sales by region is preseéim the following table:

Percentage of Sales for Fiscal Ye:

Region 2011 2010 2009
Americas 43% 44% 47%
EMEA 32 31 32
Asia/Pac 25 25 21
10C% 10C% 10C%

Avnet'’s foreign operations are subject to a varigtyisks. These risks are discussed further uRtigk Factordan Iltem 1A an
underQuantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About MetrRiskin Item 7A of this Report. Additionally, the spacitranslatiol
impacts of foreign currency fluctuations, most hbgathe Euro, on the Comparsyconsolidated financial statements are fu
discussed itManagement’s Discussion and Analysis of Financiahdition and Results of Operatiomsitem 7 of this Report.

Acquisitions

Avnet has historically pursued a strategic acqoisiprogram to grow its geographic and market cagerin world markets f
electronic components and computer products andtisos. This program was a significant factor inn&v becoming one of t
largest industrial distributors of such productsl aervices worldwide. Avnet expects to continugtosue strategic acquisitions
part of its overall growth strategy, with its fodlikely directed primarily at smaller targets in rkats where the Company is seel
to expand its market presence, increase its sodls@pe and/or increase its product or servicaioffs.

During fiscal 2011, the Company completed severuia@tepns, the most significant of which was thegaisition of Bel
Microproducts Inc. (“Bell”), a valuadded distributor of storage and server products swlutions and computer compont
products, providing integration and support sewite OEMs, VARSs, system builders and end userkent.S., Canada, EMEA a
Latin America. Bell operated both a distributiordasingle tier reseller business and generated salagproximately $3.0 billion
calendar 2009, of which 42%, 41% and 17% was géseeran North America, EMEA and Latin America, restieely. The
consideration for the transaction totaled $255iarilfor the equity of Bell which consisted of $7.00cash for each share of E
common stock outstanding, cash payment for Belitg@wards, and cash payments required under rgigell change of contr
agreements, plus the assumption of $323 millioBeif net debt. Of the debt acquired, Avnet repgdraximately $210 million ¢
debt (including associated fees) immediately aftesing. As of the end of fiscal 2011, the Comphag completed the integratior
Bell into both the EM and TS operating groups arpeets the full impact of the cost synergies tadmdized in the first quarter
fiscal 2012.
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See Item 7Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financiab@dition and Results of Operationis Part Il of this Forr
10-K for additional information on acquisitions cpleted during fiscal 2011, 2010 and 2009.

Major Products

One of Avnets competitive strengths is the breadth and qualitthe suppliers whose products it distributes. IBkdduct:
accounted for approximately 12%, 15% and 15% of @wmpanys consolidated sales during fiscal 2011, 2010 a@@9
respectively, and was the only supplier from wisakes of its products exceeded 10% of consolidsdésb. Listed in the table bel
are the major product categories and the Compappsoximate sales of each during the past threalfi@ars:

Years Ended

July 2, July 3, June 27,
2011 2010 2009
(Millions)
Semiconductor $ 14,149. $ 10,098 $ 8,324.(
Computer product 10,284.1 7,302.¢ 6,393.¢
Connectors 1,041.- 841.¢ 735.2
Passives, electromechanical and o 1,059.: 917.: 777.%

$ 26,534 $ 19,160.. $ 16,229.¢

Competition & Markets

Avnet is one of the world’ largest industrial distributors, based on saléglectronic components and computer product:
services. The Company has more than 300 locati@nklwide as well as a limited number of instancésere Avnetewned produc
is stored in customer facilities. Some of thesations contain sales, warehousing and administrdtinctions for multiple sales a
marketing units.

The electronic components and computer productssinigs continue to be extremely competitive anel subject to rap
technological advances. The Companyiajor competitors include Arrow Electronics, |nEuture Electronics and World Pe
Group. There are also certain smaller, specialzempetitors who generally focus on narrower markpteducts or particul
sectors. As a result of these factors, Avnet merstain competitive in its pricing of goods and sessi

Another key competitive factor in the electroniarguonent and computer product distribution industryhe need to carry
sufficient amount of inventory to meet customesgid delivery requirements. However, to minimiteedxposure related to valuat
of inventory on hand, the majority of the Compangreducts are purchased pursuant to exclusive distributor agreements. Tt
agreements typically provide certain protectionsgimduct obsolescence and price erosion and arergiéy cancelable upon 30
180 days'notice. In most cases, these agreements providavfentory return privileges upon cancellationabidition, the Compat
enhances its competitive position by offering aietstr of valueadded services which entail the performance ofisesvand/c
processes tailored to individual customer spedificd and business needs such as point of usenigipieent, testing, assemt
supply chain management and materials management.

Another competitive advantage is the size of thgpBer base. Because of the number of Awstippliers, many customers
simplify their procurement process and make athefr required purchases from Avnet, rather thamipasing from several differe
vendors.

Seasonality
Historically, Avnets business has not been materially impacted byosa#ty, with the exception of a relatively minonpac

on consolidated results from the growth in revenmethe Technology Solutions business during theddeber quarter primari
driven by the fiscal year end of a key supplier.
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Number of Employees
At July 2, 2011, Avnet had approximately 17,600 &yees.
Available Information

The Company files its annual report on Form 10-Karterly reports on Form 10-Q, current reports amnt 8K, proxy
statements and other documents with the U.S. Siemuend Exchange Commission (“SEQifder the Securities Exchange Ac
1934. A copy of any document the Company files wtita SEC is available for review at the SEQ@ublic reference room, 10(
Street, N.E., Washington, D.C. 20549. The publiy mitain information on the public reference rooynchalling the SEC at 1-800-
SEC-0330. The Company’s SEC filings are also alkgl#o the public on the SEC’s website at http:Awsec.govand through tr
New York Stock Exchange‘NYSE”), 20 Broad Street, New York, New York 1000&, which the Compang’common stock
listed.

A copy of any of the Company’filings with the SEC, or any of the agreementstber documents that constitute exhibit
those filings, can be obtained by request diretidtie Company at the following address and telaphmumber:

Avnet, Inc.
2211 South 41 Street
Phoenix, Arizona 85034
(480) 643-2000
Attention: Corporate Secretary

The Company also makes these filings available, dfecharge, through its website (see “Avnet Webdielow).
Avnet Website

In addition to the information about Avnet contalnia this Report, extensive information about tr@rpany can be found
www.avnet.com including information about its management teproducts and services and corporate governancéqasic

The corporate governance information on the websitkides the Company’Corporate Governance Guidelines, the Coi
Conduct and the charters for each of the committéés/net’s Board of Directors. In addition, amendments & @ode of Conduc
committee charters and waivers granted to direcatsexecutive officers under the Code of Condfieny, will be posted in th
area of the website. These documents can be adcassevw.avnet.conunder the “Investor Relations — Corporate Goverganc
caption. Printed versions of the Corporate GoveraaBuidelines, Code of Conduct and charters ofBitbard committees can
obtained, free of charge, by writing to the Companthe address listed above in “Available Inforiowat’

In addition, the Company’s Annual Report on FormK,®uarterly Reports on Form 10-Q, Current Reports=orm 8K anc
amendments to those reports, if any, filed or &hied pursuant to Section 13(a) or 15(d) of Seesriixchange Act of 1934, as v
as Section 16 filings made by any of the Compsaumxecutive officers or directors with respect t;mét common stock, are availa
on the Company'’s website ( www.avnet.cander the “Investor Relations — SEC Filingsiption) as soon as reasonably practic
after the report is electronically filed with, arrhished to, the Securities and Exchange Commission

These details about Avnet's website and its coraembnly for information. The contents of the Camyps website are not, n
shall they be deemed to be, incorporated by reéerenthis Report.

ltem 1A. Risk Factors
Forward-Looking Statements And Risk Factors
This Report contains forwaldoking statements with respect to the financialdition, results of operations and busines

Avnet. These statements are generally identifiedwyds like “believes,” “expects,” “anticipates,’stiould,” “will,” “may,”
“estimates” or similar expressions. Forward-lookstgtements are subject to numerous assumptisks,and uncertainties.
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Except as required by law, Avnet does not undertake obligation to update any forwalabking statements, whether a:
result of new information, future events or othessviFactors that may cause actual results to difégerially from those contained
the forward-looking statements include the follogrin

Economic weakness and uncertainty could adversdfge our revenues and gross margins.

The Companys revenues and gross profit margins depend signifig on worldwide economic conditions, the deméordits
products and services and the financial conditibitsocustomers. Economic weakness and uncerthiay in the past resulted, ¢
may result in the future, in decreased revenuesgaads profit margins. Economic weakness and uaicgyt also make it mor
difficult for the Company to forecast with a grelaal of confidence the overall supply and demanaufhout the IT supply chain.

While the Companyg operating results over the past four quartersdvsuggest that the business has experienced dicagh
recovery, there can be no assurance that the ngctivelate will continue at the current pace oaljtnor can there be any assura
that such economic volatility experienced recentily not reoccur or continue.

The electronics component and computer industrie® &ighly competitive and if the Company fails t@mpete effectively, it
revenues, gross profit margins and prospects maglide.

The market for the Comparg/products and services is very competitive angestito rapid technological advances. Not ¢
does the Company compete with other global distoitsi it also competes for customers with regiatistributors and some of tl
Company’s own suppliers. The Companfailure to maintain and enhance its competitiosifipn could adversely affect its busin
and prospects. Furthermore, the Compargfforts to compete in the marketplace could calgterioration of gross profit margi
and, thus, overall profitability.

The size of the Compars/competitors vary across market sectors, as deefmirces the Company has allocated to the se
and geographic areas in which it does businesgefdre, some of the competitors may have greatamnfiial, personnel, capac
and other resources or a more extensive custonser than the Company has in one or more of its nhasetors and geograpt
areas.

An industry down-cycle in semiconductors could sificantly affect the Companys operating results as a large portion
revenues comes from sales of semiconductors, wigch highly cyclical industry.

The semiconductor industry historically has experésl periodic fluctuations in product supply andhdad, often associat:
with changes in technology and manufacturing capaand is generally considered to be highly cyli©uring each of the last thr
fiscal years, sales of semiconductors represented 50% of the Company’s consolidated sales, aedGbmpanys revenues
particularly those of EM, closely follow the strengr weakness of the semiconductor market. Fudorwenturns in the technolo¢
industry, particularly in the semiconductor sectmuld negatively affect the Compagmyoperating results and negatively impact
Company’s ability to maintain its current profithyi levels.

Failure to maintain its relationships with key sutiprs could adversely affect the Company’s sales.

One of the Companyg’competitive strengths is the breadth and quefithe suppliers whose products the Company digiih
However, sales of products and services from on¢hefCompanys suppliers, IBM, accounted for approximately 12%ottee
Companys consolidated sales in fiscal year 2011. Managemgrects IBM products and services to continuacount for roughl
a similar percentage of the Company’s consolidatdds in fiscal year 2012. The Compangbntracts with its suppliers, includi
those with IBM, vary in duration and are generafiyminable by either party at will upon notice. the extent IBM or other primau
suppliers significantly reduce their volume of mesis with the Company in the future, because ofralyst shortage, ¢
unwillingness to do business with Avnet or otheeyithe Compang' business and relationships with its customerddcbe
materially and adversely affected because its ousts depend on the Compasiglistribution of electronic components and comip
products from the industry’s leading suppliersatidition, to the extent that any of the Comparkey suppliers modify the terms
their contracts including, without limitation, therms regarding price protection, rights of retuehates or other terms that prot
the Company’s gross margins, it could materiallg aversely affect the Compasytesults of operations, financial condition
liquidity.
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Declines in the value of the Company’s inventory oanexpected order cancellations by the Companygustomers coul
materially and adversely affect its business, rasudf operations, financial condition and liquidity

The electronic components and computer productasiniés are subject to rapid technological chamgey and enhance
products and evolving industry standards, which @amtribute to a decline in value or obsolescerfdaventory. Regardless of ti
general economic environment, it is possible thmieg will decline due to a decrease in demanchanversupply of products and,
a result of the price declines, there may be gredgk& of declines in inventory value. Althoughid the policy of many of th
Companys suppliers to offer distributors like Avnet centgirotections from the loss in value of inventasych as price protectic
and limited rights of return), the Company cannetalssured that such policies will fully compendatehe loss in value, or that tl
vendors will choose to, or be able to, honor sugte@ments, some of which are not documented aedeftre, subject to tf
discretion of the vendor. In addition, the Comparsales are typically made pursuant to individwatpase orders, and the Comp.
generally does not have long-term supply arrangésmeith its customers. Generally, the Compangustomers may cancel ord
30 days prior to shipment with minimal penaltieheTCompany cannot be assured that unforeseen nmiuqgtrdevelopment
declines in the value of the Compasynventory or unforeseen order cancellations dyustomers will not materially and advers
affect the Company’s business, results of operatifinancial condition or liquidity.

Substantial defaults by the Comparsycustomers on its accounts receivable or the losignificant customers could have
significant negative impact on the Company’s busase results of operations, financial condition dguidity.

A significant portion of the Companyworking capital consists of accounts receivatdenfcustomers. If customers respons
for a significant amount of accounts receivableeserbecome insolvent or otherwise unable to papifoducts and services, or we
to become unwilling or unable to make payments itineely manner, the Compars/’business, results of operations, finan
condition or liquidity could be adversely affectedin economic or industry downturn could adversety anaterially affect th
servicing of these accounts receivable, which coedilt in longer payment cycles, increased catlectosts and defaults in exce
of management’s expectations. A significant detation in the Companyg’ability to collect on accounts receivable coutbampact
the cost or availability of financing under its aoats receivable securitization program (§&@ancing Transactionsippearing it
Item 7 of this Report).

The Company’s nond.S. locations represent a significant and growipgrtion of its revenue, and consequently, the Compas
increasingly exposed to risks associated with opieigiinternationally.

During fiscal year 2011, 2010 and 2009, approxilged@%, 60% and 58%, respectively, of the Comparsgles came from i
operations outside the United States. As a re$utied Companys foreign sales and locations, in particular thissemerging an
developing economies, the Compasydperations are subject to a variety of risks &t specific to international operatio
including, but not limited to, the following:

. potential restrictions on the Comp{s ability to repatriate funds from its foreign sigiaries;
»  foreign currency and interest rate fluctuations #redimpact on the Compa’'s reported results of operatiol
. import and export duties and va-added taxes

. compliance with foreign and domestic import angart regulations, business licensing requiremant$ antieorruptior
laws, the failure of which could result in sevesnalties including monetary fines, criminal prodegd and suspension
export privileges

. changing tax laws and regulatiol
. regulatory requirements and prohibitions that diffetween jurisdictions
. political instability, terrorism and potential mdry conflicts or civilian unres

+ fluctuations in freight costs, limitations on shipg and receiving capacity, and other disruptionthie transportation a
shipping infrastructure

. differing environmental regulations and employmraictices and labor issues; ¢

»  the risk of no-compliance with local law
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The potential criminal penalties for violations export regulations and anti-corruption laws, paitdy antibribery, date
privacy laws and environmental laws and regulationsiany jurisdictions, create heightened riskstf@ Companys internationa
operations. In the event that a governing regwabmdy determined that the Company had violatediegdge export regulations t
anti-corruption laws, the Company could be fined sigaifit sums, incur sizable legal defense costs aritd/@xport capabilitie
could be restricted, which could have a material adverse effect on the Compamyusiness. While the Company has and
continue to adopt measures designed to ensure @omoplwith these laws, the Company cannot be adsbat such measures will
adequate or that its business will not be matgreaild adversely impacted in the event of an allageldtion.

The Company’s acquisition strategy may not prodube expected benefits, which may adversely affaet Companys results of
operations.

Avnet historically has pursued a strategic acgoisiprogram to grow its global business for elagitcand computer product
thereby enabling Avnet to solidify and maintainléadership position in the marketplace. Acquisgiénvolve risks and uncertainti
such as expansion into new geographic markets asithdss areas and diversion of managemeitention from existing busine
operations. In addition, the Company may not beessful in integrating the acquired businessed@riritegration may be mo
difficult, costly or timeeonsuming than anticipated. Consequently, the Cosnpaay experience disruptions that could, dependir
the size of the acquisition, have a material adveffect on its business, especially where an atpri target may have pexisting
non-compliance or prexisting deficiencies or material weaknesses asethterms are defined under relevant SEC rules
regulations. Furthermore, the Company may notzealll of the anticipated benefits from its acdiosis, which could materially ar
adversely affect the Company’s financial perfornganc

If the Company fails to maintain effective internalontrols, it may not be able to report its finamtiresults accurately or timel
or detect fraud, which could have a material adversffect on the Company’s business or stock price.

Effective internal controls are necessary for tltmn@any to provide reasonable assurance with re¢peats financial report
and to effectively prevent fraud. If the Companymat provide reasonable assurance with respectstfinancial reports an
effectively prevent fraud, its brand and operatiegults could be harmed. Pursuant to the Sarb@rksr Act of 2002, the Compat
is required to furnish a report by management ¢erival control over financial reporting, includintanagemeng assessment of tl
effectiveness of such control. Internal control rofileancial reporting may not prevent or detectstagements because of its inhel
limitations, including the possibility of human ery the circumvention or overriding of controls, foaud. Therefore, even effecti
internal controls cannot provide absolute assuravite respect to the preparation and fair preseniadf financial statements.
addition, projections of any evaluation of effeetiess of internal control over financial reporttoguture periods are subject to 1
risk that the control may become inadequate becafishanges in conditions, or that the degree ofi@nce with the policies ¢
procedures may deteriorate. If the Company failsw&intain the adequacy of its internal controlsjuding any failure to implemel
required new or improved controls, or if the Companperiences difficulties in their implementatidhe Companys business ar
operating results could be harmed, and the Compauld fail to meet its reporting obligations, whicbuld have a material advel
effect on its business and the market price oftbmpany’s securities.

If the Companys internal information systems fail to function pperly, or if the Company is unsuccessful in the égration or
upgrade of information systems, its business openas could suffer.

The Company’s expanding operations put increasiagsuire on the Compaisyinformation systems to produce timely, accu
and reliable reports on financial and operatioreults. Currently, the Compaisyglobal operations are tracked with multi
information systems, some of which are subjectrtayaing IT projects designed to streamline or optamits global informatiol
systems. There is no guarantee that the Compamypevisuccessful at all times in these efforts at there will not be integratic
difficulties that will adversely affect the Compaayperations or the accurate and timely recordimtgraporting of financial data.
addition, these systems are subject to computekifga@r other general system failure. Maintainingd aperating these syste!
requires continuous investments. Failure of anyhese information systems or material difficultirsupgrading these informatic
systems could have material adverse effects olCtmpanys business and its compliance with reporting obibga under feder:
securities laws.
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Major disruptions to the Company’s logistics capétyi could have a material adverse impact on therQmany’s operations.

The Companys global logistics services are operated througitigfized and centralized distribution centers addthe globe
The Company also depends almost entirely on thartyygransportation service providers for the dalywof products to its custome
A major interruption or disruption in service ateonr more of our distribution centers for any reagsuch as natural disaste
pandemics, or significant disruptions of servicesrf our third party providers) could cause cantieltes or delays in a significa
number of shipments to customers and, as a resultd have a severe impact on the Compsauiyisiness, operations and finan
performance.

The Company may not have adequate or cost-effedttpgidity or capital resources.

The Companys ability to satisfy its cash needs depends oaliity to generate cash from operations and t@ssthe financie
markets, both of which are subject to general espogdfinancial, competitive, legislative, regulat@nd other factors that are beyc
the Company’s control.

The Company may need to satisfy its cash needsighrexternal financing. However, external financingy not be availabl
on acceptable terms or at all. As of July 2, 20%inet had total debt outstanding of $1.517 billioxder various notes and commit
and uncommitted lines of credit with financial ihgions. The Company needs cash to make inteagnpnts on, and to refinant
this indebtedness and for general corporate puspaseh as funding its ongoing working capital @agital expenditure neec
Under the terms of any external financing, the Canypmay incur higher than expected financing expgr@sd become subject
additional restrictions and covenants. Any matdrietease in the Comparsyfinancing costs could have a material adverssetin
its profitability.

Under some of its credit facilities, the Companyeiguired to maintain certain specified financ&las and meet certain tests
the Company fails to meet these financial ratiod &sts, it may be unable to continue to utilizesthfacilities. If the Company
unable to utilize these facilities, it may not hawdficient cash available to make interest paysmentand refinance indebtedness
for general corporate needs.

The agreements governing some of the Comparfinancings contain various covenants and restiarts that limit the discretior
of management in operating its business and coul@dyent us from engaging in some activities that miag beneficial to the
Company’s business.

The agreements governing the Company'’s financimguding its credit facility and the indentures gaving the Compang’
outstanding notes, contain various covenants astdatons that, in certain circumstances, limi thompanys ability and the abilit
of certain subsidiaries to:

. grant liens on assetl

. make restricted payments (including paying dividead capital stock or redeeming or repurchasingalagiock);

. make investment:

. merge, consolidate or transfer all or substantilllyf the Compar’s assets

. incur additional debt; ¢

. engage in certain transactions with affilia

As a result of these covenants and restrictiorsCibmpany may be limited in the future in how ihdocts its business and
be unable to raise additional debt, compete effelstior make further investments.

In addition to the specific factors described ab@eaneral economic or business conditions, domasiicforeign, may be le

favorable than management expected and, if suctlittams persist for a sustained period of time,ldaventually adversely impa
the Company’s sales or its ability to collect reebies from some of its customers.
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Item 1B. Unresolved Staff Commen
Not applicable.
Item 2. Properties

The Company owns and leases approximately 1,151480 5,523,000 square feet of space, respectivalywhich
approximately 36% is located in the United Stafée following table summarizes certain of the Comypakey facilities.

Sq. Leased ol
Location Footage Owned Primary Use
Poing, German 427,00( Leasec EM warehousing, vali-added operations and offic
Chandler, Arizon: 399,00( Owned EM warehousing and val-added operatior
Tongeren, Belgiun 388,00( Owned EM and TS warehousing and vs-added operatior
Chandler, Arizon: 231,00( Leasec TS warehousing, integration and ve-added operatior
Tsuen Wan, Hong Kon 181,00( Leasec EM warehousing and val-added operatior
Phoenix, Arizong 176,00( Leasec Corporate and EM headquart:
Tempe, Arizon: 132,00( Leasec TS headquartel
Nogales, Mexicc 124,00( Leasec EM warehousing and val-added operatior
Doral, Florida 120,00( Leasec TS warehousing and val-added operatior
Loyang, Singapor 116,00( Leasec TS warehousing and val-added operatior

Item 3. Legal Proceeding:

As a result primarily of certain former manufachgrioperations, Avnet has incurred and may havedutability under variou
federal, state and local environmental laws andlegipns, including those governing pollution angesure to, and the handli
storage and disposal of, hazardous substanceex@arple, under the Comprehensive Environmental dqtesy Compensation &
Liability Act of 1980, as amended (“CERCLAgnd similar state laws, Avnet is and may be lidblethe costs of cleaning
environmental contamination on or from certain tsf gurrent or former properties, and at site locations where the Compi
disposed of wastes in the past. Such laws may iejoiist and several liability. Typically, howevéhe costs for cleanup at such <
are allocated among potentially responsible pat@sed upon each pamytelative contribution to the contamination, artbes
factors.

Pursuant to SEC regulations, including but nottkmito Item 103 of RegulationIS-the Company regularly assesses the ¢
of and developments in pending environmental lggateedings to determine whether any such procgedihould be identifie
specifically in this discussion of legal proceedingnd has concluded that no particular pendingr@mwental legal proceedi
requires public disclosure. Based on the infornmaekioown to date, management believes that the Coynipas appropriately accrt
in its consolidated financial statements for itarghof the estimated costs associated with the@mwiental cleamup of sites in whic
the Company is participating.

The Company and/or its subsidiaries are also gattiesarious other legal proceedings arising froametto time in the norm
course of business. While litigation is subjecirtberent uncertainties, management currently betighat the ultimate outcome
these proceedings, individually and in the aggeegatll not have a material adverse effect on then@Ganys financial position, ca:
flow or results of operations.
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PART Il

Iltem 5. Market for Registran'’s Common Equity, Related Stockholder Matters andusr Purchases of Equity Securiti¢
Market price per share

The Companys common stock is listed on the New York Stock Exae under the symbol AVT. Quarterly high and |@le:
closing prices (as reported for the New York StBgkhange composite transactions) for the last teaaf years were:

2011 2010
Fiscal Quarters High Low High Low
1st $ 27.0¢ $ 22.8¢ $ 27.3: $ 20.31
2nd 33.3¢ 26.61 30.42 23.67
3rd 36.97 31.8¢ 30.5: 26.3¢
4th 37.81 29.97 33.4¢ 23.9¢

The Company has not paid dividends since fiscaR20@l does not currently contemplate any futuredind payments.
Record Holders
As of July 29, 2011, there were 3,152 registerdddrs of record of Avnet's common stock.
Equity Compensation Plan Information as of July 22011

Number of Securities

Number of Securities Remaining Available for
to be Issued Upon Weighted-Average Future Issuance Under Equity
Exercise of Exercise Price ol Compensation Plans

Outstanding Options. ~ Outstanding Options, (Excluding Securities

Plan Category Warrants and Rights ~ Warrants and Rights Reflected in Column (a))
(@) (b) (©)

Equity compensation plans approved by
security holder: 5,320,700 $ 21.7¢ 6,694,812

@ Includes 3,059,215 shares subject to options oistg and 1,414,784 stock incentive shares and7&06performance shau
awarded but not yet delivered. Included in the grenince shares is the number of shares anticipatbd issued in the fii
quarter of fiscal 2012 relating to the level of iesfement reached under the 2009 performance shiageam which ende
July 2, 2011 (see Note 12 in tNotes to Consolidated Financial Statemeincluded in Item 15 of this Repol

(@ Does not include 58,707 shares available forréutissuance under the Employee Stock Purchase Riaich is a non-
compensatory plai
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Stock Performance Graphs and Cumulative Total Retuns

The graph below compares the cumulative 5-yeal tetarn of holders of Avnet, Inc’common stock with the cumulative t
returns of the S&P 500 index and certain of Avegiter companies in the electronics distributiatugtry. The graph tracks f
performance of a $100 investment in Avsetbmmon stock, in the peer group, and the indéth (ive reinvestment of all dividenc
from July 1, 2006 to July 2, 2011. During fiscall20 two of the companies included in the Comparigcal 2010 peer group (B
Microproducts Inc. and Nu Horizons Electronics Qamgrminated their respective registrations with 8EC. The Company’nev
peer group consists of Agilysys, Inc., Anixter imt&tional, Inc., Arrow Electronics, Inc., Brightpj Inc., Ingram Micro, Inc., Insig
Enterprises, Inc., Scansource, Inc., Synnex Corg.Teech Data Corp. The Compasydld peer group, which is also included be
for comparative purposes, consisted of Arrow Etautrs, Inc., Ingram Micro, Inc., and Tech Data Cdpll Microproducts Inc. ar
Nu Horizons Electronics Corp are not included ia ¢iid peer group belov

COMPARISON OF 5 YEAR CUMULATIVE TOTAL RETURN*

Amang Asnet, Ing, the S&F 500 Index
an Oid Peer Group and a New Paer Group

£250

$50 |

THIDG 630007 62808 BI2TING TIEM0 T2

T Aumid, Inc. — ' — S&P 500

- -k - - Old Peer Group —3— New Peer Group

*$100 inwested on 71106 in stock or B/30/06 in index, inchuding reinvestment of dividends.,
e calculaled an month-end basis

Capyrighti 2011 3&P, a division of The MoGraw -Hill Campanies inc, All righls resarved

07/1/06 06/30/07 06/28/08 06/27/09 07/3/10 07/2/11
Avnet, Inc. 100.00 198.00 137.61 107.49 119.78 162.59
S&P 500 100.00 120.59 104.77 77.30 88.46 115.61
Old Peer Grou| 100.00 115.02 94.26 80.93 79.40 119.43
New Peer Grou 100.00 120.11 94.66 78.10 79.95 118.59

The stock price performance included in this grepfot necessarily indicative of future stock priegformance. The Compe
does not make or endorse any predictions as toefigiock performance. The performance graph isifhed solely to accompa
this Report and is not being filed for purposeshef Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amendetijsanot to be incorporated
reference into any filing of the Company, whethemda before or after the date hereof, regardlessngfgeneral incorporatir
language in such filing.
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Issuer Purchases of Equity Securities

The following table presents the Company’s monghlychases of common stock during the fourth quaiftéiscal 2011:

Maximum Number (or

Total Number of  Approximate Dollar

Total Shares Purchased ¢ Value) of Shares That
Number of Part of Publicly = may yet be Purchaset
Shares Average Price Announced Plans o  Under the Plans or
Period Purchasec Paid per Share Programs Programs
April 4,100 $ 34.8( — —
May 6,700 $ 37.07 — —
June 4300 $ 31.7¢ — —

The purchases of Avnet common stock noted above wexde on the open market to obtain shares fothpsecunder tt

Company’s Employee Stock Purchase Plan.

In August 2011, the Board of Directors approved thpurchase of up to an aggregate of $500 millibrstmres of th
Companys common stock through a share repurchase program.Company plans to repurchase stock from timeénie at th
discretion of management in open market or priyatelgotiated transactions or otherwise, subjeepfgicable laws, regulations
approvals, strategic considerations, market camitiand other factors. The Company may terminatenit the stock repurcha

program at any time without prior notice.

Iltem 6. Selected Financial Dat:
Years Ended
July 2, July 3, June 27, June 28, June 30,
2011 2010 2009 (a) 2008 (a) 2007 (a)
(Millions, except for per share and ratio data)
Income:
Sales $ 26,534. $ 19,160.. $ 16,229.¢ $ 17,952 $ 15,681.:
Gross profit 3,107.¢ 2,280.: 2,023.( 2,313." 2,048.¢
Operating income (los! 930.((b) 635.€(c) (1,019.0(d) 710.¢(e) 678.%(f)
Income tax provisiol 201.4b) 174.%(c) 34.7%(d) 203.¢(e) 187.4(f)
Net income (loss 669.1(b) 410.4(c) (1,129.7)(d) 489.¢(e) 384.4(f)
Financial Position
Working capital(g 3,749.! 3,190.¢ 2,688.: 3,191.: 2,711.:
Total asset 9,905.¢ 7,782. 6,273. 8,195.: 7,343.°
Long-term debt 1,273.! 1,243.° 946.€ 1,169.: 1,127.¢
Shareholder equity 4,056.: 3,009.: 2,760.¢ 4,141.¢ 3,417«
Per Share
Basic earnings (los! 4.3¢(b) 2.71(c) (7.49)(d) 3.2€(e) 2.6((f)
Diluted earnings (loss 4.34b) 2.6§(c) (7.49(d) 3.21(e) 2.5%(f)
Book value per diluted sha 26.2¢ 19.6¢€ 18.3( 27.1 22.8¢
Ratios:
Operating income (loss) margin ¢
sales 3.5%(b) 3.2%(c) (6.3)%(d) 4.C%(e) 4.2%(f)
Net income (loss) margin on sa 2.5%(b) 2.1%(c) (7.0%%(d) 2.7%(e) 2.5%(f)
Return on capite 15.2%(b) 14.(%(c) (26.6%(d) 11.C%(e] 11.2%(f)
Quick 1.2:1 1.4:1 1.5:1 1.4:1 1.3:1
Working capital 1.8:1 1.9:1 2.1:1 2.1:1 2.0:1
Total debt to capite 27.2% 29.8% 26.(% 22.7% 25.7%
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(@)

As adjusted for the retrospective application of emtounting standard. The Financial Accounting &atls Board issu
authoritative guidance which requires the issuecastain convertible debt instruments that may &ttlexd in cash (or oth
assets) on conversion to separately account fordéid and equity (conversion option) componentshef instrument. Tk
standard requires the convertible debt to be ragzedrat the present value of its cash flows distedinsing the nogenvertible
debt borrowing rate at the date of issuance. Theltieg debt discount from this present value dalion is to be recognized
the value of the equity component and recordedlttitianal paid in capital. The discounted convéetibebt is then required
be accreted up to its face value and recorded agash interest expense over the expected life otctimvertible debt. |
addition, deferred financing costs associated withconvertible debt are required to be allocatetiveen the debt and eqt
components based upon relative values. During ithe quarter of fiscal 2010, the Company adopted standard, howewvt
there was no impact to the fiscal 2010 consoliddtedncial statements because the Compar# Convertible Seni
Debentures, to which this standard applied, wetaguished in fiscal 2009. Due to the requiredagpective application of tt
standard to prior periods, the Company adjustedptier period comparative consolidated financialtetents. The followir
table summarizes the adjustments to increase @sxr@reviously reported balanc

June 27, June 28, June 30,
Adjustments-increase (decrease 2009 2008 2007
(Millions, except per share data)

Selling, general and adminstrative exper $ 0.3 $ 0.9 $ (0.9
Interest expens 12.2 15.¢€ 14.¢
Income tax provisiol (4.6) (6.0 (5.7)
Net income (7.3 (9.5 (8.7
Basic EPS $ 0.05) % (0.0e0 % (0.0%)
Diluted EPS $ 0.0 % 0.06p % (0.0¢)
Prepaid and other current ass $ = $ 03 $ (0.7)
Other asset — (4.€) (10.7)
Long term deb — (12.2) (28.7)
Shareholder equity $ — $ 7.2 $ 16.€
(b) Includes the impact of restructuring, intégma and other items which totaled $77.2 millioregeax, $56.2 million after tax a

(©

(d)

(€)

(f)
(9)

$0.36 per share on a diluted basis, a gain on apgschase and other which totaled $22.7 millioatpx, $25.7 million afte
tax and $0.17 per share on a diluted basis, aa® bhanefit of $32.9 million and $0.21 per shareadfiluted basis primarily di
to the release of certain tax valuation allowaneesof additional tax reserves (see Note 18 inNb&es to the Consolidat
Financial Statemenicontained in Item 15 of this Report for furtheralission of these items

Includes the impact of restructuring, inteégna and other items which totaled $25.4 millioreax, $18.8 million after tax al
$0.12 per share on a diluted basis and includes @jaisale of assets which totaled $8.8 million tape-$5.4 million after te
and $0.03 per share on a diluted basis (see Naoieth&Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statementstained in ltem 15
this Report for further discussion of these iter

Includes goodwill and intangible asset impeant charges of $1.41 billion ptax, $1.38 billion after tax and $9.13 per sl
and includes the impact of restructuring, integratand other items which totaled $99.3 million tar; $34.9 million after te
and $0.23 per share (see Note 18 inNlo¢es to the Consolidated Financial Statemeuatstained in Iltem 15 of this Report
further discussion of these item

Includes the impact of restructuring, integratiom ather items, gain on sale of assets and otheasitvhich totaled to a gain
$11.0 million pretax, $14.7 million after tax and $0.09 per sharadliluted basis

Includes the impact of restructuring, integratiowl ather items, gain on sale of assets, debt exhgient costs and other ite
which amounted to charges of $31.7 million-tax, $20.0 million after tax and $0.13 per sharaatiluted basis

This calculation of working capital is defined asrent assets less current liabiliti
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ltem 7. Managemen's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition driResults of Operation

For an understanding of Avnet and the significactdrs that influenced the Compasiperformance during the past three fi
years, the following discussion should be readanjunction with the description of the businessegmg in Iltem 1 of this Rep«
and the consolidated financial statements, inclydie related notes and schedule, and other inf@mappearing in Item 15 of tt
Report. The Company operates on a “52/53 wdiskal year. Fiscal 2011 and 2009 contained 52 wedhile fiscal 2010 contain
53 weeks. This extra week, which occurred in thet fjuarter of fiscal 2010, impacts the year-ovearyanalysis in this MD&A.

There are references to the impact of foreign oeyedranslation in the discussion of the Compamgsults of operatior
Results for the full fiscal year 2011 or 2010 weat significantly impacted by the movement of fgrecurrency exchanges rates
for example, the U.S. Dollar strengthened agaimstEuro by approximately 2% during fiscal 2011 #imel U.S. Dollar weaken:
against the Euro by approximately 1% during fis2@ll0. However, fluctuations during the quartersfis€al 2011 had a ma
pronounced impact on the Company’s comparativelteeas described in the Company’s Form 18-€led with the SEC. When t
stronger U.S. Dollar exchange rates of the curgg@r are used to translate the results of opemat@nAvnets subsidiarie
denominated in foreign currencies, the resultingadnot is a decrease in U.S. Dollars of reportedlt®esis compared with the pr
period. When the U.S. Dollar weakens, the resultmgact is an increase in U.S. Dollars of repontesllts as compared with -
prior period. In the discussion that follows, thgsreferred to as thetranslation impact of changes in foreign currengghang:
rates.”

In addition to disclosing financial results thaé atetermined in accordance with U.S. generally gteckaccounting principl
(“GAAP"), the Company also discloses certain nonABAfinancial information, including:

. Income or expense items as adjusted for the triagmislampact of changes in foreign currency excharafes, a
discussed abovi

. Sales adjusted for certain items that impactyter-overyear analysis, which included the impact of acdjoiss by
adjusting Avnets prior periods to include the sales of businessegiired as if the acquisitions had occurred &
beginning of the period presented. In addition, fiecal 2011 sales are adjusted for: (i) a divasgitby adjustin
Avnet’s prior periods to exclude the sales of the busidegested as if the divestiture had occurred eb#yginning ¢
the period presented; (ii) the impact of the extek of sales in the prior year first quarter du¢he “52/53 week”
fiscal year, and (iii) the transfer of the existiagbedded business from TS Americas to EM Ameticasoccurre
in the first quarter of fiscal 2011. Sales takingpi account the combination of these adjustmergseferred to ¢
“pro forma sal€” or “organic sale”

. Operating income excluding restructuring, integnatand other charges incurred in fiscal 2011, 2840 2009 ¢
well as the norcash goodwill and intangible asset impairment obsrgecognized during fiscal 2009. °
reconciliation to GAAP is presented in the follogitable.

Years Ended

July 2, July 3, June 27,
2011 2010 2009
(Thousands)

GAAP operating income (los $ 929,97 $  635,60! $ (1,018,99)
Impairment charge — — 1,411,12
Restructuring, integration and ott 77,17¢ 25,41¢ 99,34:

Adjusted operating incon $ 1,007,15! $ 661,01 $ 49147

Management believes that providing this additionfdrmation is useful for the reader to better assend understand opera
performance, especially when comparing results wittvious periods or forecasting performance fauri periods. Furthermo
management typically monitors the business bothudiicg and excluding these items and uses these€a#0kP measures to establ
operational goals and, in some cases, for measpgrfgrmance for compensation purposes. Howevatysis of results and outlo
on a non-GAAP basis should be used as a compleimesmtd in conjunction with, data presented in atance with GAAP.
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Results of Operations
Executive Summary

At the beginning of fiscal 2011, the Company cortgalethree significant acquisitions that, when careliwith strong organ
growth, delivered $7.4 billion in revenue growth,38.5%, year over year, to a record $26.5 billidlthough the acquired busines
have product lines with lower operating marginsti#anet’s other product lines, operating income grew fadtan revenue wi
46.3% growth year over year driven by operatingetage and synergies as a result of integratiorvities that were omoing
through the fiscal year. Finally, earnings per eham a diluted basis grew faster than revenue prcating income with an increz:
of 63% year over year.

Year-overyear organic revenue growth for EM was 21.9% ang wsi@ongest in the EMEA region due to demand ir
industrial markets. Year-overear organic revenue growth for TS was 11.3% ansl dvaven primarily by demand for storage
servers. Gross profit margin was down 19 basistpgiear over year to 11.7% as the acquired Belinless has lower gross prt
margins than the Comparsylegacy businesses due to its product mix. EMgposfit margin was up 10 basis points year oven
which was impacted by the combination of improvetriarthe EM core business, partially offset by tbeer gross profit marg
embedded business acquired from Bell and the engldelddsiness that was transferred from TS Amerit8sgross profit marg
declined 52 basis points year over year primatisitautable to the EMEA region which was impactadtbe integration of the B¢
business because of its lower gross profit margifilp than the other TS EMEA product lines.

Operating income margin was up 19 basis points gear year to 3.5%. EM operating income marginsroupd 105 bas
points year over year to 5.5%. The improvement atiributable to operating leverage primarily in EMEhich was due to strol
revenue growth and continued expense efficiengi8soperating income margin declined 57 basis pgiass over year primarily di
to lower operating income margins of the acquiredl Business. The integrations of the acquiredrimssies have been complete
of the end of fiscal 2011. The businesses acquitgthg fiscal 2011 impacted both operating groupd, @as a result of integrati
activities that occurred during the fiscal yeag fiscal 2011 results were positively impacted Wyesgies to the extent actions w
completed. In particular, the expected synergiestdie Bell acquisition were estimated to be oved #6llion in annualized co
savings, however, the full benefit of the synergsesxpected to be realized in the first quarteiisafal 2012.

Three-Year Analysis of Sales: By Operating Group ad Geography

Years Ended Percent Change

July 2, % of July 3, % of June 27, % of 2011tc 2010 tc

2011  Total 2010 Total 2009  Total 2010 2009
(Dollars in millions)

Sales by Operating Group:

EM Americas $ 5,113.¢ 19.3% $ 3,434.¢ 17.9% $ 3,288.0 20.3% 48.% 4.5%

EM EMEA 4,816.. 18.1 3,651.. 19.0 3,026.f 18.6 31.¢ 20.€
EM Asia 5,136.. 194 3,881 20.3 2,878.( 17.7 32.2 34.¢
Total EM 15,066.: 56.8 10,966.f 57.2 9,192.t 56.6 37.4 19.5
TS Americas 6,404.7 24.1 4,932 25.8 4,283.¢ 26.4 29.¢ 15.2
TS EMEA 3,677.. 135 2,297 12.0 2,241.¢ 1338 55.7 25
TS Asia 1,486. 5.6 963.f 5.0 511.2 3.2 54.2 88.4
Total TS 11,468.. 43.2 8,193« 428 7,037 434 40.C 16.4
Total Avnet, Inc. $26,534.- $19,160.. $16,229.! 38.5%  18.1%
Sales by Geographic Area
Americas $11,518.! 43.4% $ 8,367.. 43.7% $ 7,572.0 46.7% 37.%  10.2%
EMEA 8,393.« 31.6 5,948.: 31.0 5,268.c 32.4 41.1 12.¢
Asia/Pacific 6,622.f 25.0 4,844.¢ 25.3 3,389.0  20.9 36.7 42.¢
$26,534.- $19,160.: $16,229.¢
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Sales
Items Impacting Year-over-Year Sales Comparisons
During the past three fiscal years, the Companyiiaed several businesses impacting both operatiogpg, as presented in

following table. To facilitate easier and more megful year-overyear comparisons, the discussions that follow ielsales on
pro forma basis as well as on a reported basis.

Approximate

Annualized Acquisition
Acquired Business Group & Region Revenuesl) Date
(Millions)
Fiscal 2011
itX Group Ltd TS Asia/Pac $ 16C January 201.
Center Cel EM Americas 5 November 201!
Eurotone EM Asia/Pac 30 October 201(
Broadbanc EM Americas 8 October 201(
Unidux EM Asia/Pac 37C July 2010
Tallard Technologie TS Americas 25C July 2010
Bell Microproducts Inc EM & TS Americas 3,021 July 2010
TS EMEA
Fiscal 2010
Servodata HP Divisio TS EMEA $ 20 April 2010
PT Datamatiot TS Asia/Pac a0 April 2010
Sunshine Joint Stock Compa TS Asia/Pac 30 November 200!
Vanda Groug TS Asia/Pac 30 October 200¢
Fiscal 2008
Abacus Group pl EM EMEA $ 40C January 200!
Nippon Denso Industry Co., Lt EM Asia/Pac 14C December 200
Ontrack Solutions Pvt. Lt TS Asia/Pac 13 July 2008
Horizon Technology Group p TS EMEA 40C June 200¢
Source Electronics Corporatit EM Americas 82 June 200t

1)  Represents the approximate annual revenue fadtpeired businessesiost recent fiscal year prior to acquisition by Aatvanc
based upon average foreign currency exchangefaattsose periods

Fiscal 2011 Comparison to Fiscal 2010

The table below provides the comparison of repaiisadl 2011 and 2010 sales for the Company angpigsating groups to p
forma (or organic) sales (as defined previouslyaltow readers to better assess and understar@icimpanys revenue performan
by operating group.

Acquisition/ Extra Week 2011 to 201
Sales as Divested in Pro Forma Pro Forma
Reported Revenue Q1 FY10 Sales Change
(Dollars in millions)
EM $ 15,066.. $ 44¢ % — $ 15,111 21.%
TS 11,468.. (188.5) — 11,279. 11.z
Fiscal 2011 $ 26534 $ (14360 $ — $ 26,390. 17.1
EM $ 10,966. $ 1,605t $ (1745 $ 12,398.
TS 8,193. 2,188.( (243.5) 10,137.¢
Fiscal 201( $ 19,160. $ 3,793 % (41799 $ 22,535
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Consolidated sales in fiscal 2011 were $26.53dmilan increase of 38.5%, or $7.37 billion, frostél 2010 consolidated se
of $19.16 billion. This increase was due to the boration of growth through acquisitions and orgagiowth of 17.1%. EM sales
$15.07 billion in fiscal 2011 increased 37.4% ofiscal 2010 sales of $10.97 billion. The year-oyear comparisons were impac
by acquisitions and the transfer of the TS Amerigagedded business to EM Americas. Organic saleedsed 21.9% year o
year and all three regions contributed with orgagiowth of 14.2%, 34.4% and 19.5% in the AmericBMEA and Asia
respectively, largely attributable to the continugttbng end demand across the technology indu§8ysales of $11.47 billion
fiscal 2011 increased 40.0% over fiscal 2010 safe$8.19 billion. The year-overear comparisons were positively impactec
recent acquisitions, and partially offset by thensfer of the TS Americas embedded business to fitvVaadivestiture. Organic sa
increased 11.3% year over year driven by the Arasriand Asia regions with increased organic sale4300% and 31.49
respectively. In the EMEA region, organic saleséased 1.7%. On a product level, year-oxear sales growth was driven prima
by demand for storage and servers.

Fiscal 2010 Comparison to Fiscal 2009

The table below provides the comparison of repdiiseil 2010 and 2009 sales for the Company anopigsating groups to p
forma (or organic) sales as previously definedltmnareaders to better assess and understand tmp&uy's revenue performance
operating group.

2010 to 200
Sales at Acquisition Pro Forma Pro Forma
Reported Sales Sales Change
(Dollars in millions)
EM $ 10,966.8 $ — $ 10,966. 15.6%
TS 8,193. 119.1 8,312.! 15.2
Fiscal 201( $ 19,160. $ 119.1 $ 19,279. 15.5
EM $ 9,192.t % 291.¢ % 9,484.¢
TS 7,037.: 177.¢ 7,215.(
Fiscal 200¢ $ 16,229.¢ $ 4697 $ 16,699.(

Consolidated sales in fiscal 2010 were $19.16dmilliup 18.1%, or $2.93 billion, over consolidatedes of $16.23 billion i
fiscal 2009. The continued growth throughout fis2@l0 exceeded managemsntxpectations as the technology markets reco
faster than anticipated following the rapid dedirexperienced in fiscal 2009. As mentioned eaitiethis MD&A, fiscal 201(
included an extra week when compared with fisc&l®Qvhich management estimates added approxim@#l@ million in sale:
Acquisitions also positively impacted fiscal 20E3ults as organic growth was 15.5%.

EM sales of $10.97 billion increased 19.3%, or $diflion, over sales of $9.19 billion in fiscal @d. Organic sales increa:
15.6% year over year. All three regions contributedhe year-oveyear increase in EM sales led by the Asia regioeratsale
increased 34.9%. The EMEA region sales increase82@ear over year and organic revenue growth v2as%. Excluding th
translation impact of changes in foreign currencgh@ange rates, EM EMEA sales increased 19.9% yesryear and organic sa
increased 11.8%. Sales increased 4.5% from priar iyethe Americas region, which had initially bedower to recover than t
other EM regions; however, the Americas sales amzd 17.8% and 39.5% year over year in the thidl famrth quarter:
respectively.

TS sales of $8.19 billion in fiscal 2010 were up4®6, or $1.16 billion, over sales of $7.04 billinfiscal 2009. Organic sal
increased 15.2% year over year. TS Asia salesaserk88.4% year over year and 59.8% on an orgalds basis as the Asia reg
was positively impacted by investments and acdorsst made in China. Sales increased 15.2% and €6 over year in T
Americas and TS EMEA, respectively. Excluding thenslation impact of changes in foreign currencghaxige rates, TS EME
sales increased 1.8% year over year. The EMEA megimtinues to lag in the economic recovery as @etpwith the other 1
regions, although it did see robust year-over-geganic growth of approximately 13.8% in the fouytharter.
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Gross Profit and Gross Profit Margins

Consolidated gross profit in fiscal 2011 was $dillion, an increase of $827.6 million, or 36.3%orh fiscal 2010 du
primarily to strong organic sales growth and theréase in sales related to acquisitions. Grosstprargin of 11.7% declined 1
basis points year over year due primarily to thpant of businesses acquired, which had producs hivith lower gross margins th:
Avnet's other product lines. EM gross profit margin imged 10 basis points where the addition of the lawargin embedde
business acquired from Bell and the embedded bssittansferred from TS mostly offset the margirrease that occurred in t
legacy EM business and geographic mix shift. TSgrofit margin declined 52 basis points year gear primarily attributable t
the EMEA region and the impact of the integratidérihe@ Bell business, which has a lower gross profirgin profile than the oth
TS EMEA product lines. Although the Bell business la lower gross profit margin profile due to iteguct mix, the Compar
expects to realize the full impact of over $60 moillin annualized synergies in the first quartefietal 2012. However, portions
the synergies have been realized incrementallpsisactions have been taken during fiscal 2011.

Consolidated gross profit for fiscal 2010 was $2RBon, up $257.2 million, or 12.7%, over the qriyear primarily due to th
increase in sales volume. Gross profit margin 08%i declined 56 basis points over the prior yedh&ll regions in each operati
group experiencing declines in margins. The grasditpmargin at EM declined 63 basis points yeaemyear partially due t
geographic mix changes as the Asia region, whichahlower gross profit margin than the America&EMEA regions, representt
35% of EM sales in fiscal 2010 as compared with 3@%scal 2009. In addition, the EMEA region grqe®fit margins had bee
slower to recover than those in the Americas oaAsgions. The negative effects of the recessigaméater in the EMEA regic
than in the Americas and, as a result, the regioatovery also occurred later than the other regiblowever, the quarterly grc
profit margin at EM improved sequentially duringetttast three quarters of fiscal 2010 in all thregions with the large:
improvement in the EMEA region where gross proférgin increased over 100 basis points from the Mé&rcJune quarter. TS grc
profit margin was down 54 basis points year overyhie to the combination of (i) geographic mixraes as the Asia region, whi
has lower gross profit margins than the AmericaBMEA regions, represented 12% of TS sales as cmdpaith 7% in fiscal 200¢
(i) lower gross profit margins in Asia and (iigwer gross profit margins in the Americas region.

Selling, General and Administrative Expenses

Selling, general and administrative expenses (“SG&fienses”were $2.10 billion in fiscal 2011, which was anreese o
$481.5 million, or 29.7%, from fiscal 2010. Theriease in SG&A expenses was primarily a result graxmately $304 million o
additional SG&A expenses associated with acquissti®170 million of incremental costs necessargujgport the 17.1% year-over-
year organic sales growth, net of incremental sasings from integration activity and the additibwaek of expenses in fiscal 20
and $7 million due to the translation impact of mipes in foreign currency exchange rates. Metria tianagement monitors w
respect to its operating expenses are SG&A expesseas percentage of sales and as a percentagess jgrofit. In fiscal 2011
SG&A expenses were 7.9% of sales and 67.6% of gnaxfg as compared with 8.5% and 71.0%, respelgtiva fiscal 2010. Thit
continued year-oveyear improvement reflects the operating leveragiénbusiness model realized from recent revenoetfranc
effective expense management.

SG&A expenses were $1.62 billion in fiscal 2010 rrease of $87.7 million, or 5.7%, as compareith B1L.53 billion in fisca
2009. The increase in SG&A expenses was primattljbatable to supporting the increased sales veluan additional week
fiscal 2010 and additional expenses associated wiiinesses acquired, partially offset by the impécost reduction actions. Tl
cost reduction actions taken during fiscal 2009¢described in further detail below, were compladeding the first quarter of fisc
2010 and the full benefit of the actions were mli beginning in the second quarter of fiscal 2@BB&A expenses were 8.5%
sales and 71.0% of gross profit in fiscal 2010@sgared with 9.4% of sales and 75.7% of gross tpirofiscal 2009. The year-over-
year improvement in these metrics is primarily tasult of effective cost management, includingithpact of cost reduction actio
taken during fiscal 2009, as sales increased 1§d&6over year as compared with only a 5.7% iner@éaSG&A expenses.

Due to the decline in sales and gross profit matigé began in late fiscal 2008 and acceleratethdéurduring fiscal 2009, tr
Company initiated significant cost reduction acticim realign its expense structure with market @i (seeRestructuring
Integration and Other Chargefor a discussion of charges associated with therscundertaken). In the third quarter of fiscaD&(
the Company began to experience demand weakneswgawic sales growth at both EM and TS continwesldw through the firs
quarter of fiscal 2009. In the second quarter s¢dl 2009, the Company experienced continued salesleration in both operatil
groups, particularly in November in the Asia regaord in December in the Americas region. Duringtthiel quarter of fiscal 200!
end demand in the EM business deteriorated evémefyin particular in EM Americas and EM EMEA, whihave been the
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Company’s most profitable regions. As a resulthaf poor market conditions through nitkrch of fiscal 2009, the Company tc
actions to reduce costs by approximately $200 onilbn an annualized basis and had expected sucmsatd be completed by t
end of the June quarter of fiscal 2009. Howeveselaupon third quarter of fiscal 2009 results, @m@nmpany announced furtt
actions to reduce annualized costs by an additi®2al million, bringing the aggregate annual costumtions announced
approximately $225 million since March 2008. As the end of the fourth quarter of fiscal 2009, mamagnt estimated tt
approximately $200 million in annualized cost sasifthad been achieved and the remaining cost reduattions were completec
the end of September 2009; therefore, the full ieakthe annualized cost savings of $225 millwere reflected in the Decem|
quarter of fiscal 2010. In addition, the Decembearter of 2010 included cost synergies of approtétyab40 million as a result
acquisition integration activities most of whichreeompleted by the end of fiscal 2009.

Impairment Charges

During fiscal 2009, the Company recognized rmash goodwill and intangible asset impairment charptaling $1.41 billic
pre-tax, $1.38 billion after tax and $9.13 per shar

During the second quarter of fiscal 2009, due giemdy decline in the Compasymarket capitalization due primarily to
global economic downturn’s impact on the Compargerformance and the turmoil in the equity markeis Company determin
an interim goodwill impairment test was necessany performed the interim test on all six of its@djng units as of December :
2008. Based on the test results, the Company digtednthat goodwill at four of its reporting unit@asvimpaired. Accordingly, durii
the second quarter of fiscal 2009, the Company gwiczed a non-cash goodwill impairment charge of33hillion pretax,
$1.28 billion after tax and $8.51 per share to evoff all goodwill related to its EM Americas, EMsia, TS EMEA and TS As
reporting units.

During the fourth quarter of fiscal 2009, the Compg@erformed its annual goodwill impairment testiebhindicated that thre
of its six reporting units, including EM Asia an EMEA, continued to have fair values below thaimging values. As a result, 1
Company was required to recognize the impairmerdaddfitional goodwill which arose subsequent to gkeond quarter of fisc
2009 in the EM Asia and TS EMEA reporting units.t®& non-cash goodwill impairment charges of $6R2ilBon pre-and after ta
and $0.41 per share recognized in the fourth quaftéscal 2009, $41.4 million related to the rettg acquired business in Jap
which was assigned to the EM Asia reporting unitcédunting standards require goodwill from an adtjois to be assigned tc
reporting unit and also require goodwill to be ¢glsbn a reporting unit level, not by individual aisition. As noted above, the ann
impairment analysis indicated that the fair valfiehe EM Asia reporting unit continued to be belitgvcarrying value. As a rest
the goodwill from the recent acquisition was reqdito be impaired. The remaining $20.8 million leé f{mpairment charges rela
to additional goodwill in the TS EMEA reporting tigrimarily as a result of final acquisition adjungnts during the purchase pi
allocation period related to an acquisition for gfhthe goodwill had been fully impaired in the setguarter of fiscal 2009.

During fiscal 2009, the Company also evaluatedrdwverability of its londived assets at each of the reporting units w
goodwill was deemed to be impaired. Based uponetdduation, the Company determined that certaiitsoimortizable intangib
assets were impaired. As a result, the Companygrezed a non-cash intangible asset impairment ehafg31.4 million preanc
after tax and $0.21 per share during the secondequaf fiscal 2009. In conjunction with the anng@lodwill impairment test, ti
Company again evaluated the recoverability ofatsglived assets during the fourth quarter of fiscaD2@nd determined that
impairment had occurred.

The non-cash impairment charges had no impact@iCtmpanys compliance with debt covenants, its cash flowawailabl
liquidity, but did have a material impact on itsisolidated financial statements.

Restructuring, Integration and Other Charges
Fiscal 2011

During fiscal 2011, the Company recognized restniet), integration and other charges of $77.2 onillpretax, $56.2 milliol
after tax and $0.36 per share on a diluted basiscegted primarily with the integration of the attqd Bell business. Restructur
costs included $28.6 million pre-tax for severaand $17.3 million preax for facility exit costs for lease liabilitieBxed asset writ
downs and other related charges associated wititegdacilities and $1.8 million for other chargksegration costs of $25.1 milli
pretax included professional fees associated withllega IT consulting, facility moving costs, traveheeting, marketing a
communication costs that were incrementally inaliras a result of the integration activity. Alsolired in integration costs ¢
incremental salary and employee benefits costsarily of the acquired businesses’ personnel whewetained by Avnet for
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extended periods following the close of the acgoiss solely to assist in the integration of theudred businessesT systems ar
administrative and logistics operations into thafeAvnet. These identified personnel have no otheraningful day-taday
operational responsibilities outside of the intéigra effort. Transaction costs of $15.6 million fiex consisted primarily
professional fees for brokering the deals, dugeliice work and other legal costs. In addition,Gloepany recorded a reversa
$11.3 million pretax related to (i) the reversal of restructuringemwes established in prior years that were deemée no longe
required, (ii) acquisition adjustments for whicletpurchase allocation period had closed and {it}related reserves origina
established through goodwill in prior years thatevdeemed no longer required and were creditedeaonsolidated statement
operations rather than to goodwill because thecéestsal goodwill was impaired in fiscal 2009.

Severance charges recorded in fiscal 2011 relatpernsonnel reductions of over 550 employees inigidtrative, finance ar
sales functions primarily in connection with théeigration of the acquired Bell business into thisteag EM Americas, TS Americ
and TS EMEA regions and, to a lesser extent, othst reduction actions in other regions. Facilitjt €osts consisted of lee
liabilities, fixed asset writelowns and other related charges associated wita&éted facilities: 23 in the Americas, 25 in EV
and two in the Asia/Pac region. Total amountsaedi during fiscal 2011 consisted of $25.6 milliarcash payments, $3.3 million
non<cash asset write downs and $0.3 million relateddjustments to reserves and foreign currency ttiosl As of July 2, 201
management expects the majority of the remainingremce reserves to be utilized by the end of fi2842 and the remaini
facility exit cost reserves to be utilized by theleof fiscal 2015.

Fiscal 2010

During fiscal 2010, the Company recognized restniet), integration and other charges of $25.4 onillpretax, $18.8 milliol
after tax and $0.12 per share on a diluted badise. Company recognized restructuring charges of0hh@lion pretax for the
remaining cost reduction actions announced durisgaf 2009 which included severance costs, fac#itit costs and other chart
related to contract termination costs and fixedgtgsite-downs. The Company also recognized integraosts of $2.9 million pre-
tax for professional fees, facility moving costdamavel, meeting, marketing and communication £akat were incrementa
incurred as a result of the integration effortshaf recently acquired businesses, $6.5 milliontaxefor a valueadded tax exposure
Europe related to an audit of prior years, and $#IRon pre-tax of other charges including acdqtiisi-related costs which wot
have been capitalized under the prior accountitesrirhe Company also recorded a credit of $3.Bamipretax to adjust reserv
related to prior restructuring activity which wetetermined to be no longer required.

Severance charges recorded in fiscal 2010 of $8liom related to personnel reductions of over 1BMhployees i
administrative, finance and sales functions in emtion with the cost reduction actions in all thregions. Facility exit costs
$3.7 million consisted of lease liabilities anddiikasset writelowns associated with seven vacated facilitiehiénAmericas, one
EMEA and four in the Asia/Pac region. Other charge$2.6 million consisted primarily of contractuabligations with no omgoing
benefit to the Company. The total amounts utiligeding fiscal 2011 consisted of $1.1 million in kgsayments, and $0.4 milli
related to adjustments to reserves and foreigrenayr translation. As of July 2, 2011, the remaimeserves totaled $2.2 million,
which $0.2 million related to remaining facilityiexost and severance reserves which are expezted ttilized by the end of fisc
2013 and $2.0 million related to other contractldigations which are expected to be utilized by ¢ind of fiscal 2012.

Fiscal 2009

In response to the decline in sales and grosstpraigin due to weaker market conditions, the Comigaitiated significar
cost reduction actions during fiscal 2009 to realig expense structure with market conditions.aA®sult, the Company incuri
restructuring, integration and other charges tga$99.3 million praax, $65.3 million after tax and $0.43 per shareimdufisca
2009 related to the cost reductions as well agyiat®n costs associated with recently acquiredniegses. Restructuring char
included severance of $50.8 million, facility egiists of $29.6 million and other charges of $4.Bioni related to contra
termination costs, fixed asset wrilewns and other charges. The Company also recaxdeglrersal of $2.5 million to adiji
estimated costs for severance, lease and othewesseslated to prior year restructuring activitigh were deemed excessive
that reversal was credited to restructuring, iraégn and other charges. Integration costs of $dfillbn included professional fet
facility moving costs, travel, meeting, marketingdacommunication costs that were incrementally tiredi as a result of tl
acquisition integration efforts. Other items re@atdo restructuring, integration and other chaigelsided a net credit of $1.2 milli
related to acquisition adjustments for which thechase allocation period had closed, a loss of 8@llion resulting from a declir
in the market value of certain small investmentst tthe Company liquidated, and $3.8 million of srental intangible as:
amortization.
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Severance charges recorded in fiscal 2009 relatgersonnel reductions of approximately 1,900 eyg®#s in administrative
finance and sales functions in connection withabst reduction actions in all three regions of bmerating groups with employ
reductions of approximately 1,400 in EM, 400 in @&d the remaining from centralized support fundioBxit costs for vacate
facilities related to 29 facilities in the Ameri¢ats3 in EMEA and three in Asia/Pac and consistedestrves for remaining lea
liabilities and the writedown of leasehold improvements and other fixed tassehe total amounts utilized during fiscal 2(
consisted of $9.4 million in cash payments and $&illon related to adjustments to reserves andifpr currency translation. As
July 2, 2011, the remaining reserves totaled $5li8om of which $0.3 million related to severan@serves which are expected tc
utilized by the end of fiscal 2012 and $5.6 millierated to remaining facility exit cost reservasiah are expected to be utilized
the end of fiscal 2015.

Operating Income (Loss)

During fiscal 2011, the Company generated operatimgme of $930.0 million, an increase of 46.3%casnpared witt
operating income of $635.6 million in fiscal 20The increase in operating income was attributabkaé impact of acquisitions a
the growth in gross profit dollars associated wvtith 17.1% organic sales growth. Consolidated ojpgramcome margin was 3.5
and 3.3% in fiscal 2011 and 2010, respectively.hBmriods included restructuring, integration amldeo charges as described
Restructuring, Integration and Other Charcabove. Excluding these charges, operating incomésial 2011 was $1.01 billion,
3.8% of consolidated sales, as compared with odpgraicome of $661.0 million, or 3.5% of consoligdtsales, for fiscal 2010. E
operating income of $832.4 million increased 69y3%r over year and operating income margin incetd8& basis points to 5.5¢
All three regions within EM contributed, but thepgnevement was primarily driven by the operatingelage in the EMEA regic
with its 31.9% year-oveyear revenue growth. TS operating income of $28&€llfon increased 13.9% year over year while opace
income margin declined 57 basis points year ovar y@®2.5% due primarily to lower gross profit masgin the EMEA region whic
includes lower operating margins of the acquiresifmesses as compared with the other TS businegSegsorate operating expens
were $112.0 million in fiscal 2011 as compared w$82.3 million in fiscal 2010 primarily due to nperiodic pension expen
recognized in fiscal 2011 compared with pensioine recognized in fiscal 2010.

Operating income for fiscal 2010 was $635.6 million 3.3% of consolidated sales, as compared witlo@erating loss ¢
$1.02 billion for fiscal 2009. Both periods inclubieestructuring, integration and other chargesthagrior year included impairme
charges as was previously mentioned in this MD&#&clHding these charges, operating income for fi2€dl0 was $661.0 millior
or 3.5% of consolidated sales, as compared withmatipg income of $491.5 million, or 3.0% of conslalied sales, for fiscal 20C
EM operating income increased 38.7% to $491.6 onilfor fiscal 2010 and its operating income maigiproved 62 basis points
4.5% as compared with fiscal 2009 as all threeoregcontributed to the improvement. EMiperating income margin improved y
over year in each respective quarter of fiscal 2@ ended the June quarter at 5.6% which wasrgtdife in two years that EM’
operating income margin reached that level and widlsin the target range as established by manageri@&operating incom
increased 25.0% to $251.7 million for fiscal 201@l aperating income margin improved 21 basis pdmnt3.1% as compared wi
fiscal 2009. TS continued to incur incremental exges as it made additional investments in Asiajquaarly in China. Corporat
operating expenses were $82.3 million in fiscal @@k compared with $64.5 million in fiscal 2009.eThrior year corporal
operating expenses were unusually low due to tbaanic downturn and its impact on the accrual fprisy compensation which
based upon performance targets. Conversely, cdgerpenses in the fiscal 2010 are higher tharc&yprimarily due to an increa
in incentive compensation driven by the Companfinancial results for fiscal 2010 which exceedsthblished targets and wi
significantly higher as compared with fiscal 2009.

Interest Expense and Other Income (Expense), net

Interest expense for fiscal 2011 was $92.5 milliop,$30.7 million, or 49.7% from interest expen$&®1.7 million in fisca
2010. The year-oveyear increase in interest expense was due to aeaise in debt used to fund the acquisitions ofnassies an
the increase in working capital to support the ificgmt growth in sales.

Interest expense for fiscal 2010 was $61.7 milldown $16.9 million, or 21.5%, from interest expen$ $78.7 million in fisca
2009. During the first quarter of fiscal 2010, tbempany adopted an accounting standard which redju@trospective application
the standard’s provisions to prior years which tesuin recognizing incremental naash interest expense of $12.2 million
addition to the previously reported interest expenfs$66.5 million in fiscal 2009 (see footnote {@)tem 6.Selected Financial Dat
in this Form 10-K). Excluding the non-cash interegbense, the year-ovgear decrease in interest expense was due printarihe
elimination of interest on the Compasy$300.0 million 2% Convertible Senior Debenturdsclv were extinguished in March 20(
SeeFinancing Transactionfor further discussion of the Company’s outstandieft.
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Other income, net, was $10.7 million in fiscal 2044 compared with other expense, net, of $2.5amillh fiscal 2010 dt
primarily to foreign currency exchange gains coregawith losses in the prior year and higher inteimsome earned as compa
with the prior year. Other income, net, was $2.8iomi in fiscal 2010 as compared with other expems, of $11.6 million in fisci
2009 primarily related to the negative impactsaséfgn currency exchange losses.

Gain on Bargain Purchase and Other

During the first quarter of fiscal 2011, the Compatquired Unidux, a Japanese publicly traded comptorough a tend
offer in which the Company obtained over 95% of¢batrolling interest. After reassessing all asaetsuired and liabilities assum
the consideration paid was below the fair valu¢hefacquired net assets and, as a result, the Cympeognized a gain on barg
purchase of $31.0 million prend after tax and $0.20 per share on a diluted besaddition, the Company recognized other chs
of $2.0 million pretax, $1.4 million after tax and $0.01 per shareadtiluted basis primarily related to an impairmehbuildings ir
EMEA and recognized a loss of $6.3 million pae; $3.9 million after tax and $0.02 per shareadtiluted basis related to the w
down of prior investments in smaller technologyrtstg companies.

Gain on Sale of Assets

During fiscal 2010 and 2009, the Company recogniaedain on sale of assets as a result of certaimaea provision
associated with the prior sale of the Company’'sitgguvestment in Calence LLC. The gain amountedb&8 million pretax,
$5.4 million after tax and $0.03 per share on atdd basis in fiscal 2010 and $14.3 million pa; $8.7 million after tax and $0.
per share in fiscal 2009.

Income Tax Provision

Avnet's effective tax rate on income before income taxas 23.2% in fiscal 2011 as compared with 29.9%sial 2010. Th
fiscal 2011 effective tax rate was primarily impatttby the release of a tax reserve (valuation aime) on certain deferred
assets that were determined to be realizable asisfied further below, and, to a lesser extentfavetrable tax audit settlemer
partially offset by changes to existing tax posiioExcluding the benefit related to the releasa wix reserve, the effective tax |
for fiscal 2011 would have been 30.6%. Going fodydhe Company expects its fiscal year 2012 effediax rate to be more in 1
range of this adjusted rate rather than the effedtix rate experienced in fiscal 2011. The fiHl0 effective tax rate was impac
primarily by changes to estimates for existing pensitions and net favorable tax audit settlemenifset by a reserve establisl
against certain deferred tax assets.

Prior to fiscal 2011, the Company had a full reseagainst significant tax assets related to a legity in EMEA due to, amol
several other factors, a history of losses in thatty. Recently, the legal entity has been expeiiey improved earnings whi
required the partial release of the reserve toetlient the entity had taxable income during eactheffirst three quarters of fis
2011 and, therefore, positively impacted (decreadel Companys effective tax rate. During the fourth quarterfis€al 2011, th
Company determined a portion of the tax reservated|to this entity was no longer required duehi éxpected continuation
improved earnings in the future and, as a rehdt@ompanys effective tax rate was positively impacted (dasesl) upon the rele:
of the tax reserves. The Company will continueval@ate the need for a reserve against the taxsaasgociated with this legal en
and may release additional reserve in the future.

Avnet’s effective tax rate on income before income taxas 29.9% in fiscal 2010 as compared with an dffed¢ax rate on tr
loss before taxes of 3.2% in fiscal 2009. The fi&@l0 effective tax rate was impacted by changesstimates for existing t
positions, net favorable tax audit settlementssaifby a charge to establish a reserve againsticeltferred tax assets. The effec
tax rate in fiscal 2009 was negatively impactedh®sy nondeductibility of substantially all of the impairmtecharges and change:
existing tax positions, partially offset by a nak tbenefit of $21.7 million, or $0.14 per shardated primarily to the release of -
reserves due to the settlement of certain tax sirdiEurope. Excluding these items, the effectaserate for fiscal 2009 would he
been 28.6%.

Avnet's effective tax rate is primarily a function of tta rates in the numerous jurisdictions in whictides business appliec
the mix of pretax book income. The effective tax rate may vargryever year as a result of changes in tax req&nesnin th
jurisdictions in which the Company does businessrmanageme’s evaluation of its ability to generate suffici¢émtable income f
offset net operating loss carfyrwards as well as the establishment of reseroesififavorable outcomes of tax positions take
certain matters that are common to multinationstgmises and the actual outcome of those matters.
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Net Income (Loss)

As a result of the factors described in the pretgdiections of this MD&A, the Comparsyhet income was $669.1 million,
$4.34 per share on a diluted basis, as comparédneitincome of $410.4 million, or $2.68 per shamea diluted basis, in fiscal 2C
and a net loss of $1.13 billion, or $7.49 per sharéscal 2009. Fiscal 2011, 2010 and 2009 resukre impacted by certain items
presented in the following tables:

Year Ended July 2, 2011

Operating Pre-tax Net Diluted
Income (Loss Income (Loss Income (Loss EPS
(Thousands, except per share date
Restructuring, integration and other char $ 77,17¢ $ 77,17¢ $ (56,169 $ (0.3¢)
Gain on bargain purchase and ot — 22,71t 25,72( 0.17
Release of tax valuation allowance, net of taxmesse
adjustment: — — 32,90 0.21
Total $ (77,17¢  $ (54,46) $ 2,45  $ 0.0Z
Year Ended July 3, 201(
Operating Pre-tax Net Diluted
Income (Loss Income (Loss Income (Loss EPS *
(Thousands, except per share dat¢
Restructuring, integration and other char $ (25,419 $ (25,419 $ (18,789 $ (0.12)
Gain on sale of asse — 8,751 5,37( 0.0:
Net increase in tax reserv — — (842) (0.0
Total $ (25,419 $ (16,669 $ (14,26) $ (0.09)

* EPS does not foot due to roundi

Year Ended June 27, 200!

Operating Pre-tax Net
Income (Loss Income (Loss Income (Loss EPS
(Thousands, except per share dat¢
Impairment charge $ (1,411,12) $ (1,411,12) $ (1,376,98) $ (9.19)
Restructuring, integration and other char (99,349 (99,349 (65,310 (0.43)
Retrospective application of accounting stanc 291 (11,899 (7,250 (0.0%)
Gain on sale of asse — 14,31¢ 8,72 0.0¢
Net reduction in tax reservi — — 21,67 0.14
Total $ (1,510,17) $ (1,508,04) $ (1,419,14) $ (9.4))

Critical Accounting Policies

The Companys consolidated financial statements have been mdpa accordance with U.S. GAAP. The preparatibthest
consolidated financial statements requires the Gmypo make estimates and assumptions that affeaeported amounts of ass
liabilities, revenues and expenses during the tempmperiod. These estimates and assumptions aedbapon the Comparsy’
continuous evaluation of historical results andcipated future events. Actual results may diffem these estimates under diffel
assumptions or conditions.

The Securities and Exchange Commission definegariaiccounting policies as those that are, in rgameents view, mos

important to the portrayal of the Compasiyinancial condition and results of operations #mat require significant judgments :
estimates. Management believes the Company’s mitisataccounting policies relate to:
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Valuation of Receivables

The Company maintains an allowance for doubtfuloants for estimated losses resulting from custodefaults. Bad de
reserves are recorded based upon historic defeeiiages as well as the Companyegular assessment of the financial conditic
its customers. Therefore, if collection experiencehe financial condition of specific customersrevéo deteriorate, managem
would evaluate whether additional allowances andesponding charges to the consolidated statenfemterations are required.

Valuation of Inventories

Inventories are recorded at the lower of costt(fivs— first out) or estimated market value. Then@pany's inventories incluc
hightechnology components, embedded systems and camgputthnologies sold into rapidly changing, cydliaad competitiv
markets wherein such inventories may be subjeeatly technological obsolescence.

The Company regularly evaluates inventories foressc obsolescence or other factors that may reindentories les
marketable. Writedowns are recorded so that inventories reflectapproximate net realizable value and take into @etohe
Companys contractual provisions with its suppliers, whinhy provide certain protections to the Companypfaduct obsolescen
and price erosion in the form of rights of retuntgrice protection. Because of the large numbérasisactions and the comple:
of managing the process around price protectiork sdock rotations, estimates are made regardingsadents to the carryi
amount of inventories. Additionally, assumptionsatofuture demand, market conditions and decisiortiscontinue certain prodt
lines can impact the decision to write down inveeta If assumptions about future demand changectral market conditions ¢
less favorable than those projected by managememagement would evaluate whether additional vetitens of inventories a
required. In any case, actual values could bergiffiefrom those estimated.

Accounting for Income Taxes

Management judgment is required in determining ghavision for income taxes, deferred tax assets lamlities and th
valuation allowance recorded against net defemrdissets. The carrying value of the Company’®petating loss carrferwards i
dependent upon its ability to generate sufficientife taxable income in certain tax jurisdictiolmsaddition, the Company consid
historic levels of income, expectations and riskoagated with estimates of future taxable income@ @amgoing prudent and feasi
tax planning strategies in assessing a tax valuaiiowance. Should the Company determine thatribt able to realize all or part
its deferred tax assets in the future, an additimaduation allowance may be recorded against tbferded tax assets with
corresponding charge to income in the period s@t@rthination is made.

The Company establishes reserves for potentialiguamable outcomes of positions taken on certaimtatters. These reser
are based on managemenéssessment of whether a tax benefit is moreylitedn not to be sustained upon examination b
authorities. There may be differences between ttigipated and actual outcomes of these mattetsntlag result in reversals

reserves or additional tax liabilities in excesgtef reserved amounts. To the extent such adjustnaea warranted, the Compasy’

effective tax rate may potentially fluctuate agsuit.

In determining the Compang/’effective tax rate, management considers cutaentegulations in the numerous jurisdiction
which it operates, and requires managensefudgment for interpretation and application. Giem to such tax regulations
disagreements with the Company’s interpretatioapplication by tax authorities in any of the Comganmajor jurisdictions mg
have a significant impact on the Company’s providiar income taxes.

Restructuring, Integration and Impairment Charges

The Company has been subject to the financial ilnp&dntegrating acquired businesses and charglesedeto busine:
reorganizations. In connection with such event:jagament is required to make estimates abouttiaadial impact of such matt
that are inherently uncertain. Accrued liabilitaasd reserves are established to cover the cosivefance, facility consolidation &
closure, lease termination fees, inventory adjustmbased upon acquisition-related terminatioruppsier agreements and/or the
evaluation of the acquired working capital assétsefitory and accounts receivable), and wditevn of other acquired ass
including goodwill. Actual amounts incurred could different from those estimated.
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Additionally, in assessing the Compasyjoodwill for impairment the Company is requiredniake significant assumptic
about the future cash flows and overall performanfdés reporting units. The Company is also reedito make judgments regard
the evaluation of changes in events or circumstatita would more likely than not reduce the failue of any of its reporting un
below its carrying value, the results of which wbdletermine whether an interim impairment test nmesperformed. Should the
assumptions or judgments change in the future baged market conditions or should the structurthefCompanys reporting unit
change based upon changes in business strateggothpany may be required to perform an interim iimmpant test which me
result in a goodwill impairment charge.

During fiscal 2011 and 2010, the Company perforitednnual goodwill impairment test and determitiegte was no goodw
impairment and there are no reporting units wittiamial goodwill that are at risk of failing “ste df the goodwill impairment te:
During fiscal 2009, the Company performed an imegoodwill impairment test and recognized goodwaitld intangible ass
impairments. Seémpairment Chargef this MD&A for further discussion of the Compasyeévaluation of goodwill impairment
fiscal 2009.

Contingencies and Litigation

From time to time, the Company may become a parfyot otherwise involved in, pending and threateliggiation, tax
environmental and other matters in the ordinarys®wf conducting its business. Management doeanttipate that any continge
matters will have a material adverse impact onGbmpany’s financial condition, liquidity or resuti§ operations.

Revenue Recognition

The Company does not consider revenue recognitidreta critical accounting policy due to the namirés business becat
revenues are generally recognized when persuasgidenee of an arrangement exists, delivery has roedwr services have be
rendered, the sales price is fixed or determinahi@ collectability is reasonably assured. Generdtigse criteria are met upon
actual shipment of product to the customer. Acaemlyi, other than for estimates related to possieleirns of products fro
customers, discounts or rebates, the recordingwdnue does not require significant judgments tmeases. Provisions for retur
are estimated based on historical sales returedjtanemo analysis and other known factors. Promisiare made for discounts :
rebates, which are primarily volunsed, and are generally based on historical trandsanticipated customer buying patte
Finally, revenues from maintenance contracts, wihighdeferred and recognized in income over tleedffthe agreement, are
material to the consolidated results of operatmirthe Company.

Recently Issued Accounting Pronouncements

See Note 1 in thélotes to Consolidated Financial Statemerdstained in Item 15 of this Report for the disémsof recentl
issued accounting pronouncements.

Liquidity and Capital Resources
Cash Flows
Cash Flows from Operating Activities

The Company generated $278.1 million of cash frquerating activities in fiscal 2011 as compared witdsh usage
$30.4 million in fiscal 2010. These results are pased of: (1) cash flow generated from net inca@reluding noncash and oth
reconciling items, which includes the add-back eprciation and amortization, deferred income tagesckbased compensati
and other norash items (primarily the provision for doubtfulcaonts and periodic pension costs) and (2) cash fleed fo
working capital, excluding cash and cash equivale@ash used for working capital in fiscal 2011 sisted of growth in accour
receivable and inventory of $421.5 million and $32illion, respectively, partially offset by anciease in payables
$165.2 million. For EM, inventory and receivableewy year over year due to the strong growth inssakor TS, growth i
receivables was partially offset by an increasadoounts payables. Net days outstanding, in pdaticteceivable days, are ab:
pre-recession levels as there has not been an§icign change in terms provided to customers.

During fiscal 2010, the Company used $30.4 millddrcash from operating activities as compared witbh generated in fis
2009 of $1.1 billion. Cash used for working capitaking fiscal 2010 consisted of growth in accoumiseivable and inventory
$1.07 billion and $459.9 million, respectively, pally offset by an increase in accounts payabl&@63.3 million. For fiscal 201
sales increased 18.1%; however, the Company udgd®8d.4 million of cash from operating activitigssfund that growth as a res
of the significant improvement in working capitalecity which increased to a record 7.8 times. Ggsterated from working capi
during fiscal 2009 was the result of a $709.9 willreduction in receivables, a $483.5 million redhrcin inventory; both of whic
were partially offset by a $375.5 million reductimnaccounts payable.
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Cash Flows from Financing Activities

During fiscal 2011, the Company received proceefis$160.0 million from borrowings under the accountseivable
securitization program and repaid $109.6 million tiee 3.75% Notes acquired in the Bell acquisitignich were tendered durir
fiscal 2011. The Company also received procee@®8 & million, net of repayments, related to baréddrfacilities and other debt.

During fiscal 2010, the Company received proced¢d281.9 million from the issuance of notes, netegfayments for bank ai
other debt. In June 2010, the Company issued $300li6n 5.875% Notes due June 2020 and receivedgeds of $296.5 millior
net of discount and underwriting fees.

During fiscal 2009, the Company utilized cash 00&48 million related to net repayments of notes badk credit facilities
$300 million of which related to the extinguishmenthe 2% Convertible Senior Debentures due Ma&;H034 (the “Debentures”
In March 2009, $298.1 million of the Debentures avput back to the Company and the remaining $1ll&omivas repaid in Apri
2009. As a result of the substantial cash generditam operating activities during fiscal 2009, tiempany was able to use cast
hand to settle the $300 million of Debentures’ pipal plus accrued interest.

Other financing activities, net, in fiscal 2011,120and 2009 were primarily a result of cash reabifeg the exercise of stoc
options and the associated excess tax benefit.

Cash Flows from Investing Activities

During fiscal 2011, the Company used $691.0 millafncash for acquisitions, net of cash acquired| $h48.7 million fol
capital expenditures primarily related to systemeli@oment costs and computer hardware and softerguenditures. Also durin
fiscal 2011, the Company received $19.1 milliorpaiceeds associated with a divestiture and $10l®mof proceeds from the sa
of fixed assets.

During fiscal 2010, the Company used $112.4 millioihcash for investing activities, of which $69.8lion related to
acquisitions and investments. The Company alsavederoceeds of $11.8 million related to eatt-provisions from the prior sa
of an equity method investment as well as the shke small cost method investment. The Company $&&d9 million for capita
expenditures related to building and leasehold awpments, system development costs, computer haedard software ar
received $12.0 million in proceeds primarily rethte the sale of properties.

The Company used $314.9 million of cash relatedciquisitions during fiscal 2009. The Company akmeived $14.3 milliol
in proceeds related to earn-out provisions asstiatith the prior sale of the Company’s equity stmeent (seeResults o
Operations — Gain on Sale of Assets)addition, the Company utilized $110.2 million adsh for capital expenditures relatec
system development costs, computer hardware ahdagefas well as expenditures related to warehooisstruction costs.

Capital Structure

The Company uses a variety of financing arrangesaéath short-term and lorigrm, to fund its operations in addition to ful
generated from cash flow from operations. The Commdso uses diversified sources of funding so ithdbes not become over
dependent on one source and to achieve lower ¢dsinding through these different alternatives. 3éadinancing arrangemer
include public bonds, short-term and lotegm bank loans and an accounts receivable semiiith program. For a detail
description of the Comparg/external financing arrangements outstandingl@t2]l2011, refer to Note 7 to the consolidatedficial
statements appearing in Iltem 15 of this Report.
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The following table summarizes the Compangapital structure as of the end of fiscal 201thw&i comparison with the end
fiscal 2010:

July 2, % of Total July 3, % of Total
2011 Capitalization 2010 Capitalization
(Dollars in thousands)
Shor-term debr $ 243,07 4.4% $ 36,54¢ 0.8%
Long-term debt 1,273,50! 22.8 1,243,68. 29.0
Total debt 1,516,58: 27.2 1,280,23 29.8
Shareholder equity 4,056,07 72.8 3,009,11 70.2
Total capitalizatior $ 5,572,65 100.0 $ 4,289,34 100.0

Financing Transactions

The Company has a five-year $500.0 million unsetuexolving credit facility (the “Credit Agreementivith a syndicate ¢
banks that expires in September 2012. Under theliCAgreement, the Company may elect from variougrest rate optior
currencies and maturities. As of the end of fis2all, there were $122.1 million in borrowings camsling under the Cre
Agreement included in “other long-term debi"the consolidated financial statements. In addjtthere were $16.6 million in lett
of credit issued under the Credit Agreement whagresent a utilization of the Credit Agreement ciépaut are not recorded in 1
consolidated balance sheet as the letters of caeelinot debt. As of the end of fiscal 2010, theeze $93.7 million in borrowing
outstanding and $8.6 million in letters of credgued under the Credit Agreement.

The Company has an accounts receivable securtizgtiogram (the “Securitization Programi)ith a group of financi:
institutions that allows the Company to sell, aeolving basis, an undivided interest of up to&60million ($450.0 million prior t
the amendment in August 2010) in eligible receigablvhile retaining a subordinated interest in aiporof the receivables. T
Securitization Program does not qualify for salecamting and has a one year term that expiresea¢tid of August 2011 which
expected to be renewed for another year on comigatebms. There were $160.0 million in borrowingststanding under tl
Securitization Program at July 2, 2011 and no beirrgs outstanding at July 3, 2010. Interest on dwimgs is calculated using
base rate or a commercial paper rate plus a spfdad25%. The facility fee is 0.50%.

As a result of acquisitions during fiscal 2011, @@mpany acquired debt of $420.3 million, of wh§#21.1.9 million was repa
(including associated fees) at the acquisitionsiaies of July 2, 2011, the outstanding balancesdst®d with the acquired debt :
credit facilities consisted of $16.6 million in Bawrredit facilities and other debt primarily usea dupport the acquired forei
operations.

Notes outstanding as of the end of fiscal 2011 isted of:
*  $300.0 million of 5.875% Notes due March 15, 2!
*  $250.0 million of 6.00% Notes due September 1, z
*  $300.0 million of 6.625% Notes due September 156:
*  $300.0 million of 5.875% Notes due June 15, 2

The Company assumed 3.75% Notes due March 5, 20 iBell acquisition which had a fair value oft$10 million. Prior t
the Bell acquisition, the 3.75% Notes were conbéatinto Bell common stock; however, as a resulthef acquisition, the debt w
no longer convertible into shares. Under the teofrihe 3.75% Notes, the Company could have redeesoet or all of the 3.75
Notes for cash anytime on or after March 5, 201d tae note holders could have required the Compamyurchase for cash some
all of the 3.75% Notes on March 5, 2011 March 5,£20r March 5, 2019 at a redemption price equal@?6 of the principal amotL
plus interest. During the first quarter of fisc&l14, the Company issued a tender offer for the%.Ribtes for which approximate
$5.2 million was tendered and paid in Septembef2Dlring the third quarter of fiscal 2011, theebblders tendered substanti
all of the remaining notes for which $104.4 millisas paid in March 2011.

In addition to its primary financing arrangemeritee Company has several small lines of credit imous locations to fund tl
short-term working capital, foreign exchange, ovaftdand letter of credit needs of its whotiy¢ned subsidiaries in Europe, Asia
Canada. Avnet generally guarantees its subsidiaté® under these facilities.
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Covenants and Conditions

The Securitization Program discussed previouslyireg the Company to maintain certain minimum iesércoverage al
leverage ratios as defined in the securitizatio@gent in order to continue utilizing the Secmaition Program. The Securitizat
Program also contains certain covenants relatinthaaquality of the receivables sold. If these dbods are not met, the Compe
may not be able to borrow any additional funds #uedfinancial institutions may consider this an amation event, as defined in 1
agreement, which would permit the financial inditdns to liquidate the accounts receivables soldcawer any outstandil
borrowings. Circumstances that could affect the Gamy’s ability to meet the required covenants and canditof the Securitizatic
Program include the Comparsydngoing profitability and various other econonmigrket and industry factors. Management doe
believe that the covenants under the Securitizaimgram limit the Compang’ability to pursue its intended business stratagys
future financing needs. The Company was in compéaaith all covenants of the Securitization Progetrduly 2, 2011.

The Credit Agreement discussed Hinancing Transactionsontains certain covenants with various limitatioms deb
incurrence, dividends, investments and capital eajperes and also includes financial covenantsirgguthe Company to mainte
minimum interest coverage and leverage ratiosefieetl in the Credit Agreement. Management doesali¢ve that the covena
in the Credit Agreement limit the Compaayability to pursue its intended business strategyts future financing needs. T
Company was in compliance with all covenants ofG@hedit Agreement as of July 2, 2011.

Seeliquidity below for further discussion of the Company’s aafaility under these various facilities.
Liquidity

The Company had total borrowing capacity of $1lliopi at July 2, 2011 under the Credit Agreemend #me Securitizatic
Program. There were $122.1 million in borrowingststanding and $16.6 million in letters of credisued under the Cre
Agreement and $160.0 million outstanding underSkeuritization Program resulting in $801.3 milliohnet availability at the el
of fiscal 2011. During fiscal 2011, the Company haadl average daily balance outstanding under thaliiCAgreement c
$142.4 million and $405.4 million under the Sedmation Program. During fiscal 2010, the Compangl ha average daily balar
outstanding under the Credit Agreement of $92.Tionil The Company had no borrowings outstandingeurttie Securitizatic
Program during fiscal 2010.

The Company had cash and cash equivalents of $&1Bi@n as of July 2, 2011, of which $613.2 miliavas held outside t
U.S. As of July 3, 2010, the Company had cash asti equivalents of $1.09 billion, of which $507.8lion was held outside of tl
U.S. Liquidity is subject to many factors, suchrmsmal business operations as well as general edondinancial, competitivi
legislative, and regulatory factors that are beytiredl Companys control. Cash balances generated and held ifgfotecations ar
used for ongoing working capital, capital expenditure needd emsupport acquisitions. These balances are milyrexpected to k
permanently reinvested outside the U.S. If thesel§uvere needed for general corporate use in tBe the Company would inc
significant income taxes to repatriate cash helfibinign locations to the extent they are in exe#ssutstanding intercompany lo:
due to Avnet, Inc. from the foreign subsidiariesatdition, local government regulations may restlie Company ability to mow
funds among various locations under certain cir¢antes. Management does not believe such restisctigould limit thi
Company’s ability to pursue its intended businéssegy.

During fiscal 2011, the Company utilized $691.0limil of cash, net of cash acquired, for acquisgiowhich include
repayments of certain debt assumed in the acaunsitiThe Company assumed a total of $420.3 miltibdebt as a result of t
acquisitions and repaid $211.9 million of assumebtdincluding associated fees) at the acquisitiates. The Company has b
making and expects to continue to make strategiesiments through acquisition activity to the ektdye investments strengtt
Avnet's competitive position and meet managemenetsrn on capital thresholds.

In addition to continuing to make investments igasitions, the Company may repurchase up to areggge of $500 millio
of shares of the Comparsytommon stock through a share repurchase progopnoged by the Board of Directors in August 2(
The Company plans to repurchase stock from tinterte at the discretion of management, subjectratexyic considerations, mar
conditions and other factors. The Company may teauaior limit the stock repurchase program at ang tvithout prior notice.

During periods of weakening demand in the electrammponent and enterprise computer solutions tnguthe Compan
typically generates cash from operating activiti@enversely, the Company is more likely to use afpeg cash flows for workir
capital requirements during periods of higher grovilowever, during fiscal 2011, revenue was up @8year over year, yet t
Company generated $278.1 million in cash from dyp@ra as a result of significant growth in opergtincome which was in exce
of cash required for working capital purposes. Mgament believes that Avnstborrowing capacity, its current cash availabidity
the Company’s expected ability to generate opegatash flows are sufficient to meet its projectedricing needs.
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The following table highlights the Company’s ligitidand related ratios for the past two fiscal gear
COMPARATIVE ANALYSIS — LIQUIDITY

Years Ended

July 2, July 3, Percentage
2011 2010 Change
(Dollars in millions)

Current Asset $ 8,227. $ 6,630.: 24.1%
Quick Assets 5,439.¢ 4,666.¢ 16.€
Current Liabilities 4,477 3,439.¢ 30.2
Working Capital) 3,749. 3,190.¢ 17.t
Total Debt 1,516.¢ 1,280.: 18.F
Total Capital (total debt plus total sharehol’ equity) 5,572. 4,289.: 29.€
Quick Ratio 1.2:1 1.4:1
Working Capital Ratic 1.8:1 1.9:1
Debt to Total Capite 27.2% 29.8%

(@) This calculation of working capital is defined asrent assets less current liabiliti

The Companys quick assets (consisting of cash and cash eguitgabnd receivables) increased 16.6% from JuBO30 tc
July 2, 2011 primarily due to the increase in reables resulting from the increased volume of lessnassociated with acquisiti
since the prior fiscal year end, significant orgasales growth and the impact of the change irigoreurrency exchange spot rate
July 2, 2011 as compared with July 3, 2010. Curessets increased 24.1% due to the increase iivabtes and inventory, alsc
result of the recent acquisitions, the impact ef thange in foreign currency exchange spot rateshendoubledigit growth in sale:
Current liabilities increased 30.2% primarily dwethe increase in shotgérm borrowings used to support the growth in sdle
addition, current liabilities increased due to gtimin accounts payable, which was impacted by aitipns and the exchange t
changes mentioned previously. As a result of tletofa noted above, total working capital increabgdl7.5% during fiscal 201
Total debt increased by 18.5%, primarily due toittigease in shotierm borrowings, total capital increased 29.9% tneddebt t
capital ratio decreased as compared with July 3020 27.2%.

Long-Term Contractual Obligations

The Company has the following contractual obligagioutstanding as of July 2, 2011 (in millions):

Due in Less Due in Due in Due After
Total Than 1 Year 1-3 Years 4-5 Years 5 Years
Long-term debt, including amounts d
within one yea® $ 1,519.¢ $ 243.1 $ 426.2 $ 250.: $ 600.(
Interest expense on lo-term note<?) $ 372.t $ 70.2 $ 135. $ 92.¢ $ 74.C
Operating lease $ 304.€ $ 92.4 $ 120.: $ 49.5 $ 42.4

(1 Excludes discount on lo-term notes
(@ Represents interest expense due on-term notes with fixed interest rat:

At July 2, 2011, the Company had a liability focame tax contingencies of $175.2 million, whicl@ included in the abo

table. Cash payments associated with the remaliahiljity cannot reasonably be estimated as itifcdlt to estimate the timing at
amount of tax settlements. The Company does no¢mily have any material commitments for capitglenditures.
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Iltem 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About MakRisk

The Company seeks to reduce earnings and cashviiatility associated with changes in interest sa@d foreign curren
exchange rates by entering into financial arrangesyérom time to time, which are intendedpmvide a hedge against all ¢
portion of the risks associated with such volatilithe Company continues to have exposure to sekh to the extent they are
hedged.

The following table sets forth the scheduled méasiof the Company’s debt outstanding at Julyd,12(dollars in millions):

Fiscal Year
2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 Thereafter Total
Liabilities:
Fixed rate debt (1 $ 1.2 $ 1.2 $ 301.¢ $ 0.2 $ 250.C $ 600.( $1,154.:
Floating rate dek $ 241.¢ $ 123. $ — $ — $ — $ — $ 365.:

(1) Excludes discounts on lo-term notes
The following table sets forth the carrying valul dair value of the Company’s debt at July 2, 2(ddllars in millions):

Carrying Value at  Fair Value at Carrying Value at  Fair Value at

July 2, 2011 July 2,2011  July 3, 2010 July 3, 2010
Liabilities:
Fixed rate debt (1 $ 1,154 % 1,261.. $ 1,154 % 1,220.
Average interest rai 6.1% 6.1%
Floating rate dek $ 365.2 3% 365.2 $ 129t $ 129t
Average interest rai 2.2% 1.5%

(1) Excludes discounts on lo-term notes

Many of the Company’ subsidiaries, on occasion, purchase and selupt®ih currencies other than their functional encies
This subjects the Company to the risks associatddfluctuations in foreign currency exchange ratése Company reduces this 1
by utilizing natural hedging (offsetting receivabland payables) as well as by creating offsettiogitions through the use
derivative financial instruments, primarily forwaforeign exchange contracts with maturities of lg&m sixty days. The Compe
continues to have exposure to foreign currencysriskthe extent they are not hedged. The Compajugtacall foreign denominat
balances and any outstanding foreign exchange amiatto fair market value through the consolidag&tements of operatiol
Therefore, the market risk related to foreign extjeacontracts is offset by changes in valuatiorthef underlying items beil
hedged. The asset or liability representing the Value of foreign exchange contracts is classifiedhe captions dther currer
assets” or “accrued expenses and othes,applicable, in the accompanying consolidatedrzal sheets. A hypothetical 10% che
in currency exchange rates under the contractsamdisig at July 2, 2011 would result in an increaséecrease of approximat
$25.7 million to the fair value of the forward faya exchange contracts, which would generally gedtby an opposite effect on
related hedged positions.

Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Dz
The financial statements and supplementary dathséed under Item 15 of this Report.
Item 9. Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants orcénting and Financial Disclosure

None.
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Item 9A. Controls and Procedure
Disclosure Controls and Procedures

The Companys management, including its Chief Executive Offiaad Chief Financial Officer, have evaluated tHeativenes:
of the Company'’s disclosure controls and proced(aessuch term is defined in Rules 13a-15(e) arti1Bge) under the Securiti
Exchange Act of 1934 (the “Exchange Act”)) as af #nd of the reporting period covered by this reparForm 10K. Based or
such evaluation, the Chief Executive Officer ande€Rinancial Officer have concluded that, as @& #nd of the period covered
this report on Form 10-K, the Compasydisclosure controls and procedures are effestiaf that material information required
be disclosed by the Company in the reports thilied or submits under the Exchange Act is recorgedcessed, summarized ¢
reported, within the time periods specified by B8ecurities and Exchange Commiss®niles and forms and is accumulated
communicated to management, including the Compgapsihcipal executive officer and principal finaalcofficer, as appropriate
allow timely decisions regarding required discl@sur

During the fourth quarter of fiscal 2011, there &v@o changes to the Compasynternal control over financial reporting
defined in Rule 1385(f) of the Exchange Act) that have materiallyeatéd, or are reasonably likely to materially affabe
Company'’s internal control over financial reporting

Management’s Report on Internal Control Over Finandal Reporting

The Companys management, including its Chief Executive Offiaed Chief Financial Officer, is responsible fotadishing
and maintaining adequate internal control overrfaia reporting as defined in Rules 13a-15(f) aB@d)-15(f) under the Exchanc
Act. The Companyg internal control over financial reporting is dpgsd to provide reasonable assurance regardingelibility of
financial reporting and the preparation of finahstatements for external purposes in accordante generally accepted account
principles in the United States of America. Becanfsi@aherent limitations, internal control over dincial reporting may not prevent
detect misstatements. Also, controls may becomdeipaate because of changes in conditions, or thedef compliance with tt
policies or procedures may deteriorate. Managermemtlucted an evaluation of the effectiveness ofGbmpanys internal contra
over financial reporting as of July 2, 2011. In nmakthis assessment, management used the framesstaklished irnternal
Control — Integrated Framewoiksued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizatidriee Treadway Commission and conclu
that the Company maintained effective internal cardver financial reporting as of July 2, 2011.

The Company’s independent registered public acaogiriirm, KPMG LLP, has audited the effectivenessttee Companys
internal controls over financial reporting as ofiyJ2, 2011, as stated in its audit report whiclnduded herein.

Iltem 9B. Other Information

Not applicable.
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PART IlI
Item 10. Directors, Executive Officers and Corporate Goventce

The information called for by Item 10 is incorpamtin this Report by reference to the Compargéfinitive proxy stateme
relating to the Annual Meeting of Stockholders eiptited to be held on November 4, 2011.

Item 11. Executive Compensatio

The information called for by Item 11 is incorpamtin this Report by reference to the Comparggfinitive proxy stateme
relating to the Annual Meeting of Stockholders eiptited to be held on November 4, 2011.

Item 12. Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners aihnagement and Related Stockholder Matt:

The information called for by Item 12 is incorpamtin this Report by reference to the Compardggefinitive proxy stateme
relating to the Annual Meeting of Stockholders eiptited to be held on November 4, 2011.

Item 13. Certain Relationships and Related Transactions, abitector Independenci

The information called for by Item 13 is incorpamtin this Report by reference to the Compardggefinitive proxy stateme
relating to the Annual Meeting of Shareholders@pdited to be held on November 4, 2011.

Item 14. Principal Accounting Fees and Service

The information called for by Item 14 is incorpamtin this Report by reference to the Compardggefinitive proxy stateme
relating to the Annual Meeting of Stockholders eiptited to be held on November 4, 2011.
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PART IV
Iltem 15. Exhibits and Financial Statement Schedul

a. The following documents are filed as part of tReport:

Page
1. Consolidated Financial Statemel
Report of Independent Registered Public AccourfEing 38
Avnet, Inc. and Subsidiaries Consolidated Finargtatements
Consolidated Balance Sheets at July 2, 2011, dg8,J2010 39
Consolidated Statements of Operations for the yemded July 2, 2011, July 3, 2010 and June 27, 40
Consolidated Statements of Shareholders’ Equityiferyears ended July 2, 2011, July 3, 2010 and 2ién
2009 41
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the yeadsd July 2, 2011, July 3, 2010 and, June 27 42
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statem 43
2. Financial Statement Schedt
Schedule Il (Valuation and Qualifying Accounts) tbe years ended July 2, 2011, July 3, 2010 and 2in
2009 73
Schedules other than that above have been omittealibe they are not applicable or the requirednrdtion is
shown in the financial statements or notes the
3. Exhibits— The exhibit index for this Report can be found bagig on pag: 74
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 1&6{dhe Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the Regyidthas duly caused t
Report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigtieereunto duly authorized.

AVNET, INC.
(Registrant)

By: /s/ RICHARD HAMADA
Richard Hamadze
Chief Executive Officer and Direct

Date: August 12, 2011

KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS, that each personos# signature appears below hereby authorizes i res
each of Richard Hamada and Raymond Sadowski higoattorneys-irfact, for him or her in any and all capacities,stgn an
amendments to this Report, and to file the saméh exhibits thereto, and other documents in conoedherewith, with th
Securities and Exchange Commission, hereby ragfgnd confirming all that said attorneysfact, or their substitute, may do
cause to be done by virtue hereof.

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities &xgé Act of 1934, this Report has been signed bbipthe following persot
on behalf of the Registrant and in the capacitidicated on August 12, 2011.

Signature Title

/s| RICHARD HAMADA Chief Executive Officer and Director
Richard Hamad (Principal Executive Officer)

/s/ ROY VALLEE Chairman of the Board and Director
Roy Vallee

/sl ELEANOR BAUM Director

Eleanor Baun

/s/ J. VERONICA BIGGINS Director

J. Veronica Biggin:

/sl EHUD HOUMINER Director

Ehud Houmine

/sl JAMES A. LAWRENCE Director

James A. Lawrenc

/sl FRANK R. NOONAN Director

Frank R. Noonal

/sl RAY M. ROBINSON Director

Ray M. Robinsor

/s/ WILLIAM H. SCHUMANN, Il Director

William H. Schumann, Il

/s/ WILLIAM P. SULLIVAN Director

William P. Sullivan

/sl GARY L. TOOKER Director

Gary L. Tookel

/sl RAYMOND SADOWSKI Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer

Raymond Sadowsl| (Principal Financial and Accounting Officer)
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accountindrirm

The Board of Directors and Shareholders
Avnet, Inc.:

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balsheets of Avnet, Inc. and subsidiaries (the Gmypas of July 2, 2011 al
July 3, 2010, and the related consolidated statesyafroperations, shareholdeesjuity, and cash flows for each of the years in
threeyear period ended July 2, 2011. In connection withaudits of the consolidated financial statementshave also audited t
financial statement schedule for each of the ymatise threeyear period ended July 2, 2011, as listed in tltempanying index. W
also have audited the Company’s internal contr@rdwnancial reporting as of July 2, 2011, basediteria established imternal
Control — Integrated Framewoiiksued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizatairtee Treadway Commission (COSO). 1
Companys management is responsible for these consolidatadcial statements, for maintaining effectiveeimal control ove
financial reporting, and for its assessment of #ffectiveness of internal control over financialpoeting, included in th
accompanyingMlanagement’s Report on Internal Control over Finah&eporting. Our responsibility is to express an opinion
these consolidated financial statements, an opinirthe financial statement schedule and an opinionthe Companyg' internal
control over financial reporting based on our audit

We conducted our audits in accordance with thedstals of the Public Company Accounting OversighafBiaUnited States). Tho
standards require that we plan and perform thetataliobtain reasonable assurance about whethéinthecial statements are free
material misstatement and whether effective inecoatrol over financial reporting was maintainedall material respects. O
audits of the consolidated financial statementhudied examining, on a test basis, evidence suppmptiie amounts and disclosure:
the financial statements, assessing the accouptingiples used and significant estimates made hyagement, and evaluating
overall financial statement presentation. Our aaflinternal control over financial reporting indied obtaining an understanding
internal control over financial reporting, assegdine risk that a material weakness exists, artthteand evaluating the design &
operating effectiveness of internal control basedh® assessed risk. Our audits also included eirig such other procedures as
considered necessary in the circumstances. Wevbeliat our audits provide a reasonable basisuoppinions.

A companys internal control over financial reporting is @pess designed to provide reasonable assuranadiregthe reliability of
financial reporting and the preparation of finahstatements for external purposes in accordante generally accepted account
principles. A company internal control over financial reporting inclsdéhose policies and procedures that (1) pertaithé&
maintenance of records that, in reasonable detadurately and fairly reflect the transactions drapositions of the assets of 1
company; (2) provide reasonable assurance thatacsions are recorded as necessary to permit pteggaof financial statements
accordance with generally accepted accounting ipies; and that receipts and expenditures of tlepamy are being made only
accordance with authorizations of management anectdirs of the company; and (3) provide reasonalsteurance regardit
prevention or timely detection of unauthorized asitjon, use, or disposition of the compasigssets that could have a material e
on the financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal cohtiver financial reporting may not prevent or détmisstatements. Also, projectic
of any evaluation of effectiveness to future pesiage subject to the risk that controls may becimadequate because of change
conditions, or that the degree of compliance whithpolicies or procedures may deteriorate.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statetaerferred to above present fairly, in all materégspects, the financial position
Avnet, Inc. and subsidiaries as of July 2, 2011 &g 3, 2010, and the results of their operat@mgd their cash flows for each of t
years in the thre-year period ended July 2, 2011, in conformity wittS. generally accepted accounting principles. Atsmur
opinion, the related financial statement schedoteehich of the years in the thrgear period ended July 2, 2011, when considert
relation to the basic consolidated financial staehtaken as a whole, presents fairly, in all niakeespects, the information set fo
therein. Furthermore, in our opinion, Avnet, In@intained, in all material respects, effective iné& control over financial reportir
as of July 2, 2011, based on criteria establishddternal Control — Integrated Frameworgsued by the Committee of Sponsor
Organizations of the Treadway Commission.

As discussed in note 1 to the consolidated findrstetements, effective June 28, 2009, the Compalopted FASB ASC 4700,
Debt with Conversion and Other Optio(formerly FSP APB 14-1).

/sl KPMG LLP

Phoenix, Arizona
August 11, 2011
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AVNET, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

July 2, July 3,

2011 2010
(Thousands, except share amount

ASSETS
Current asset:

Cash and cash equivalel $ 675,33: $ 1,092,10:
Receivables, less allowances of $107,739 and $8Lli&9pectively (Note & 4,764,29. 3,574,54.
Inventories 2,596,47! 1,812,76!
Prepaid and other current ass 191,11( 150,75¢
Total current asse 8,227,20 6,630,16!
Property, plant and equipment, net (Note 419,17: 302,58
Goodwill (Notes 2 and € 885,07 566,30¢
Other asset 374,11 283,32:
Total asset $  9,905,56 $ 7,782,38

LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS ' EQUITY
Current liabilities:

Borrowings due within one year (Note $ 243,07¢ $ 36,54¢
Accounts payabl 3,561,63. 2,862,291
Accrued expenses and other (Note 673,01¢ 540,77¢

Total current liabilities 4,477,72 3,439,61!
Long-term debt (Note 7 1,273,50! 1,243,68
Other lon¢-term liabilities (Notes 9 and 1! 98,26: 89,96¢

Total liabilities 5,849,49! 4,773,26!

Commitments and contingencies (Notes 11 anc
Shareholder equity (Notes 4, 12 and 1«
Common stock $1.00 par; authorized 300,000,00Cesh#&@sued 152,835,000 shares and

151,874 ,000 shares, respectiv 152,83! 151,87-
Additional paic-in capital 1,233,20! 1,206,13.
Retained earning 2,293,511 1,624,44.
Accumulated other comprehensive income (Not 377,21: 27,36
Treasury stock at cost, 37,802 shares and 37, 7@slrespectivel (695) (692)

Total shareholde’ equity 4,056,071 3,009,11

Total liabilities and sharehold¢ equity $  9,905,56! $ 7,782,38

See notes to consolidated financial statements
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AVNET, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

Years Ended

July 2, July 3, June 27,
2011 2010 2009
(Thousands, except share amount:
Sales $26,534,41 $19,160,17 $16,229,89
Cost of sale: 23,426,60 16,879,95 14,206,90
Gross profit 3,107,80! 2,280,21 2,022,99
Selling, general and administrative exper 2,100,65! 1,619,19i 1,531,52.
Impairment charges (Note — — 1,411,122
Restructuring, integration and other charges (NG 77,17¢ 25,41¢ 99,34:
Operating income (lost 929,97¢ 635,60( (1,018,99)
Other income (expense), r 10,72« 2,48( (11,627
Interest expens (92,457) (61,749 (78,66¢)
Gain on bargain purchase and other (Not 22,71t — —
Gain on sale of assets (Note — 8,751 14,31¢
Income (loss) before income tax 870,96¢ 585,08: (1,094,963
Income tax provision (Note ¢ 201,89 174,71. 34,744
Net income (loss $ 669,06! $ 410,37 $ (1,129,71)
Net earnings (loss) per share (Note :
Basic $ 4.3¢ $ 2.71 $ (7.49 @
Diluted $ 4.34 $ 2.6¢ $ (7.49 @
Shares used to compute earnings (loss) per shate ():
Basic 152,48: 151,62¢ 150,89¢
Diluted 154,33 153,09: 150,89¢

@) As adjusted for the retrospective application ofaoounting standard. See Note 1 to the consotidatancial statement

See notes to consolidated financial statements
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AVNET, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY
Years Ended July 2, 2011, July 3, 2010 and June 2009

Accumulated

Additional Other Total
Common Paid-In Retained Comprehensive Treasury Shareholder¢
Stock Capital Earnings Income Stock Equity
(Thousands)
Balance, June 28, 2008 (as adjuste—see Note 1 150,417 $ 1,166,04. $ 2,343,78 $ 482,17¢ $ 479 $ 4,141,94
Net loss — — (1,129,71) — — (1,129,71)
Translation adjustments (Note — — — (237,909 — (237,909
Pension liability adjustment, net of tax of $16,{Blbtes 4,

10 and 15 — — — (26,18)) — (26,18
Comprehensive loss (Note (1,393,79)
Stock option and incentive programs, including tedaax

benefits of $65: 682 12,48: — — (452) 12,712
Balance, June 27, 2009 151,09¢ 1,178,52. 1,214,07. 218,09: (932) 2,760,85
Net income — — 410,37( — — 410,37(
Translation adjustments (Note — — — (159,51°) — (159,51°)
Pension liability adjustment, net of tax of $19,Z8lbtes 4,

10 and 15 — — — (31,21%) — (31,21%)
Comprehensive income (Note 219,63t
Stock option and incentive programs, including tedaax

benefits of $2,10 77E 27,60¢ — — 23¢ 28,62:
Balance, July 3, 2010 151,87 1,206,13: 1,624,44. 27,36: (692) 3,009,11
Net income — — 669,06¢ — — 669,06¢
Translation adjustments (Note — — — 329,88 — 329,88:
Pension liability adjustment, net of tax of $12,qRbtes 4,

10 and 15 — — — 19,96t — 19,96¢
Comprehensive income (Note 1,018,91:
Stock option and incentive programs, including tedaax

benefits of $4,68! 961 27,077 — — 3) 28,03t
Balance, July 2, 201: 152,83 $ 1,233,200 $ 2,293,511 $ 377,21. % (695) $ 4,056,07

See notes to consolidated financial statements

41




Table of Contents

AVNET, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Years Ended

July 2, July 3, June 27,
2011 2010 2009
(Thousands)
Cash flows from operating activitie
Net income (loss $ 669,06 $ 410,37( $(1,129,71)
Non-cash and other reconciling iten
Depreciation and amortizatic 81,38¢ 60,64 65,78
Deferred income taxes (Note 15,96¢ 46,42+ (92,787
Stocl-based compensation (Note : 28,93 28,36: 18,26¢
Gain on sale of assets (Note — (8,757 (14,319
Gain on bargain purchase and other (Not (22,71Y — —
Impairment charges (Note — 1,411,12
Other, net (Note 1t 56,84t 15,38¢ 38,41«
Changes in (net of effects from businesses acqui
Receivable! (421,45 (1,070,30) 709,90¢
Inventories (321,939 (459,91) 483,45:
Accounts payabl 165,18! 963,33: (375,509
Accrued expenses and other, 26,80 (15,967) 3,40¢
Net cash flows provided by (used for) operatingvitats 278,07¢ (30,415 1,118,03!
Cash flows from financing activitie
Borrowings under accounts receivable securitizapimgram, ne(Note 7) 160,00( — —
Issuance of notes in a public offering, net of &8e costs (Note — 296,46¢ —
Repayment of notes (Note (109,600 — (300,000
Proceeds from (repayments of) bank debt, net (Kp 1,644 (1,739 (90,449
Proceeds from (repayments of) other debt, net (Mp 7,23¢ (2,809 (16,367
Other, net (Note 12 3,93( 4,83¢ 1,564
Net cash flows provided by (used for) financing\aties 63,21: 296,77 (405,24
Cash flows from investing activitie
Purchases of property, plant and equipn (148,70) (66,88¢) (110,219
Cash proceeds from sales of property, plant angetnt 10,62 12,01¢ 13,157
Acquisitions of operations and investments, netash acquired (Note : (690,99) (69,339 (314,94)
Cash proceeds from divestiture activities (Not: 19,10¢ 11,78¢ 14,31¢
Net cash flows used for investing activit (809,97 (112,42) (397,68
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and casvaénts 51,91¢ (5,755 (11,637
Cash and cash equivaler
— (decrease) increa: (416,76 148,18: 303,47:
— at beginning of yee 1,092,10: 943,92! 640,44¢
—at end of yea $ 675,33 $ 1,092,10. $ 943,92

Additional cash flow information (Note 1!

See notes to consolidated financial statements
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AVNET, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1. Summary of significant accounting policies

Principles of consolidatior— The accompanying consolidated financial statemiectade the accounts of the Company an
of its majority-owned and controlled subsidiarid#.intercompany accounts and transactions have leéiminated.

Cash and cash equivalents The Company considers all highly liquid investmenih an original maturity of three months
less to be cash equivalents.

Inventories— Inventories, comprised principally of finishedagts, are stated at cost (first-in, fimit) or market, whichever
lower.

Investments— Investments in joint ventures and entities in whith Company has an ownership interest greater3@gém an
exercises control over the venture are consolidatétte accompanying consolidated financial statémeNoneontrolling interests i
the years presented are not material and, as H,rasuincluded in the caption “accrued expenges @her”in the accompanyir
consolidated balance sheets. Investments in j@ntwes and entities in which the Company exerdggsficant influence but n
control are accounted for using the equity methidte Company invests from time to time in venturesvhich the Company’
ownership interest is less than 20% and over wiiheh Company does not exercise significant influeriech investments ¢
accounted for using the cost method. The fair \safoe investments not traded on a quoted exchargestimated based upon
historical performance of the ventures, the verui@recasted financial performance and managem&waluation of the ventures’
viability and business models. To the extent thekbealue of an investment exceeds its assesseuddaie, the Company will recc
an appropriate impairment charge. Thus, the cagryalue of the Company’s investments approximaiesvalue.

Depreciation and amortization— Depreciation and amortization is generally preddor by the straightne method over tt
estimated useful lives of the assets. The estimadetll lives for depreciation and amortization gygcally as follows: buildings—
30 years; machinery, fixtures and equipment — 3ddrs; and leasehold improvementsover the applicable remaining lease t
or useful life if shorter.

Long-lived assets— Longdived assets are reviewed for impairment whenevens or changes in circumstances indicate
the carrying amount of the assets may not be reablee An impairment is recognized when the esthatndiscounted cash flo
expected to result from the use of the asset anglvigntual disposition is less than its carryingant. An impairment is measurec
the amount by which an assetiet book value exceeds its estimated fair valbhe.Company continually evaluates the carryinge
and the remaining economic useful life of all ldiged assets and will adjust the carrying value &émel related depreciation &
amortization period if and when appropriate.

Goodwill — Goodwill represents the excess of the purchase mier the fair value of net assets acquired. Ahtasts fo
goodwill impairment are performed by applying arfeilue based test to AvnetSix reporting units, defined as each of the 1
regional businesses, which are the Americas, EME&dpe, Middle East and Africa), and Asia, withiack of the Company’
operating groups. The Company conducts its peritait for goodwill impairment annually, on the fiday of the fiscal fourt
quarter. A twostep process is used to evaluate goodwill for inmpant. The first step is to determine if there nsiadication o
impairment by comparing the estimated fair valueach reporting unit to its carrying value inclugliexisting goodwill. Goodwiill i
considered impaired if the carrying value of a mipg unit exceeds the estimated fair value. Theosd step, which is perform
only if there is an indication of impairment, detgnes the amount of the impairment by comparingithglied fair value of th
reporting units goodwill with its carrying value. To estimaterfaalue of each reporting unit, the Company usesrabination ¢
present value and market valuation techniques whiitizes Level 3 criteria under fair value measueat standards. The estime
fair values could change in the future due to clkeang market and business conditions that couktathe assumptions and estim
used in these valuation techniques.

Foreign currency translatior— The assets and liabilities of foreign operatiores taanslated into U.S. Dollars at the exch:
rates in effect at the balance sheet date, withreteded translation adjustments reported as aragpaomponent of shareholders’
equity and comprehensive income. Results of omeratare translated using the average exchange patesiling throughout tt
period. Transactions denominated in currenciesratmen the functional currency of the Avnet busgesit that is party to tl
transaction (primarily trade receivables and pagsbhre translated at exchange rates in effedieab&lance sheet date or u
settlement of the transaction. Gains and losses Boch translation are recorded in the consolidatattments of operations &
component of “other income (expense), nét.fiscal 2011, 2010 and 2009, gains or lossesoogidn currency translation were
material.
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AVNET, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Conti nued)

Income taxes— The Company follows the asset and liability metbbdccounting for income taxes. Deferred incomeasset
and liabilities are recognized for the estimateifel tax impact of differences between the findnsiatement carrying amounts
assets and liabilities and their respective taxebaBeferred income tax assets and liabilitiesnaeasured using enacted tax rate
effect for the year in which those temporary difeces are expected to be recovered or settledeffbet on deferred income 1
assets and liabilities of a change in tax rate®é®gnized in earnings in the period in which tlesvrrate is enacted. Based u
historical and projected levels of taxable incomd analysis of other key factors, the Company nenpnrd a valuation allowan
against its deferred tax assets, as deemed negesssiate such assets at their estimated nétabdd value.

The Company establishes reserves for potentialiguamable outcomes of positions taken on certaimtatters. These reser
are based on managemenéssessment of whether a tax benefit is moreylitedn not to be sustained upon examination b
authorities. There may be differences between tiigipated and actual outcomes of these mattetsntiag result in reversals
reserves or additional tax liabilities in excesgtef reserved amounts. To the extent such adjustnaea warranted, the Compasy’
effective tax rate may potentially fluctuate agsuit.

No provision for U.S. income taxes has been madagpproximately $2.0 billion of cumulative unrereitt earnings of foreic
subsidiaries at July 2, 2011 because those earm@irgsexpected to be permanently reinvested outsideU.S. A hypothetic
calculation of the deferred tax liability, assumithgse earnings were remitted, is not practicable.

Self-insurance— The Company is primarily self-insured for workerompensation, medical, and general, product
automobile liability costs; however, the Compangoahas a stop-loss insurance policy in place td line Companys exposure 1
individual and aggregate claims made. Liabilities these programs are estimated based upon outsjanthims and clain
estimated to have been incurred but not yet regdstesed upon historical loss experience. Thesmats are subject to variabi
due to changes in trends of losses for outstandiaigns and incurred but not recorded claims, iniclgdexternal factors such
future inflation rates, benefit level changes aladht settlement patterns.

Revenue recognitior-Revenue from product sales is recognized when psisel evidence of an arrangement exists, del
has occurred or services have been rendered, the pece is fixed or determinable and collectthilis reasonably assur
Generally, these criteria are met upon shipmentustomers. Most of the Compasyproduct sales come from product Ay
purchases from a supplier and holds in inventorypoktion of the Compang’ sales are shipments of product directly fror
suppliers to its customers. In such circumstanéeset negotiates the price with the customer, pgssupplier directly for tt
product shipped and bears credit risk of collecifyagment from its customers. Furthermore, in sudp-8hipment arrangemer
Avnet bears responsibility for accepting returngafduct from the customer even if Avnet, in turas a right to return the produc
the original supplier if the product is defectivénder these terms, the Company serves as the paingith the customer ar
therefore, recognizes the sale and cost of saleegbroduct upon receiving notification from theplier that the product has shipp

In addition, the Company has more limited contraktelationships with certain of its customers ang@pliers whereby Avn
assumes an agency relationship in the transadti®uch arrangements, the Company recognizes ¢hasfeociated with serving as
agent in sales with no associated cost of sales.

Revenues from maintenance contracts are recognégally over the life of the contracts, generalinging from one to thr
years.

Revenues are recorded net of discounts, rebatesstimdated returns. Provisions are made for digsoamd rebates, which i
primarily volumebased, and are based on historical trends andipatéd customer buying patterns. Provisions fourret ar
estimated based on historical sales returns, creglito analysis and other known factors.
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AVNET, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Conti nued)

Comprehensive income (loss) Comprehensive income (loss) represents net inctwes) (for the year adjusted for change
shareholders’ equity from noshareholder sources. Accumulated comprehensivenadtems typically include currency transla:
and the impact of the Company’s pension liabilitjuatment, net of tax (see Note 4).

Stock-based compensatieAThe Company measures shaased payments, including grants of employee sbptions, at fai
value and recognizes the associated expense aotfselidated statement of operations over the ceipériod (see Note 12).

Concentration of credit risk— Financial instruments that potentially subject ®@empany to a concentration of credit
principally consist of cash and cash equivalent$ #ade accounts receivable. The Company investsxtess cash primarily
overnight Eurodollar time deposits and institutionaoney market funds with quality financial institns. The Company se
electronic components and computer products priynarioriginal equipment and contract manufactur@rsluding the military an
military contractors, throughout the world. To redwcredit risk, management performs ongoing credifuations of its customers’
financial condition and, in some instances, hasiabtl insurance coverage to reduce such risk. Tmep@ny maintains reserves
potential credit losses, but has not experiencgdnaaterial losses related to individual customargmups of customers in a
particular industry or geographic area.

Fair value of financial instruments- The Company measures financial assets and ligilét fair value based upon exit pr
representing the amount that would be receivecherséle of an asset or paid to transfer a liabilityan orderly transaction betwe
market participants. Accounting standards requipriis used in valuation techniques for measuriirgvédue on a recurring or non-
recurring basis be assigned to a hierarchical lagefollows: Level 1 are observable inputs thaemfquoted prices for identic
assets or liabilities in active markets. Level 2 abservable markétased inputs or unobservable inputs that are coratéd b
market data and Level 3 are unobservable inputsatiganot corroborated by market data. The carrgimgpunts of the Compary’
financial instruments, including cash and cash \eajants, receivables and accounts payable apprt¢ithair fair values at July
2011 due to the shotérm nature of these instruments. At July 2, 20ad duly 3, 2010, the Company had $164,157,00(
$643,281,000, respectively, of cash equivalentkviiere recorded based upon Level 1 criteria. Sge K for further discussion
the fair value of the Company’s fixed rate longsiedebt instruments and sbevestmentén this Note 1 for further discussion of
fair value of the Company’s investments in uncoisitéd entities.

Derivative financial instruments— Many of the Companyg’ subsidiaries, on occasion, purchase and seluptedn currencie
other than their functional currencies. This sutsiethe Company to the risks associated with fluatna in foreign currenc
exchange rates. The Company reduces this riskiliging natural hedging (offsetting receivables grayables) as well as by creal
offsetting positions through the use of derivativencial instruments, primarily forward foreignarange contracts with maturit
of less than sixty days. The Company continuesateehexposure to foreign currency risks to the dxtieey are not hedged. T
Company adjusts all foreign denominated balancesaay outstanding foreign exchange contracts tonfairket value through t
consolidated statements of operations. Therefbeentarket risk related to the foreign exchangereott is offset by the change:
valuation of the underlying items being hedged. &bset or liabilityepresenting the fair value of foreign exchangetreats, base
upon Level 2 criteria under the fair value measweis standards, is classified in the captions ‘fotugrent assets” oratcrue:
expenses and otheg’s applicable, in the accompanying consolidatedrnua sheets and were not material. In additionCtirapan'
did not have material gains or losses related éoftinward contracts which are recorded in “otherome (expense), neth the
accompanying consolidated statements of operations.

The Company has, from time to time, entered inbgedransactions that convert certain fixed rata tievariable rate debt.
the extent the Company enters into such hedgeaittines, those fair value hedges and the hedgedadeladjusted to current mar
values through interest expense.

The Company generally does not hedge its investrimeits foreign operations. The Company does naééreimto derivativ
financial instruments for trading or speculativegmses and monitors the financial stability andlitrstanding of its counterparties.

Accounts receivable securitizatier The Company has an accounts receivable securitivatiogram whereby the Comp:
may sell receivables in securitization transactiand retain a subordinated interest and servidigigis to those receivables. 1
securitization program is accounted for as amalance sheet financing through the securitizatfomccounts receivable (see Note
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Fiscal year— The Company operates on a “52/53 we#gtal year, which ends on the Saturday closesgiutte 30th. Fisc
2011 and 2009 contained 52 weeks while fiscal 2(iained 53 weeks. Unless otherwise noted, adreetes to “fiscal 20116r
any other “year” shall mean the Company'’s fiscalrye

Management estimates- The preparation of financial statements in confeymiith U.S. generally accepted accoun
principles requires management to make estimatdsagsumptions that affect certain reported amoahtassets and liabilitie
disclosure of contingent assets and liabilitiethatdate of the financial statements and the regdamounts of revenues and expe
during the reporting period. Actual results coulitfied from those estimates.

Adoption of accounting standard Fhe Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASBYued authoritative guidance wh
requires the issuer of certain convertible debtrimsents that may be settled in cash (or othertg)ss@ conversion to separal
account for the debt and equity (conversion optimathponents of the instrument. The standard regjuire convertible debt to
recognized at the present value of its cash flossodinted using the narenvertible debt borrowing rate at the date ofasee. Th
resulting debt discount from this present valuewation is to be recognized as the value of thatggomponent and recordec
“additional paid in capital.” The discounted cortitde debt is then required to be accreted upsidate value and recorded as non-
cash interest expense over the expected life ofcthrevertible debt. In addition, deferred financingsts associated with 1
convertible debt are required to be allocated betwthe debt and equity components based uponvelasilues. During the fir
quarter of fiscal 2010, the Company adopted thasdsdrd, however, there was no impact to the fi2040 consolidated financ
statements because the Company’s 2% Convertibl@oiSBebentures (the “Debenturesty which this standard applied, w
extinguished in March 2009. Due to the requiredosgiective application of this standard to prioriqds, the Company adjusted
prior period comparative consolidated financiatestzgents, which are summarized in the followingdabl

As a result of the adoption of this accounting d&ad, the Company recognized the cumulative efféthe change on cert:
components of equity as of the beginning of thdiesdrfiscal year presented in the consolidatetbstants of shareholdersguity a:
presented in the following table:

June 28, 200¢
As Reportec Adjustments As Adjusted

(Thousands)
Additional paid in capita® $ 1,122,85: $ 43,19( $ 1,166,04:
Retained earning@ $ 2,379,72. $ (35,940 $ 2,343,78

@ Adjustment represents the value of the equity carepbof the Debentures, net of deferred ta

(@  Adjustment represents the accretion of the delatodist, net of tax, over the expected life of theo®wures, which was fi
years from the date of issuance, or March 2009 this was the earliest date the holders haghtito exercise their p
option.

Fiscal Year Ended

Adjustments-increase (decrease June 27, 200¢
(Thousands, excef

per share data)

Selling, general and adminstrative exper®) $ (297)
Interest expens® 12,18t
Income tax provisiol (4,649
Net income (7,250
Basic EPS $ (0.0%)
Diluted EPS $ (0.0%)

() Adjustment represents a reduction to deferred fimancost amortization expense as a result of afiog a portion of such co:
to the equity component of the Debentu

@ Adjustment represents incremental -cash interest expense as a result of accretingebenture debt discour
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Recently issued accounting pronouncemestsin June 2011, the FASB amended its guidance on ptiesentation «
comprehensive income in financial statements. Tineramled guidance eliminates the option to presempooents of othi
comprehensive income (“OCIgs part of the statement of changes in equityeftstentities can elect to present items of netnire
and OCI in one continuous statement (a “statemeodmprehensive income™pr can elect to present these items in two sepértd
consecutive statements. The guidance, which ictafeebeginning the Comparg/fiscal year 2013, will not have an impact on
Company’s consolidated financial statements agtigance only relates to changes in financial staté presentation.

In April 2011, the FASB issued new guidance to aehicommon fair value measurement and disclosggreaments betwe:
U.S. generally accepted accounting principles (“UGBAP”) and International Financial Reporting Stards (“IFRS”).This nev
guidance, which is effective beginning the Comparfyscal year 2012, amends current U.S. GAAP failue® measurement ¢

disclosure requirements to include increased tramesey around valuation inputs and investment caiegtion. The adoption of tt
new guidance is not expected to have a materighdtngpn the Company’s consolidated financial stateme

2. Acquisitions and divestitures
Acquisitions
During fiscal 2011, 2010 and 2009, the Company &medisixteen businesses which are presented ifollogving table.

Approximate

Annualized Acquisition
Acquired Business Group & Region Revenues (1) Date
(Millions)
Fiscal 2011
itX Group Ltd. TS Asia/Pac $ 16C January 201
Center Cel EM Americas 5 November 201!
Eurotone EM Asia/Pac 30 October 201(
Broadbanc EM Americas 8 October 201(
Unidux EM Asia/Pac 37C July 2010
Tallard Technologie TS Americas 25C July 2010
Bell Microproducts Inc EM & TS Americas 3,021 July 2010
TS EMEA
Fiscal 2010
Servodata HP Divisio TS EMEA $ 20 April 2010
PT Datamatiot TS Asia/Pac aC April 2010
Sunshine Joint Stock Compa TS Asia/Pac 30 November 200!
Vanda Groug TS Asia/Pac 30 October 200¢
Fiscal 2008
Abacus Group pl EM EMEA $ 40C January 200!
Nippon Denso Industry Co., Lt EM Asia/Pac 14C December 200
Ontrack Solutions Pvt. Lt TS Asia/Pac 13 July 2008
Horizon Technology Group p TS EMEA 40C June 200¢
Source Electronics Corporatit EM Americas 82 June 200t

1) Represents the approximate annual revenue frenatlquired businessesiost recent fiscal year end prior to acquisitior
Avnet and based upon average foreign currency exgheates for those periot
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The Bell and Unidux acquisitions and purchase paieedescribed further below. The remaining actiais completed durir
fiscal 2011 were acquired for an aggregate purchase of $124,678,000, net of cash acquired.

Also during fiscal 2011, the Company recognizedroesuring and integration charges, and transactiod other cos
associated with the acquisitions, all of which wezeognized in the consolidated statement of ojpersiand are described furthe
Note 17.

Unidux, a Japanese publicly traded company, wasigstthrough a tender offer in which the Compabyamed over 95¢
controlling interest. The non-controlling intergss recorded at fair value but was not materiaé atquisition of the nooentrolling
interest in Unidux was completed during the secqudrter of fiscal 2011. As mentioned, Unidux wagudlicly traded compar
which shares were trading below its book valueafgreriod of time. In a tender offer, Avnet offer@ghurchase price per share
Unidux that was above the prevailing trading ptioereby representing a premium to the then recading levels. Even though f
purchase price was below book value, 95% of thedWnishareholders tendered their shares. As a rekeltCompany acquir
Unidux net assets excluding cash of $163,770,00@ faurchase price of $132,780,000, net of cashieed} and recognized a g
on bargain purchase of $30,990,000 pamd after tax and $0.20 per share on a dilutedsb&sior to recognizing the gain,
Company reassessed the assets acquired andikskilisumed in the acquisition.

Bell

On July 6, 2010, subsequent to fiscal year 201€,Gbmpany completed its acquisition of Bell, a eadded distributor «
storage and server products and solutions and aempamponents products, providing integration andport services to OEN
VARSs, system builders and end users in the U.Sha@a, EMEA and Latin America. Bell operated bottisribution and single ti
reseller business and generated sales of appradin®@.0 billion in calendar 2009, of which 42%94knd 17% was generatec
North America, EMEA and Latin America, respectiveljhe consideration for the transaction totaled5$@%1,000 which consist
of $7.00 in cash for each share of Bell commonkstagdstanding, cash payment for Bell equity awaedg] cash payments requi
under existing Bell change of control agreemenitss the assumption of $323,321,000 of Bell net déibtthe debt acquired, Avr
repaid approximately $209,651,000 of debt (inclgdassociated fees) immediately after closing. Ashefend of fiscal 2011, t
Company had completed the integration of Bell imbth the EM and TS operating groups and has adtigév@nticipated cost savi
synergies, for which the full impact of the costiags benefit is expected to be reflected in thet fjuarter of fiscal 2012.

Preliminary allocation of purchase price

The Bell acquisition was accounted for as a puetmsiness combination. Assets acquired and ligsilassumed are recort
in the accompanying consolidated balance sheéteat éstimated fair values, using managenseastimates and assumptions, ¢
July 6, 2010 (see following table).

As a result of the evaluation of the fair valuahs# acquired assets and assumed liabilities, tmep@oy recognized $60,000,(
for an identifiable amortizable intangible asseg(dlote 6).

During the second quarter of fiscal 2011, the Campacognized a contingent liability of $18,000,0@0 potential unpai
import duties associated with the former Bell Laimerica business. Prior to the acquisition of BsllAvnet, U.S. Customs a
Border Protection (“CBP”) initiated a review of thmporting process at one of Ball'subsidiaries and identified complia
deficiencies. Subsequent to the acquisition of BglAvnet, CBP began a compliance audit to iderdifiy duty owed as a result
the prior noneompliance. As of July 2, 2011, the Company comthto evaluate the potential exposure based uptimefuactivitie:
associated with the audit and the Comparmbility to obtain appropriate documentation fertain transactions under audit.
Company has evaluated projected duties, interespanalties that potentially may be imposed assaltref the audit and, as furtt
information has become available during the fougtlarter of fiscal 2011, the Company reduced thetimgent liability fron
$18,000,000 to $10,000,000, which was recordedomdgill. Depending on the ultimate resolution oétatter with CBP, tt
Company estimates the range of the potential expasssociated with this liability may be up to $i@lion; however, the Compal
believes the contingent liability recorded is asmeable estimate of the liability based upon faetslable at this time.
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The Company acquired accounts receivable which wewrerded at the estimated fair value amounts; kewedjustments

acquired amounts were not significant as book vapmoximated fair value due to the short term meatd accounts receivables. -
gross amount of accounts receivable acquired wa$,8$35,000 and the fair value recorded was $3630589 which is expected

be collected.
July 6, 201C
(Thousands
Current assel $ 705,98t
Property, plant and equipme 13,02:
Goodwill 224,26!
Identifiable intangible ass 60,00(
Other asset 37,96¢
Total assets acquire 1,041,23
Current liabilities, excluding current portion aiic-term deb! 396,87!
Long-term liabilities 30,21¢
Total debt 358,45:
Total liabilities assume 785,54t
Net assets acquire $  255,69:

The amount of goodwill associated with the Bellwsiion that is expected to be deductible forpaxposes is not significant.

Significant synergies related to the integrationtted acquired Bell business have resulted in oeyatost reductions; su
expense synergy savings were a primary driver@gttess of purchase price paid over the valussefta and liabilities acquired.

Pro forma results

Unaudited pro forma financial information is presehbelow as if the acquisition of Bell occurredtta beginning of fisc
2010. The pro forma information presented belowsdwua purport to present what actual results wbialde been had the acquisit
in fact occurred at the beginning of fiscal 2010y does the information project results for anyufatperiod. In addition, the
forma results exclude the impact of any synergiéadized as a result of integration activity.

Pro Forma Results
Twelve Months Ended
July 3, 2010
(Thousands, except pe
share data)

Pro forma sale $ 22,291,57
Pro forma operating incon 660,76¢
Pro forma net incom 404,24¢
Pro forma diluted earnings per sh $ 2.64

In order to create the pro forma results in thédetalbove, the combined results for Avnet and Ballthe twelve months end
fiscal 2010 were adjusted for the following:

. $8,571,000 pre¢ax, $6,074,000 after tax, or $0.04 per dilutedrshimr fiscal 2010 of intangible asset amortiza
associated with the Bell acquisition; ¢

. $5,181,000 pre¢ax, $3,168,000 after tax, or $0.02 per dilutedratfar fiscal 2010 for Bell transaction costs thadre
expensed upon closin

Pro forma financial information is not presented fiscal 2011 because the Bell acquisition occumedluly 6, 2010, which
three days after the beginning of the Compariigcal year 2011. The accompanying consolidatiaement of operations for the fi
quarter of fiscal 2011 included sales of $781,186,felated to the acquired Bell business. As ofehé of the second quarter
fiscal 2011, the Company was in the process ofgnatiing the Bell business into the Avnet existingsibess, which included
systems integration, and administrative, salesl@gidtics operations integrations. As a resuliertie first quarter of fiscal 2011,
Company was no longer able to identify the acquBell business separately from the on-going Avnsiifiess.
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Prior year acquisition-related exit activity accoted for in purchase accounting

Prior to fiscal 2010, certain restructuring chargese recognized as part of purchase accountingrupitvious accountil
standards. During fiscal 2007 and 2006, the Compaggrded certain exielated liabilities through purchase accountingch
consisted of severance for workforce reductions;cancelable lease commitments and lease terminetiarges for leased facilitit
and other contract termination costs associatetl thié exit activities. During fiscal 2011, the Caanp paid $462,000 in ca
associated with these reserves. In addition, thegamy released $2,258,000 of lease reserves thratdetermined to be no lon
required and recorded the credit to “restructurimgegration and other chargesdther than as a credit to goodwill because
goodwill was impaired in fiscal 2009 (see Note &3. of July 2, 2011, the total remaining reserve $a827,000 which relat
primarily to facility exit costs and other contraat lease obligations which management expects substantially utilized by the €
of fiscal 2013.

Investments and divestitures

The Company completed its divestiture of New ProSgm. (“ProSys”), a valuadded reseller and provider of IT infrastruc
solutions. Avnet acquired ProSys as part of thé &mjuisition on July 6, 2010, and announced itsrition to sell this business at 1
time. Total consideration included a cash paymémasing, a short-term receivable and a three-gean-out based upon ProSys’
anticipated results. As a result of the divestitutee Company received cash proceeds of $19,1080@d0wrote off goodwi
associated with the ProSys business (see Notedsyah or loss was recorded as a result of thestituee. Also during fiscal 201
the Company recognized a loss of $6,308,000 pre$@&857,000 after tax and $0.02 per share onugedilbasis included inGain or
bargain purchase and other” related to the writerdof prior investments in smaller technology stgstcompanies (see Notes 5
6 for other amounts included in “Gain on bargainchase and other”).

During fiscal 2010, the Company recognized a gaithe sale of assets as a result of certain eatrprovisions associated w
the prior sale of the Company’s equity investmenCalence LLC. The gain on sale of assets was $&@8 pretax, $5,370,00
after tax and $0.03 per share on a diluted basiadtition, the Company sold a cost method investraad received proceeds
approximately $3,034,000 in the second quarteiscaf 2010.

During fiscal 2009, the Company recognized a gaithe sale of assets amounting to $14,318,00@gx;e$8,727,000 after t
and $0.06 per share as a result of certain earprowisions associated with the prior sale of tlen@anys equity investment
Calence LLC.

3. Accounts receivable securitization

In August 2010, the Company amended its accountivable securitization program (the “Prograwi)h a group of financi
institutions to allow the Company to sell, on aaleing basis, an undivided interest of up to $600,000 ($450,000,000 prior to
amendment) in eligible U.S. receivables while mateg a subordinated interest in a portion of tteeieables. The eligible receivab
are sold through a wholly-owned bankrupteyaote special purpose entity that is consolid&tedinancial reporting purposes. St
eligible receivables are not directly availablesttisfy claims of the Compars/'creditors. Financing under the Program doe
qualify as off-balance sheet financing, as a resit receivables and related debt obligation rarnai the Companyg’ consolidate
balance sheet as amounts are drawn on the ProgtenProgram has a one year term that expires antief August 2011 which
expected to be renewed for another year on comigat@tmns. There were $160,000,000 in borrowingstanting under the Progr.
at July 2, 2011 and no amounts outstanding aslpf3Ji2010. Interest on borrowings is calculatethgs base rate or a commer
paper rate plus a spread of 0.425%. The facilityi$e0.50%. Expenses associated with the Progrdmchwvere not material in tl
past three fiscal years, consisted of programlitia@ind professional fees recorded in selling,egahand administrative expense
the accompanying consolidated statements of opesati
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4. Comprehensive income (loss)

The following table illustrates the accumulatedabakes of comprehensive income items at July 2, 204ty 3, 2010 ar
June 27, 2009:

July 2, July 3, June 27,
2011 2010 2009
(Thousands)
Accumulated translation adjustments, $ 461,21 $ 131,32¢ $ 290,84t
Accumulated pension liability adjustments, netrafame taxe: (84,00:) (103,96 (72,757)
Total $ 377,21 $ 27,36: $ 218,09:

5. Property, plant and equipment, net

Property, plant and equipment are recorded atasubtonsist of the following:

July 2, July 3,
2011 2010
(Thousands)

Land $ 22,46 $ 20,69
Buildings 112,07: 102,87!
Machinery, fixtures and equipme 805,09: 663,91!
Leasehold improvemen 92,72¢ 56,68¢
1,032,36! 844,17.
Less— accumulated depreciation and amortiza (613,18) (541,590

$ 41917 $ 302,58

Depreciation and amortization expense related apgaty, plant and equipment was $57,516,000, $2908® and $50,653,0
in fiscal 2011, 2010 and 2009, respectively. Initoid, the Company recognized other charges of @8,0 pretax, $1,413,00
after tax and $0.01 per share on a diluted basisapily related to an impairment of buildings in B (see Notes 2 and 6 for otl
amounts included in “Gain on bargain purchase dhdrt).

6. Goodwill and intangible assets

The following table presents the carrying amoungaddwill, by reportable segment, for the periodsspnted:

Electronics Technology
Marketing Solutions Total
(Thousands)
Carrying value at July 3, 20: $ 242,62 $ 323,68 $ 566,30
Additions 100,35t 244,17. 344,52
Adjustments — (53,56%) (53,565
Foreign currency translatic 9,88¢ 17,91: 27,79¢
Carrying value at July 2, 20: $ 352,87 $ 532,20: $  885,07.

The goodwill additions are a result of the Bell gisgion as well as other businesses that wereigdjduring fiscal 2011 (s
Note 2). The Unidux acquisition resulted in $30,280 of negative goodwill which was included"Gain on bargain purchase
other” on the consolidated statement of operat{see Notes 2 and 5 for other amounts included3airi on bargain purchase
other”). The adjustments to goodwill resulted from the wofé of goodwill as a result of the sale of Pro§gee Note 2) and t
recognition of intangible assets associated with@juisition completed during fiscal 2011 ($etangible assets this Note 6).
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The following table presents the gross amount a@idgoll and accumulated impairment since fiscal 2@68%f July 3, 2010 a
July 2, 2011. All of the accumulated impairment wesognized in fiscal 2009.

Electronics Technology
Marketing Solutions Total
(Thousands)
Gross goodwill at July 3, 201 $ 1,287,73 $ 658,30 $ 1,946,04.
Accumulated impairmer (1,045,110 (334,62 (1,379,73)
Carrying value at July 3, 20! $ 242,62t $ 323,68 $ 566,30¢
Gross goodwill at July 2, 201 $ 1,397,98 $ 866,82t $ 2,264,80!
Accumulated impairmer (1,045,11)) (334,629 (1,379,73)
Carrying value at July 2, 20: $ 352,87 $ 532,20: $  885,07.

The Company performs its annual goodwill impairmtst on the first day of its fiscal fourth quartkr addition, if and whe
events or circumstances change that would moréyltken not reduce the fair value of any of itsagjmg units below its carryir
value, an interim test would be performed. Baseshuppe Companyg annual impairment tests performed for fiscal 28ad 201(
there was no impairment of goodwill in the respetfiscal years. During fiscal 2009, the Compangogmized goodwill ar
intangible asset impairment charges of $1,411, My@etax, $1,376,983,000 after tax and $9.13 per stemalting from an interil
impairment test performed at the end of the secuadter and from the annual impairment test peréatiahuring the fourth quarter
fiscal 2009. The non-cash charge had no impacthenGompanys compliance with debt covenants, its cash flowsa\ailable
liquidity, but did have a material impact on itsisolidated financial statements.

Fiscal 2009 impairment charges

In the second quarter of fiscal 2009, due to tlkeady decline in the Comparsymarket capitalization primarily related to
global economic downturn, the Company determinedngerim impairment test was necessary. Based uperiest results, it w
determined that the fair values of four of the Camys six reporting units were below their carryinguesd as of the end of t
second quarter of fiscal 2009. Accordingly, the @amy recognized a non-cash goodwill impairment ghaf $1,317,452,000 pre-
tax, $1,283,308,000 after-tax and $8.51 per shaits second quarter of fiscal 2009 results.

A two step process is used to test for goodwillamment. The first step is to determine if theraisindication of impairme
by comparing the estimated fair value of each rémgpunit to its carrying value including existiggodwill. Goodwill is considere
impaired if the carrying value of a reporting ueiceeds the estimated fair value. Upon an indinatfdmpairment, a second ste|
performed to determine the amount of the impairniyntetermining the implied fair value of all ofetmeporting uni assets ai
liabilities, including identifiable intangible agse and comparing the implied fair value of goodiwilth its carrying value. Tf
determination of fair value in both step one amg $tvo utilized Level 3 criteria under fair valueasurement standards.

To estimate the fair value of its reporting units Step one, the Company utilized a combinatiorincbme and mark
approaches. The income approach, specifically aodisted cash flow methodology, included assumptifams among other
forecasted revenues, gross profit margins, operatiofit margins, working capital cash flow, pentgrowth rates and long te
discount rates, all of which require significantigunents by management. These assumptions tookagtount the recessioni
environment at the time the test was being perfdrarad its impact on the Compasybusiness. In addition, the Company utiliz
discount rate appropriate to compensate for thétiaddl risk in the equity markets regarding then@anys future cash flows
order to arrive at a control premium considerecpsuiable based upon historical comparable trarmasti
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The results of step one indicated that the goodwllited to the EM Asia, TS EMEA and TS Asia repgrtunits was full
impaired. Therefore, the Company only performeg $ie of the impairment analysis for its EM Amesaaporting unit. Step tv
of the impairment test required the Company to failue all of the reporting ung’ assets and liabilities, including identifie
intangible assets, and compare the implied faiueaf goodwill to its carrying value. The resulfsstep two indicated that t
goodwill in the EM Americas reporting unit was afsitly impaired.

During the fourth quarter of fiscal 2009, the Compgerformed its annual goodwill impairment testiabhindicated that thre
of its six reporting units, including EM Asia an EMEA, continued to have fair values below thaimging values. As a result, 1
Company was required to recognize the impairmerdadafitional goodwill which arose subsequent to sheond quarter of fisc
2009 in the EM Asia and TS EMEA reporting units. thé non-cash goodwill impairment charges of $62,280 pre-and after ta
and $0.41 per share recognized in the fourth gua4d.,433,000 related to the business acquirdadpan in the third quarter of fis
2009, which was assigned to the EM Asia reportinify d\ccounting standards require goodwill fromaguisition to be assigned
a reporting unit and also requires goodwill to bstéd on a reporting unit level, not by individaahuisition. As noted above,
annual impairment analysis indicated that the yalue of the EM Asia reporting unit continued tol®dow its carrying value. As
result, the goodwill from the acquisition was raqdito be impaired. The remaining $20,849,000 efitipairment charges relatec
additional goodwill in the TS EMEA reporting unitimarily as a result of final acquisition adjustnt®luring the purchase pr
allocation period related to an acquisition for gfhthe goodwill had been fully impaired in the setguarter of fiscal 2009.

Intangible assets

As of July 2, 2011, “Other assetgicluded customer relationship intangible asset$ wi carrying value of $124,662,0
consisting of $170,417,000 in original cost valuel #45,755,000 of accumulated amortization andidareurrency translatio
These assets are being amortized over a weightethgs life of eight years. During fiscal 2011, tBempany recognize
$89,372,000 in intangible assets associated wifliaitions completed during fiscal 2011. Intangibfset amortization expense
$21,240,000, $8,629,000 and $12,272,000 in fis0all22010 and 2009, respectively. Amortization egeefor the next five years
expected to be approximately $21,000,000 eachfgediscal 2012 through 2015 and $16,000,000 fat&0

During fiscal 2009, the Company evaluated the recability of its longhved assets at each of the reporting units w
goodwill was deemed to be impaired. Based upon éki@uation, which utilized Level 3 criteria undiair value measureme
standards, the Company determined that certaintsofiinortizable intangible assets were impaired.aAgesult, the Compa
recognized a non-cash intangible asset impairmieatge of $31,393,000 prend after tax and $0.21 per share during the st
quarter of fiscal 2009. In conjunction with the aahgoodwill impairment test, the Company againlested the recoverability of
long-lived assets during the fourth quarter ofdls2009 and determined that no impairment had oedur

7. External financing

Short-term debt consists of the following:

July 2, July 3,
2011 2010
(Thousands)
Bank credit facilities $ 81,95! $ 35,611
Borrowings under the accounts receivable secutitizgrograrn 160,00( —
Other debt due within one ye 1,12¢ 932
Shor-term debr $ 243,07 $ 36,54¢

Bank credit facilities consist of various committedd uncommitted lines of credit with financialtifigtions utilized primaril:
to support the working capital requirements of igmeoperations. The weighted average interestaatthe bank credit facilities w
7.8% and 4.0% at the end of fiscal 2011 and 20d€pactively. In connection with acquisitions congdiein fiscal 2011 (see Note
the Company assumed debt of $420,259,000, of w2di 933,000 was repaid (including associated fee)e acquisition date
As of the end of the fiscal 2011, the outstandimiabces associated with the assumed debt and demdlities consisted 1
$16,627,000 in bank credit facilities and othertdmiimarly used to support the acquired foreignrapens. The total debt assun
during fiscal 2011 included the 3.75% Notes dued&024 acquired from Bell which had a fair valdi&$10,000,000 and that t
substantially been repaid as is discussed furtblemb
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In August 2010, the Company amended its accountivable securitization program (the “Prograwi)h a group of financi
institutions to allow the Company to sell, on aaleing basis, an undivided interest of up to $600,000 ($450,000,000 prior to -
amendment) in eligible receivables while retainmmgubordinated interest in a portion of the reddas The Program does
qualify for sale treatment and, as a result, anydwangs under the Program are recorded as delttenonsolidated balance sh
The Program contains certain covenants, all of wtie Company was in compliance with as of Julg®,1. The Program has a
year term that expires in August 2011 which is exge to be renewed for another year on comparabimst There we
$160,000,000 in borrowings outstanding under tregfam at July 2, 2011 and no amounts outstandidylgt3, 2010. Interest
borrowings is calculated using a base rate or anvential paper rate plus a spread of 0.425%. Thétyafee is 0.50%.

Long-term debt consists of the following:

July 2, July 3,
2011 2010
(Thousands)

5.875% Notes due March 15, 20 $  300,00( $ 300,00(
6.00% Notes due September 1, 2 250,00( 250,00(
6.625% Notes due September 15, 2 300,00( 300,00(
5.875% Notes due June 15, 2( 300,00t 300,00t
Other lon¢-term debt 126,51. 97,217
Subtotal 1,276,51. 1,247,21
Discount on note (3,007%) (3,53€)
Long-term debt $ 1,273,50 $ 1,243,68

In June 2010, the Company issued $300,000,000 8f5% Notes due June 15, 2020. The Company recgivackeeds ¢
$296,469,000 from the offering, net of discount anderwriting fees. The 5.875% Notes due 2020 emdally in right of payme
with all existing and future senior unsecured deht interest is payable in cash samniually in arrears on June 15
December 15.

The Company has a five-year $500,000,000 unseaenazlving credit facility (the “Credit Agreementiyith a syndicate «
banks which expires in September 2012. Under thediCAgreement, the Company may elect from varimisrest rate option
currencies and maturities. The Credit Agreementains certain covenants, all of which the Compaiag /m compliance with as
July 2, 2011. As of the end of fiscal 2011, themrev$122,093,000 in borrowings outstanding undeGtedit Agreement included
“other long-term debtin the consolidated financial statements. In addijtithere were $16,602,000 in letters of creditessunde
the Credit Agreement which represent a utilizabbthe Credit Agreement capacity but are not reedrith the consolidated balai
sheet as the letters of credit are not debt. Ay 3ul2010, there were $93,682,000 in borrowingsstanding under the Cre
Agreement and $8,597,000 in letters of credit idsureder the Credit Agreement.

As a result of the acquisition of Bell, the Compaassumed 3.75% Notes due March 2024 which had ravédie o
$110,000,000 and that were convertible into Bethown stock; however, as of the acquisition compfetiate, the debt was
longer convertible into shares. Under the termshef3.75% Notes, the Company could have redeemme so all of the 3.75'
Notes for cash anytime on or after March 5, 201d tae note holders could have required the Compapyrchase for cash some
all of the 3.75% Notes on March 5, 2011, March 6142 or March 5, 2019 at a redemption price equal0% of the principi
amount plus interest. During the first quarter istél 2011, the Company issued a tender offer ier 3.75% Notes for whir
$5,205,000 was tendered and paid in September irthg the third quarter of fiscal 2011, the nbtdders tendered substantii
all of the remaining notes for which $104,395,008swpaid in March 2011. The remaining $400,000 ttwd not tendered we
included in “other long-term debt” in the preceegltable.
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Aggregate debt maturities for fiscal 2012 throughi@ and thereafter are as follows (in thousands):

2012 $ 243,07
2013 124 54!
2014 301,64t
2015 321
2016 250,00
Thereaftel 600,00(
Subtotal 1,519,59.
Discount on note (3,009
Total debi $ 1,516,58:

At July 2, 2011, the carrying value and fair vabfehe Companys debt was $1,516,588,000 and $1,626,394,000, cesply.
Fair value was estimated primarily based upon glotarket prices.

8. Accrued expenses and other

Accrued expenses and other consist of the following

July 2, July 3,
2011 2010
(Thousands)
Payroll, commissions and related accrt $ 320,95 $ 212,83
Income taxes (Note ¢ 72,49¢ 100,42.
Other®) 279,56: 227,52

$ 673,01 $ 540,77t

@ Includes restructuring reserves recorded thropghchase accounting and throughestructuring, integration and ot
charge” (see Notes 2 and 17). Amounts presented in thisorapere individually not significan
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9. Income taxes

The components of the provision for income taxesimdicated in the table below. The tax provisiondeferred income tax
results from temporary differences arising printlipfrom inventory valuation, accounts receivabkduation, net operating loss
certain accruals and depreciation, net of any cbag the valuation allowance.

Years Ended

July 2, July 3, June 27,
2011 2010 2009
(Thousands)
Current:
Federal $ 64,47¢ $ 61,89: $ 69,83¢
State and loce 11,72« 9,78¢ 7,68¢
Foreign 109,73: 56,60¢ 50,00"
Total current taxe 185,93 128,28 127,53:
Deferred:
Federal 41,02¢ 24,25: (55,747
State and loce 5,27: 1,29( (5,250
Foreign (30,33¢) 20,88: (31,799
Total deferred taxe 15,96¢ 46,42+ (92,787)
Provision for income taxe $ 201,89 $ 174,71 $ 34,74«

The provision for income taxes noted above is cdaeghbased upon the split of income (loss) befocerme taxes from U.
and foreign operations. U.S. income (loss) befamine taxes was $273,287,000, $241,029,000 and,&IA3000) and forei(
income (loss) before income taxes was $597,679 $894,054,000 and ($361,053,000) in fiscal 2011024nd 2009, respectively.

A reconciliation between the federal statutoryabe and the effective tax rate is as follows:

Years Ended

July 2, July 3, June 27,
2011 2010 2009

Federal statutory ra: 35.(% 35.(% (35.0%
State and local income taxes, net of federal be 1t 1.2 0.2
Foreign tax rates, net of valuation allowan (5.3 (6.€) (2.0
Release of valuation allowance, net of U.S. taxeasp (as discussed belc (7.9 — —
Change in contingency resen 1.4 2.€ 11
Tax audit settlemen (0.9 (1.6 (2.9
Impairment charge — — 41.¢
Other, ne (1.9 _(0.9) 0.2)

Effective tax rate 23.2% 29.% 3.2%

Foreign tax rates generally consist of the impddhe difference between foreign and federal steyutates applied to foreis
income (losses) and also include the impact ofatada allowances against the Company’s otherwiséizable foreign loss carry-
forwards.

Avnet's effective tax rate on income before income taxas 23.2% in fiscal 2011 as compared with an affedix rate ¢
29.9% in fiscal 2010. As compared to fiscal 20b@, fiscal 2011 effective tax rate was primarily aofed by a net tax benefit rela
to the release of a tax valuation allowance (reSemw certain deferred tax assets which were datedrto be realizable (discus:
further below) and, to a lesser extent, net favlerabx audit settlements, partially offset by chesmido existing tax positior
Excluding the benefit related to the release oftthevaluation allowance, the effective tax rate fiscal 2011 would have be
30.6%.
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During fiscal 2011, the Company had a full tax wion allowance against significant tax assetstedldo a legal entity
EMEA due to, among several other factors, a histdriosses in that entity. Recently, the entity bagn experiencing improv
earnings which has required the partial releasefvaluation allowance to the extent the entitgt texable income during each
the first three quarters of fiscal 2011. Therefdhe, release of valuation allowance, net of the. th% expense, positively impac
the Companys effective tax rate. In addition, during the féuduarter of fiscal 2011, the Company determingumbiion of the ta
valuation allowance for this legal entity was nader required due to the expected continuatiomgirdoved earnings in the futt
and, as a result, the Company’s effective tax e positively impacted (decreasegon the release of the tax valuation allowe
net of the U.S. tax expense. The Company will cardito evaluate the need for a valuation allowaganst these tax assets
may release additional valuation allowance assediafith this entity in the future. Factors that eomsidered in such an evalua
include historic levels of income, expectations @is#l associated with estimates of future taxabt®ine and ongoing prudent :
feasible tax planning strategies.

Avnet’s effective tax rate on income before income taxas 29.9% in fiscal 2010 as compared with an dffedax rate ¢
3.2% in fiscal 2009. The fiscal 2009 effective take was impacted by nateductible impairment charges and a change to ati
for existing tax positions, net of favorable taxdésettlements of $21,672,000. Excluding the intdchese items, the effective
rate for fiscal 2009 would have been 28.6%.

The significant components of deferred tax assadsliabilities, included primarily in “other assétsn the consolidated balar
sheets, are as follows:

July 2, July 3,
2011 2010
(Thousands)
Deferred tax asset
Inventory valuatior $ 13,68( $ 8,27¢
Accounts receivable valuatic 27,91¢ 24,26¢
Federal, state and foreign tax loss c-forwards 394,09: 361,98¢
Various accrued liabilities and oth 57,68¢ 101,25«
493,37" 495,78.
Less— valuation allowanc (310,77 (331,42)
182,60: 164,35¢
Deferred tax liabilities
Depreciation and amortization of property, plard aquipmen (43,309 (23,177)
Net deferred tax asse $ 139,30: $ 141.18.

The change in the valuation allowance from fisdal@ to fiscal 2011 was a combination of (i) a reiurc of $76,055,00
primarily due to the previously mentioned releatgaduation allowance in EMEA, of which $64,215,008pacted the effective t
rate and $11,840,000 did not impact the effectivertite because deferred income taxes and incoapag@ables associated with
release of the valuation allowance were recordeidiwbifset a portion of the benefit as a resulthef release and (ii) an increas
$55,404,000 related primarily to the translatiopaut of foreign currency exchange rates and acdjwiaéuation allowances.

As of July 2, 2011, the Company had foreign netrafieg loss carrferwards of approximately $1,333,787,000, of wl
$37,065,000 will expire during fiscal 2012 and 20&8bstantially all of which have full valuationavances, $289,220,000 h:
expiration dates ranging from fiscal 2014 to 208d the remaining $1,007,502,000 have no expiratae. The carrying value of 1
Company’s net operating loss carry-forwards is ddpat upon the Comparsyability to generate sufficient future taxabledne ir
certain tax jurisdictions. In addition, the Compamonsiders historic levels of income, expectatiand risk associated with estime
of future taxable income and on-going prudent aadible tax planning strategies in assessing ealaation allowance.
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Accruals for income tax contingencies (or accrdatsunrecognized tax benefits) are included in faed expenses and other”
and “other long term liabilitiesdn the consolidated balance sheet. These contiggeserves relate to various tax matters thatt
from uncertainties in the application of complegdme tax regulations in the numerous jurisdictionahich the Company operat
The change to contingency reserves during fiscalld® primarily due to the addition of acquiredam®s as a result of fiscal 2(
acquisitions and favorable non-cash audit settlésneoth of which are included in thadditions/reductions for tax positions take
prior periods” captions in the following table. The change to ewency reserves during fiscal 2010 is primarilyedio the
recognition of uncertainties in current year tasipons. In addition, the change to reserves inafif010 was also impacted b
change to estimates for existing tax positions &mwbrable norcash audit settlements, both of which are incluitedhe
“additions/reductions for tax positions taken inopmperiods”captions in the following table. As of July 2, 201Mmrecognized t:
benefits were $175,151,000, of which approximagl$1,299,000, if recognized, would favorably impt effective tax rate a
the remaining balance would be substantially offgetvaluation allowances. As of July 3, 2010, ungtzed tax benefits we
$132,828,000, of which approximately $88,811,000ecognized, would favorably impact the effecttes rate, and the remaini
balance would be substantially offset by valuaatlowances. In accordance with the Compargccounting policy, accrued intel
and penalties, if any, related to unrecognized harefits are recorded as a component of incomesxagense. The accrual
unrecognized tax benefits included accrued intemegense and penalties of $24,640,000 and $18 308t of applicable state -
benefit, as of the end of fiscal 2011 and 201(yeeBvely.

A reconciliation of the beginning and ending acthadance for unrecognized tax benefits is as fadlo

July 2,2011  July 3, 201C

(Thousands)
Balance at beginning of ye $ 132,82¢ $ 135,89:
Additions for tax positions taken in prior period@ssluding interes 40,21¢ 32,72
Reductions for tax positions taken in prior periddsluding interes (16,837 (33,169
Additions for tax positions taken in current per 11,04: 4,97(
Reductions related to cash settlements with taairtborities (61€) (96)
Reductions related to the lapse of statute of &itiihs (1,565 (2,000
Additions (reductions) related to foreign currem@nslation 10,08: (5,48€)
Balance at end of ye $ 175,15: $ 132,82

The evaluation of income tax positions requires ag@ment to estimate the ability of the Companyustain its position ar
estimate the final benefit to the Company. To tktert that these estimates do not reflect the hottaome there could be an img
on the consolidated financial statements in th@ogdein which the position is settled, the statufelimitations expire or ne
information becomes available as the impact ofdlegnts are recognized in the period in which twwr. It is difficult to estima
the period in which the amount of a tax positiofl wlhange as settlement may include administragiveé legal proceedings wh
timing the Company cannot control. The effectsaiflgg tax positions with tax authorities and gtatexpirations may significan
impact the accrual for income tax contingenciesthifti the next twelve months, management estimates approximatel
$23,000,000 of tax contingencies will be settlednprily through agreement with the tax authoritfes tax positions related
valuation matters; such matters are common to natlbnal companies. The expected cash paymenedeiatthe settlement of the
contingencies is not significant.

The Company conducts business globally and consdélguides income tax returns in numerous jurisidios including thos
listed in the following table. It is also routinedubject to audit in these and other countries. Ctmmpany is no longer subject to a
in its major jurisdictions for periods prior todal year 1999. The open years, by major jurisdigtare as follows:

Jurisdiction Fiscal Year
Belgium 1999- 2011
United States (federal and state) and Singa 2004- 2011
Hong Kong 2005- 2011
Germany and Taiwa 2006- 2011
United Kingdom 2007-2011
Netherland: 2008- 2011
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10. Pension and retirement plans
Pension Plan

The Company’s noncontributory defined benefit pensplan (the “Plan”)covers substantially all domestic employ
Employees are eligible to participate in the Plalfofving the first year of service during which yheorked at least 1,000 hours. -
Plan provides defined benefits pursuant to a catdmbe feature whereby a participant accumulatesafit based upon a percent
of current salary, which varies with age, and ies¢rcredits. The Company uses June 30 as the reezsuir date for determini
pension expense and benefit obligations for eaxtalfiyear. Not included in the tabulations and ulsons that follow are pens
plans of certain non-U.S. subsidiaries, which arenmaterial.

The following tables outline changes in benefitigdions, plan assets and the funded status oPldre as of the end of fis
2011 and 2010:

July 2, July 3,
2011 2010
(Thousands)
Changes in benefit obligatior
Benefit obligations at beginning of ye $ 276,93 $ 263,32
Service cos 23,87 —
Interest cos 13,91¢ 15,74¢
Plan amendmen — 34,00(
Actuarial loss 5,16¢ 19,59:
Benefits paic (22,377) (55,72%)
Benefit obligations at end of ye $ 297,52 $ 276,93
Change in plan asse
Fair value of plan assets at beginning of \ $ 278,96« $ 258,93
Actual return on plan asse 67,65¢ 34,00¢
Benefits paic (22,377) (55,725
Contributions 50C 41,75(
Fair value of plan assets at end of y $  324,75. $ 278,96«
Funded status of the plan recognized as i-current asse $ 27,22t $ 2,02¢
Amounts recognized in accumulated other comprekieriscome
Unrecognized net actuarial lo $ 147,31 $ 191,18
Unamortized prior service crec (14,437 (16,30¢6)

$ 132,88l $ 174,87

Other changes in plan assets and benefit obligatiecognized in other comprehensive inco

Net actuarial (gain) los $ (3493) $ 15,72(
Prior service cos — 34,00(
Amortization of net actuarial lo¢ (8,93¢) (5,687%)
Amortization of prior service crec 1,87¢ 4,88¢

$ (41999 $ 48,911
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The Plan was amended effective July 1, 2010 tomestuture accruals for compensation paid by the gy on or afte
July 1, 2010. The pension accrual formula was simil structure to the formula that was frozenfaduly 1, 2009. The Plan chan
effected by this amendment were as follows:

. an ag-related contribution crediting schedule rangingrfré% to 16% of pensic-eligible compensatio
. interest credits on pc-July 1, 2010 pension accruals of 4% per \

. inclusion of overtime pay in pensi-eligible compensatio

. increase of the cap on pens-eligible compensation from $100,000 to the stagubionit

. change in the actuarial factor basis used to comomount balances to annuity payment for

In October 2009, the Company agreed to settle aiperitigation matter, which was approved by tloairt in April 2010. As
result, the Plan was amended to increase benefitsrtain former employees. This amendment, effeddday 21, 2010, increased
benefit obligation by $34,000,000 and results ipreor service cost base which will be amortized ro¢é years. To fund tF
additional liability, the Company made a voluntargntribution of $34,000,000 in June 2010. The inpaaf the amendme
described above are reflected in the precedingtabl

Included in “accumulated other comprehensive incoateluly 2, 2011 is a priaxx charge of $147,311,000 of net actu;
losses which have not yet been recognized in nebge pension cost, of which $9,680,000 is expedie be recognized as
component of net periodic benefit cost during fis?@12. Also included is a prax credit of $14,431,000 of prior service cr
which has not yet been recognized in net perioditsppn costs, of which $1,875,000 is expected teebegnized as a componen
net periodic benefit costs during fiscal 2012.

Weighted average assumptions used to calculatarsitpresent values of benefit obligations aréodsws:

2011 2010
Discount rate 5.25% 5.25%
Weighted average assumptions used to determirtgenefit costs are as follows:
2011 2010
Discount rate 5.25% 6.25%
Expected return on plan ass 8.5(% 9.0(%

The Company bases its discount rate on a hypothgimrtfolio of bonds rated Aa by Moodylnvestor Services or AA |
Standard & Poors. The bonds selected for this ohétation are based upon the estimated amount amddiof services of tt
pension plan.

Components of net periodic pension costs durindabiethree fiscal years are as follows:

Years Ended

July 2, July 3, June 27,
2011 2010 2009
(Thousands)
Service cos $ 23,87 $ = $ 16,20¢
Interest cos 13,91¢ 15,74¢ 18,17¢
Expected return on plan ass (27,560 (30,137 (26,539
Recognized net actuarial lo 8,93¢ 5,68 2,32t
Amortization of prior service crec (1,87%) (4,889 —
Net periodic pension co $ 17,29¢ $ (1358) % 10,16¢

The Company made contributions of $500,000 and701000 in fiscal 2011 and 2010, respectively.
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Benefit payments are expected to be paid to ppstits as follows for the next five fiscal years dimel aggregate for the fi
years thereafter (in thousand

2012 $ 26,46
2013 20,40¢
2014 20,61¢
2015 19,25¢
2016 20,62t
2016 through 202 112,04:

The Plan’s assets are held in trust and were aldas follows as of the June 30 measurement dafss¢al 2011 and 2010:

2011 2010
Equity securitie: 76% 74%
Debt securitie! 24 25
Cash and receivabli — 1

The general investment objectives of the Plan@maaximize returns through a diversified investnamtfolio in order to eal
annualized returns that meet the long-term coduiding the Plars pension obligations while maintaining reasonaid pruder
levels of risk. The target rate of return on Plaeeds is currently 8.5%, which represents the geerate of earnings expected on
funds invested or to be invested to provide forlibrefits included in the benefit obligation. Tassumption has been determine:
combining expectations regarding future rates tfrrefor the investment portfolio along with thestarical and expected distributi
of investments by asset class and the historite$ raf return for each of those asset classesniixief equity securities is typical
diversified to obtain a blend of domestic and iné&ional investments covering multiple industrielse Plan assets do not include
material investments in Avnet common stock. ThenRlanvestments in debt securities are also divexbificross both public a
private fixed income securities. The Compangurrent target allocation for the investment fiodit is for equity securities, ba
domestic and international, to represent approxipat6% of the portfolio with a policy for minimumvestment in equity securiti
of 60% of the portfolio and a maximum of 92%. Thejonity of the remaining portfolio of investmentsto be invested in fix¢
income securities.

As of June 30, 2011, the market value of plan askgtinvestment category was: U.S. Equity ($194iBam); U.S. Bond:
($76.5 million); International Equity ($51.9 millip and cash and receivables ($2.0 million). Assdties are Level 1 for all as
categories as the fair values are based upon quadeket prices for identical assets. The pensiaetasvere highly diversified
reduce the potential risk of significant concerdnas of credit risk.

11. Long-term leases

The Company leases many of its operating facilides is also committed under lease agreementsrdosgortation ar
operating equipment. Rent expense charged to épesaturing the last three years is as follows:

Years Ended

July 2, July 3, June 27,
2011 2010 2009
(Thousands)
Buildings $ 78,37 $ 59,04% $ 58,211
Equipment 8,33: 5,44( 6,16¢

$ 86,70¢ $ 64,48 $ 64,38
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The aggregate future minimum operating lease comerits, principally for buildings, in fiscal 2012rdlugh 2016 ar
thereafter (through 2028), are as follows (in tlzmds):

2012 $ 92,37¢
2013 73,51°
2014 46,80(
2015 28,93:
2016 20,56(
Thereaftel 42,42

Total $ 304,60

The preceding table includes operating lease comenits that have been reserved for as part of tmep@oys restructurin
activities (see Note 17).

12. Stock-based compensation plans

The Company measures all shhased payments, including grants of employee stptions, at fair value and recogni
related expense in the consolidated statementeftipns over the service period (generally theingeriod). During fiscal 201
2010, 2009, the Company expensed $28,931,000, &28@30 and $18,269,000, respectively, for all stoaked compensati
awards.

In August 2011, the Board of Directors approved tbpurchase of up to an aggregate of $500 millibrstmres of th
Company’s common stock through a share repurchagggm.

Stock plan

The Company currently has one stock compensatian plursuant to which it can issue new awards. TO®O 2Stocl
Compensation Plan (“2010 Plantyas approved by the shareholders in fiscal 201 2810 Plan has a termination dat
November 4, 2020 and 6,694,816 shares were avaifabgrant at July 2, 2011. At July 2, 2011, tler@any had 12,074,232 she
of common stock reserved for stock option and stoc&ntive programs.

Stock options

Option grants under the 2010 Plan have a contratifeaof ten years, vest 25% on each anniversdrthe grant dat
commencing with the first anniversary, and providea minimum exercise price of 100% of fair markatue at the date of gra
Compensation expense associated with stock opdiorisg fiscal 2011, 2010 and 2009 were $3,499,83(558,000 and $4,245,0i
respectively.

The fair value of options granted is estimatedrendate of grant using the Bla8icholes model based on the assumptions
following table. The assumption for the expectauntés based on evaluations of historical and exggeétiture employee exerc
behavior. The risree interest rate is based on the U.S. Treasteg &t the date of grant with maturity dates appnately equal t
the expected term at the grant date. The histovigatility of Avnet's stock is used as the bagisthe volatility assumption.

Years Ended

July 2, July 3, June 27,

2011 2010 2009

Expected term (year: 6.C 6.C 5.7¢
Risk-free interest rat 1.8% 3.C% 3.4%
Weighted average volatilit 33.7% 34.2% 30.7%

Dividend yield — — —
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The following is a summary of the changes in ouditag options for fiscal 2011:

Weighted

Weighted Average

Average Remaining
Exercise Contractual

Shares Price Life

Outstanding at July 3, 20: 3,530,11 $ 21.0¢ 56 Month:
Granted 382,61. $ 24 .41 109 Month:
Exercisec (751,39 $ 18.6¢ 20 Month:
Forfeited or expires (102,119 $ 29.3¢ 18 Month:
Outstanding at July 2, 20: 3,059,21! $ 21.7¢ 59 Month:
Exercisable at July 2, 20: 2,139,92. $ 19.9¢ 42 Month:

The weighted-average graai&te fair values of stock options granted durisgdl 2011, 2010, and 2009 were $8.72, $9.5¢
$10.21, respectively. There were no intrinsic valoéshare options outstanding or exercisable [gt2].2011 and July 3, 2010. T
total intrinsic values of share options exercisedrd) fiscal 2009 was $3,000.

The following is a summary of the changes in nostee stock options for the fiscal year ended JuR021:

Weighted

Average
Grant-Date

Shares Fair Value
Non-vested stock options at July 3, 2( 881,55¢ $ 10.4(C
Grantec 382,61. $ 8.7:2
Vested (330,200 $ 10.3i
Forfeited (14679  $ 11.67
Non-vested stock options at July 2, 2( 919,29: $ 9.6¢

As of July 2, 2011, there was $8,910,000 of totakoognized compensation cost related to vesied stock options, which
expected to be recognized over a weighaedrage period of 3.2 years. The total fair valifeshares vested during fiscal 2011, 2
and 2009 were $3,425,000, $3,293,000, $5,555,@8pectively.

Cash received from option exercises during fisc@l12 2010 and 2009 totaled $3,506,000, $4,134,600, $563,00!
respectively. The impact of these cash receiptsdided in “Other, netlin financing activities in the accompanying condatec
statements of cash flows.

Incentive shares
Delivery of incentive shares, and the associatedpemsation expense, is spread equally over ayfdae-period and is subject
the employees continued employment by the Company. As of Jul§(1, 1,414,784 shares previously awarded havgeaidee

delivered. Compensation expense associated wihptioigram was $17,008,000, $14,614,000 and $149883or fiscal years 201
2010 and 2009, respectively.
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The following is a summary of the changes in nostee incentive shares for the fiscal year endegd 2u2011:

Weighted

Average
Grant-Date

Shares Fair Value
Non-vested incentive shares at July 3, 2 1,258,05 $ 26.5i
Granted 817,96! $ 25.4(
Vested (623,33) $ 25.5¢
Forfeited (37,909 $ 26.2¢
Non-vested incentive shares at July 2, 2 1,414,78. $ 26.47

As of July 2, 2011, there was $33,961,000 of totakbcognized compensation cost related tovesied incentive shares, wh
is expected to be recognized over a weiglaeelage period of 2.7 years. The total fair valoleshares vested during fiscal 2C
2010 and 2009 were $15,916,000, $14,301,000, $8268, respectively.

Performance shares

Eligible employees, including Avnet's executive iofrs, may receive a portion of their long-term iggbased incenti
compensation through the performance share progndich allows for the award of shares of stock agaperformancéase!
criteria (“Performance Share ProgramThe Performance Share Program provides for theamgsito each grantee of a numbe
shares of Avnet's common stock at the end of aetlygar period based upon the Compangthievement of performance gt
established by the Compensation Committee of trerdof Directors for each thrgear period. For the Performance Share Pro
granted in fiscal 2009, the performance goals vitilly based upon a three-year cumulative inseea the Compang’absolut
economic profit, as defined, over the prior threaiyperiod and the increase in the Compsegonomic profit relative to the incre
in the economic profit of a group of specific teology companies. During fiscal 2010, these perforoeagoals were modified
eliminate the absolute economic profit goal; initdd, the fiscal 2009 program was modified to lirtiie percentage of performai
stock units vesting to a maximum of 100%.

For the Performance Share Program granted in fig0all and 2010, the performance goals are based apdreeyea
cumulative increase in the Compasgconomic profit relative to the increase in ther@mmic profit of a group of specific technolc
companies.

During fiscal 2011, 2010 and 2009, the Company tgh8380,200, 242,390 and 246,650 performance shassectively, to k
awarded to participants in the Performance ShangrBm, of which 22,530 cumulatively have been fiteté For the Performan
Share Program granted in fiscal 2011 and 2010a¢hgal amount of performance shares issued atth@fethe thregrear period i
determined based upon the level of achievemenhefdefined performance goals and can range fromtd2©0% of the initic
award. As previously mentioned, the PerformanceeSReogram granted in fiscal 2009 was limited t6%0of the initial award. Tt
Company anticipates issuing 227,285 shares initeeduarter of fiscal 2012 based upon the goalseaed during the thregeal
performance period which ended July 2, 2011. Dufiisgal 2011 and 2010, the Company recognized cosgi®n expen:
associated with the Performance Share Programs/ 874,000 and $9,171,000, respectively. Duringafi2009, the Compa
recorded a credit of $1,819,000 in selling, genaral administrative expenses associated with tHerRence Share Programs be
upon actual performance under the 2007 Perform&mege Program and based upon the probability assesf the remainir
plans.

Outside director equity compensation

Non-employee directors are awarded shares equafited dollar amount of Avnet common stock upoeitthie-election eac
year, as part of their director compensation paek&irectors may elect to receive this compensatidhe form of common stock
they may elect to defer their compensation to biel )@ common stock at a later date. During fiscall?, 2010 and 20C
compensation cost associated with the outsidetdirstock bonus plan was $1,050,000, $1,020,0080 $90, respectively.
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Employee stock purchase plan
The Company has an Employee Stock Purchase PI&PPEunder the terms of which eligible employees of @rmenpany ar
offered options to purchase shares of Avnet comstook at a price equal to 95% of the fair markdtiean the last day of ee

monthly offering period. Based on the terms of B&PP, Avnet is not required to record expenseanctinsolidated statements
operations related to the ESPP.

The Company has a policy of repurchasing sharagb@mopen market to satisfy shares purchased uhdde$PP, and expe
future repurchases during fiscal 2012 to be simdahe number of shares repurchased during fi&@a1, based on current estimi
of participation in the program. During fiscal 202010 and 2009, there were 62,329, 67,168 and2@6Ghares, respectively,
common stock issued under the ESPP program.

13. Commitments and contingencies

From time to time, the Company may become a partpt otherwise involved in other pending and tterad litigation, tas
environmental and other matters arising in themagi course of conducting its business. Managemieas not anticipate that ¢
contingent matters will have a material adverseatfbn the Company’s financial condition, liquiddyresults of operations.

14. Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share is computed based on dighted average number of common shares outstamgidgexcludes al
potential dilution. Diluted earnings per shareeefipotential dilution from the exercise or coni@nf securities into common sto

Years Ended

July 2, July 3, June 27,
2011 2010 2009
(Thousands, except per share date

Numerator:

Net income (loss) for basic and diluted earningsshere $ 669,06 $ 410,37 $ (1,129,71)
Denominator

Weighted average common shares for basic earniogs) per shar 152,48: 151,62¢ 150,89¢
Net effect of dilutive stock options and performarshare awarc 1,85¢€ 1,46¢ —
Weighted average common shares for diluted earqgagshart 154,33 153,09: 150,89t
Basic earnings (loss) per shi $ 4.3¢ $ 2.71 $ (7.49)
Diluted earnings (loss) per she $ 4.34 $ 2.6¢ $ (7.49)

Options to purchase 238,000 and 700,000 shardgeadmpanys stock were excluded from the calculations oftdiduearning
per shares in fiscal 2011 and 2010, respectivelgabse the exercise price for those options wageahe average market price of
Company'’s stock during those periods. Inclusiothefe options in the diluted earnings per shautzlon would have had an anti-
dilutive effect.

For fiscal 2009, dilutive effects of stock optiorsdpck awards and shares issuable upon convergitimeocCompanys 2%
Convertible Debentures were excluded from the cdatfmn of earnings per diluted share because thepaay recognized a net I
and inclusion of these items would have had andihtiive effect. The Convertible Debentures werpaid in March 2009.
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15. Additional cash flow information
Other non-cash and reconciling items consist oféHewing:

Years Ended

July 2, July 3, June 27,
2011 2010 2009
(Thousands)
Provision for doubtful accoun $ 39,25¢ $ 33,82t $ 32,771
Periodic pension (income) costs (Note 17,29¢ (13,58¢) 10,16¢
Other, ne 29€ (4,859 (4,529
Total $ 56,84¢ $ 15,38¢ $ 38,41«

Interest and income taxes paid during the lasethisars were as follows:

Years Ended

July 2, July 3, June 27,
2011 2010 2009
(Thousands)
Interest $ 91,94¢ $ 60,55¢ $ 66,89¢
Income taxe! $ 158,37: $ 92,56¢ $ 126,01

Non-cash activity during fiscal 2011 included amourtsarded through comprehensive income and, theredogenot include
in the consolidated statement of cash flows. Fi2€dl1l included an adjustment to pension liabilifiegluding nond.S. pensio
liabilities) of $31,987,000 which was recorded oftelated deferred tax benefit of $12,022,000timeo comprehensive income (
Notes 4 and 10). Other n-cash activities included assumed debt of $420,289zhd assumed liabilities of $509,812,000 as wait
of the acquisitions completed in fiscal 2011 (seteN\R).

Non-cash activity during fiscal 2010 included amoumtsarded through comprehensive income and, theredogenot include
in the consolidated statement of cash flows. Fig€dl0 included an adjustment to increase pensadilities (including nord.S.
pension liabilities) of $50,502,000 which was retmat net of related deferred tax benefit of $19,2807,in other comprehens
income (see Notes 4 and 10). Other wash activities included assumed debt of $5,858@0assumed liabilities of $35,913,00
a result of the acquisitions completed in fiscal@Qsee Note 2).

Non-cash activity during fiscal 2009 included amoumtsarded through comprehensive income and, theredoeenot include
in the consolidated statement of cash flows. Fig€#l9 included an adjustment to increase pensailities (including norJ.S.
pension liabilities) of $42,948,000 which was retmat net of related deferred tax benefit of $16,087,in other comprehens
income (see Notes 4 and 10). Other wash activities included assumed debt of $146,8®1,8nd assumed liabilities
$261,434,000 as a result of the acquisitions comaglia fiscal 2009 (see Note 2).

16. Segment information

Electronics Marketing and Technology Solutions #Hre overall segments upon which management priynasibluates tr
operations of the Company and upon which managem@ses its operating decisions. Therefore, the epghata that follow
reflects these two segments.

EM markets and sells semiconductors and intercanpassive and electromechanical devices and emblepgrbducts. El
markets and sells its products and services to v&rsh customer base serving many sratkets including automotiy
communications, computer hardware and periphamdlydtrial and manufacturing, medical equipmentjtanyl and aerospace. E
also offers an array of value-added services thgt bustomers evaluate, designand procure electronic components throughot
lifecycle of their technology products and systemsluding supplyehain management, engineering design, inventogmneghmer
systems, connector and cable assembly and semicionguogramming.
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TS markets and sells mid- to higihd servers, data storage, software, and the ssrxéguired to implement these products
solutions to the value-added reseller channel. I8 facuses on the worldwide original equipment ofacturers (“OEM”)marke

for computing technology, system integrators and-RG OEMs that require embedded systems and solutichgling engineerin
product prototyping, integration and other valueediservices.

Years Ended

July 2, July 3, June 27,
2011 2010 2009
(Millions)
Sales:
Electronics Marketin $ 15,066.. $ 10,966.! $ 9,192.¢
Technology Solution 11,468.. 8,193.: 7,037..

$ 26,534 $ 19,160.. $ 16,229.

Operating income (loss

Electronics Marketin $ 832.f $ 491.¢ $ 354.F
Technology Solution 286.1 251.7 201.
Corporate (112.0 (82.3) (64.5)

1,007.: 661.( 491 .«

Impairment charges (Note — — (1,411.)
Restructuring, integration and other charges (NG (77.2) (25.9) (99.9)

$ 930 % 635.6 $  (1,019.)

Assets:

Electronics Marketin $ 5,890.¢ $ 4,441¢ $ 3,783.¢
Technology Solution 3,765.: 2,553.¢ 2,036.¢
Corporate 249.f 786.¢ 453.C

$  9,905.¢ $ 7,782 $ 6,273

Capital expenditure:

Electronics Marketin $ 69.¢ $ 30.1 $ 61.1
Technology Solution 57.4 17.2 38.t
Corporate 21.t 19.€ 10.€
$ 148.7 $ 66.¢ $ 110.2
Depreciation & amortization expens
Electronics Marketin $ 28.2 $ 24.¢ $ 26.¢
Technology Solution 30.C 15.7 18.2
Corporate 23.1 20.2 20.7
$ 81. $ 60.€ $ 65.¢
Sales, by geographic area, are as follc
Americas® $ 11,518 $ 8,367. $ 7,572
EMEA @ 8,393. 5,948.! 5,268.:
Asia/Pacific® 6,622.! 4,844.¢ 3,389.1

$ 26,534 $ 19,160.. $  16,229.

Property, plant and equipment, net, by geograpieia:

Americas®) $ 242.F $ 182.2 $ 183.¢
EMEA ©) 150.¢ 98.t 101.2
Asia/Pacific 26.1 21.¢€ 20.t

$ 419.2 $ 302.¢ $ 305.7
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(©)

Q)

®)

Includes sales in the United States of $10.0 bi)li®7.6 billion and $6.8 billion for fiscal year 2D, 2010 and 200
respectively

Includes sales in Germany and the United Kingdor$#i3o1 billion and $1.7 billion, respectively, fasdéal 2011. Includes sa
in Germany and the United Kingdom of $2.1 billiomda$1.1 billion, respectively, for fiscal 2010. lndes sales in Germa
and the United Kingdom of $1.8 billion and $1.dibi, respectively, for fiscal 200!

Includes sales of $1.8 billion, $2.4 billion and &billion in Taiwan, China (including Hong Kongha Singapore, respective
for fiscal 2011. Includes sales of $1.3 billion,.@&Billion and $1.0 billion in Taiwan, China (incling Hong Kong) an
Singapore, respectively, for fiscal 2010. Includedes of $966.9 million, $1.3 billion and $752.dlimin in Taiwan, Chin
(including Hong Kong) and Singapore, respectivédy fiscal 2009.

Includes property, plant and equipment, net, ofl$23nillion, $178.2 million and $179.6 million ihé United States for fisc
2011, 2010 and 2009, respective

Includes property, plant and equipment, net of &98illion, $23.4 million, and $16.4 million in Geany, Belgium and tt
United Kingdom, respectively, for fiscal 2011. Q010 includes property, plant and equipment, o&t$48.0 million ir
Germany, $20.4 million in Belgium and $13.4 million the United Kingdom. Fiscal 2009 includes prdpemplant an
equipment, net, of $41.4 million in Germany, $2¢illion, in Belgium and $26.8 million in the Unité¢ingdom.

The Company manages its business based upon thetiogeesults of its two operating groups befanpairment charges (s

Note 6) and restructuring, integration and otherghs (see Note 17). In fiscal 2011, 2010 and 20@%ented above, the unalloc:
pretax impairment charges and restructuring, integnaéind other items related to EM and TS, respdgtiveere $27,879,000 a
$38,146,000 in fiscal 2011, $14,701,000 and $1Q@®X® in fiscal 2010 and $1,116,335,000 and $389CHAL in fiscal 200!
respectively. The remaining restructuring, inteigraaind other items in each year relate to corpaaativities.

Listed in the table below are the major productgaties and the Compasyapproximate sales of each during the past

fiscal years:
Years Ended
July 2, July 3, June 27,
2011 2010 2009
(Millions)

Semiconductor $ 14,149. $ 10,098 $ 8,324.(
Computer product 10,284.1 7,302.¢ 6,393.¢
Connectors 1,041.. 841.¢ 735.2
Passives, electromechanical and o 1,059.: 917.c 777.%

$ 26,534 $ 19,160.. $ 16,229.¢
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17. Restructuring, integration and other charges
Fiscal 2011

During fiscal 2011, the Company incurred chargésted primarily to the acquisition and integratiactivities associated wi
acquired businesses (see Note 2) and also recordéits related to prior restructuring reserves arglisition adjustments.

Year Ended
July 2, 2011
(Thousands

Restructuring charge $ 47,76

Integration cost 25,06¢

Acquisition costs 15,591

Reversal of excess prior year restructuring rese (6,076

Prior year acquisition adjustmet (5,17¢)

Pre-tax restructuring, integration and other chai $ 77,17¢

After tax restructuring, integration and other ¢jes $ 56,16¢

Restructuring, integration and other charges paresbn a diluted bas $ 0.3¢€

The activity related to the restructuring resemsmblished during fiscal 2011 is presented irfadHewing table:
Severance Facility
Reserves Exit Costs Other Total
(Thousands)

Fiscal 2011 pi-tax charge: $ 28,58¢ $ 17,33: $ 1,84¢ $ 47,67
Cash payment (19,149 (5,65)) (787) (25,58()
Non-cash write down — (3,27¢) (52) (3,329
Adjustments (293) (349 (229) (865)
Other, principally foreign currency translati 654 241 251 1,14¢

Balance at July 2, 201 $ 9,80: $ 8,294 $ 1,03¢ $ 19,13t

Severance charges recorded in fiscal 2011 relatpernsonnel reductions of over 550 employees inigidtrative, finance ar
sales functions primarily in connection with théeigration of the acquired Bell business into thisteag EM Americas, TS Americ
and TS EMEA regions and, to a lesser extent, atbst reduction actions. Facility exit costs corslstf lease liabilities, fixed as
write-downs and other related charges associated witta&&ted facilities: 23 in the Americas, 25 in EMBAd two in the Asia/P:
region. As of July 2, 2011, management expectsrthprity of the remaining severance reserves totbieed by the end of fisc
2012 and the remaining facility exit cost resereebe utilized by the end of fiscal 2014.

Integration costs included professional fees aasediwith legal and IT consulting, facility movirgpsts, travel, meetin
marketing and communication costs that were incréatly incurred as a result of the integration gfmf acquired businesses. A
included in integration costs are incremental yatard employee benefit costs, primarily of the aeglibusinessegersonnel wh
were retained by Avnet for extended periods follmyvthe close of the acquisitions solely to assighe integration of the acquit
business’IT systems, and administrative and logistics openat into those of Avnet. These identified persdrimeve no othe
meaningful day-to-day operational responsibilibeside of the integration effort.

Acquisition costs incurred during fiscal 2011 retatprimarily to professional fees for advisory dmdker services, legal a
accounting due diligence, and other legal costscated with the acquisition.

During fiscal 2011, the Company recorded creditsestructuring, integration and other charges e€lab (i) the reversal
restructuring reserves established in prior ydaas were deemed to be no longer required, (ii) saiipn adjustments for which t
purchase allocation period had closed and (iii}-etated reserves originally established throughdgalb in prior years that we
deemed no longer required, which were creditedhto donsolidated statement of operations rather tbagoodwill because tl
associated goodwill was impaired in fiscal 200% (Setes 2 and 6).
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Fiscal 2010

During fiscal 2010, the Company recognized restntieg), integration and other charges related toaieing cost reductic
actions announced in fiscal 2009 which were takemesponse to market conditions as well as integratosts associated w
acquired businesses in addition to a value-addedxposure and acquisitioetated costs partially offset by a credit relategbrior
restructuring reserves.

Year Ended

July 3, 201C

(Thousands
Restructuring charge $ 15,99:
Integration cost 2,931
Value-added tax exposu 6,47
Other 3,261
Reversal of excess restructuring reserves recaondedor periods (3,240
Pre-tax restructuring, integration and other chai $ 25,41¢
After tax restructuring, integration and other cies $ 18,78¢
Restructuring, integration and other charges paresbn a diluted bas $ 0.12

Restructuring charges incurred in fiscal 2010 cgimsi of severance, facility exit costs and othearghs. Severance char
were related to personnel reductions of over 15pleyees in administrative, finance and sales femgtiin connection with the c
reduction actions in all three regions. Facilityteosts consisted of lease liabilities and fixaedet writedowns associated with sey
vacated facilities in the Americas, one in EMEA dndr in the Asia/Pac region. Other charges coedigtrimarily of contractu
obligations with no on-going benefit to the Company

During fiscal 2010, the Company incurred integnataosts for professional fees, facility moving soand travel, meetin
marketing and communication costs that were increéatly incurred as a result of the integration gfoof previously acquire
businesses.

Also during fiscal 2010, the Company recognizedharge for a valuedded tax exposure in Europe related to an augitioi
years and other charges related primarily to adtpn-related costs which would have been capitalizeceupdor accounting rule
In addition, the Company recognized a credit te@rs® restructuring reserves which were determiode tho longer necessary.

The fiscal 2011 activity related to the restruatgrcharges is presented in the following table:

Severance Facility
Reserves Exit Costs Other Total
(Thousands)

Balance at July 3, 201 $ 53¢ $ 1,40¢ $ 1,83¢ $ 3,78(
Cash payment (400 (279 (443) (1,122
Adjustments (144 (903) 421 (62€)
Other, principally foreign currency translati 22 9 152 182
Balance at July 2, 201 $ 17 $ 232 $ 1,96¢ $ 2,21¢

As of July 2, 2011, management expects the majofithe remaining severance and other reserves tdilized by the end
fiscal 2012 and the remaining facility exit cosdeeves to be utilized by the end of fiscal 2013.
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Fiscal 2009

In response to the decline in sales and grosstpraigin due to weaker market conditions, the Compaitiated significar
cost reduction actions during fiscal 2009 in ortterealign its expense structure with market coodg. As a result, the Compe
incurred restructuring, integration and other ckarduring fiscal 2009 related to the cost redustiaa well as integration co
associated with recently acquired businesses asipied in the following table.

Year Ended

June 27, 200

(Thousands)
Restructuring charge $ 84,97¢
Integration cost 11,16(
Reversal of excess prior year restructuring rese (2,519
Prior year acquisition adjustmet (1,207
Loss on investmer 3,091
Incremental amortizatio 3,83(
Pre-tax restructuring, integration and other chai $ 99,34:
After tax restructuring, integration and other cfes $ 65,31(
Restructuring, integration and other charges paresbn a diluted bas $ 0.43

Restructuring charges included severance, fa@hiycosts and other charges. Severance chargegsdéeb personnel reductic
of approximately 1,900 employees in administratfigance and sales functions in connection withdbst reduction actions in
three regions of both operating groups with empdogerductions of approximately 1,400 in EM, 400 & dnd the remaining frc
centralized support functions. Exit costs for vadafacilities related to 29 facilities in the Aneas, 13 in EMEA and three
Asia/Pac. Other charges included fixed asset widt@ns and contractual obligations with no gwing benefit to the Company. 1
Company also recorded a reversal for severancee lead other reserves that were deemed excessiVevas credited !
restructuring, integration and other charges. Inatiégn costs included professional fees, facilitpuing costs, travel, meetir
marketing and communication costs that were incre¢atly incurred as a result of the acquisition gragion efforts. Other iten
recorded to restructuring, integration and otherrgbs included a net credit related to acquisiidjustments for which the purch
allocation period had closed, a loss resulting frandecline in the market value of certain smallestments that the Comp:
liquidated, and incremental intangible asset arnatitin.

The following table presents the activity duringcfl 2011 related to restructuring reserves estaddi as part of this plan:

Severance Facility
Reserves Exit Costs Other Total
(Thousands)

Balance at July 3, 201 $ 1,92( $ 17,13¢ $ 1,63¢ $ 20,69(
Cash payment (1,432 (7,557 (419 (9,399
Adjustments (319) (4,167) (1,709 (6,187%)
Other, principally foreign currency translati 13C 17t 482 78€

Balance at July 2, 201 $ 29¢ $ 5,59¢ $ = $ 5,89¢

As of July 2, 2011, management expects the majofithie remaining severance reserves to be utilizethe end of fiscal 20:
and the remaining facility exit cost reserves tabikized by the end of fiscal 2015.

Fiscal 2008 and prior restructuring reserves
In fiscal 2008 and prior, the Company incurred megtiring charges under four separate restructyslags of which two a

remaining. As of July 2, 2011, the remaining ressrassociated with these actions totaled $801,006hvare expected to be fu
utilized by the end of fiscal 2012.
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18. Summary of quarterly results (unaudited):

First Second Third Fourth
Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter Year(a)
(Millions, except per share amounts

2011(b)

Sales $ 6,182. $ 6,767. $ 6,672 $ 6,912 $ 26,534.
Gross profit 723.1 773.2 786.¢ 824.¢ 3,107.¢
Net income 138.2 141.( 151.( 238.¢ 669.1
Diluted earnings per sha 0.9C 0.91 0.9¢ 1.54 4.34
2010(c)

Sales $ 4,355 $ 4834! $  4,756.¢ $ 5,213 $ 19,160.
Gross profit 499.7 551.¢ 582.¢ 645.¢ 2,280.:
Net income 50.¢ 103.¢ 114.% 141.1 410.¢
Diluted earnings per sha 0.3¢ 0.6¢ 0.7t 0.92 2.6¢

(&) Quarters may not add to the year due to rounc

(b) First quarter of fiscal 2011 results were aoed by restructuring, integration and other cesnghich totaled $28.1 million pre-
tax, $20.2 after tax and $0.13 per share on addilbisis. Restructuring charges consisted of sesereosts, facility exit cos
and other charges resulting from acquisition relatéegration activities. Integration costs inclddeofessional fees and sall
and benefit costs related primarily to the acquivedinessegpersonnel retained by the Company for extendedgefio assi
with integrations. Other charges consisted of brd&es, professional fees for legal and accourdimg) due diligence, and otl
related costs associated with the Bell, Tallard @nilux acquisitions. In addition, the Company ggtiged a gain on barg:
purchase of $31.0 million prend after tax, and $0.20 per share on a diluted asconnection with its Unidux acquisitic
Second quarter results were impacted by restrugfuiintegration and other charges which totaled.B2fillion pretax,
$20.8 million after tax and $0.14 per share on lateli basis incurred primarily in connection withetacquisitions ar
integrations of acquired businesses. The Compauyratorded a reversal of $3.5 million pa-primary related to the rever
of restructuring reserves established in prior yeshich were no longer needed. Third quarter afafi011 results we
impacted by restructuring, integration and othearghs which totaled $16.3 million ptax, $11.9 million after tax and $0.
per share on a diluted basis incurred primarilgamnection with the acquisitions and integratioh@aguired businesses.
addition, the Company recognized a loss of $6.8onilpretax, $3.9 million after tax and $0.02 per shareaodiluted bas
related to the write down of investments in smalémhnology startip companies. Fourth quarter of fiscal 2011 resukse
impacted by restructuring, integration and othearghs which totaled $7.3 million ptax, $5.8 million after tax and $0.04
share on a diluted basis. The Company also revé3&dmillion pretax, $2.5 million after tax and $0.02 per shareadatilutec
basis for restructuring and purchase accountingrves determined not to be needed. In additiontioyuarter results includ
a tax benefit of $52.7 million, or $0.34 per sharea diluted basis, primarily related to the redeafa tax valuation allowan
for which the tax asset was determined to be raaliéz

(c) First quarter of fiscal 2010 results were auigd by restructuring, integration and other cesanghich totaled $18.1 million pre-
tax, $13.2 million after tax and $0.09 per sharewahluted basis. Restructuring charges consistedverance costs, facility e
costs, and fixed asset writlowns related to previously announced cost redueations. The Company recognized a revers
excess prior year restructuring reserves and asognized integration costs associated with acduigsinesses and otl
charges. In addition, the Company recognized ainméease in taxes of $3.1 million and $0.02 perehan a diluted bas
related an adjustment for a prior year tax returd additional tax reserves, net of a benefit frofav@rable income tax au
settlement. Second quarter results were impacteddain on the sale of assets of $5.5 milliontpre-$3.4 million after tax ai
$0.02 per share on a diluted basis as a resulertéin earn-out provisions associated with theierasiale of the Company’
equity investment in Calence LLC. Third quarterfistal 2010 results were impacted by restructuringggration and oth
charges of $7.3 million pre-tax, $5.6 million aftax and $0.04 per share on a diluted basis winicluded (i) $6.5 million pre-
tax for a value-added tax exposure in Europe reéledean audit of prior years, (i) $2.1 million pt&x related to acquisition-
related costs, and (iii) a credit of $1.3 millioregax related to reversals of restructuring resene$onger deemed necess
In addition, third quarter results were impactedabgain on the sale of assets of $3.2 milliontpse-$1.9 million after tax ai
$0.01 per share on a diluted basis as a resulfiphbearn-out payment associated with the easi#e of the Compang’equity
investment in Calence LLC and were impacted bytaaebenefit of $2.3 million and $0.02 per shaneaodiluted basis relat
to adjustments for a prior year tax return and rrefiefrom a favorable income tax audit settlemgattially offset by addition
tax reserves for existing tax positiol
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SCHEDULE I
AVNET, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

VALUATION AND QUALIFYING ACCOUNTS
Years Ended July 2, 2011, July 3, 2010 and June 2009

Column A Column B Column C Column D Column E
Additions
Balance a Charged tc Charged to Balance a
Beginning Costsand  Other Accounts—  Deductions— End of
Description of Period Expenses Describe Describe Period
(Thousands)
Fiscal 2011
Allowance for doubtful accoun $ 81,19°¢ 39,258 $ — % (12,71)(@)$ 107,73¢
Valuation allowance on foreign tax loss car
forwards (Note 9 331,42 (76,055 (b) 55,404(c) — 310,77:
Fiscal 2010
Allowance for doubtful accoun 85,47 33,82¢ — (38,10%(a) 81,19:
Valuation allowance on foreign tax loss carry-
forwards (Note 9 315,02( (1,339 17,74.(d) — 331,42:
Fiscal 2008
Allowance for doubtful accoun 76,69( 32,77% 2,84](e) (26,83)(a) 85,47"
Valuation allowance on foreign tax loss car
forwards (Note 9 344,03 5,691 (34,71)(f) — 315,02(

(@) Uncollectible accounts written of
(b) Represents a reduction primarily due to the rele#sealuation allowance in EMEA, of which $64,21600impacted tr

(©

effective tax rate and $11,840,000 of which did ingpact the effective tax rate because deferreéstaxd income tax payak
associated with the release of the valuation alimeawere recorded which offset a portion of theelfieras a result of tt
release (see Note ¢

Primarily relates to the translation impact of ofgasin foreign currency exchange rates and acquakgtion allowance:

(d) Includes the impact of deferred tax rate chandestrianslation impact of changes in foreign curyeexchange rates and

increase of valuation allowance against associdééeired tax benefits as it was determined thee@laperating tax loss carry-
forward cannot be utilize

(e) Includes allowance for doubtful accounts as a tesftdcquisitions

(f)

Includes the impact of deferred tax rate changeddlamtranslation impact of changes in foreign @ucy exchange rate
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Exhibit
Number

INDEX TO EXHIBITS

Exhibit

2.1

3.1

3.2

41

4.2

4.3

4.4

4.5

4.6

10.1

10.2

10.c

10.4

10.5

Agreement and Plan of Merger dated as of Marct2@80, by and among Avnet, Inc., AVT Acquisition @or
and Bell Microproducts Inc. (incorporated hereinrbference to the Company’s Current Report on R
dated March 28, 2010, Exhibit 2.

Restated Certificate of Incorporation of the Comp@ncorporated herein by reference to the CompmaQyrrent
Report on Form -K dated February 12, 2001, Exhibit 3(i

By-laws of the Company, effective August 10, 20Bic¢rporated herein by reference to the Companyiseht
Report on Form-K dated August 15, 2007 Exhibit 3.:

Indenture dated as of March 5, 2004, by and betwlese€ompany and JP Morgan Trust Company, National
Association (incorporated herein by reference éo@ompany’s Current Report on Form 8-K dated M#&ch
2004, Exhibit 4.1)

Officers’ Certificate dated August 19, 2005, egkdhihg the terms of the 6.00% Notes due 2015 (jmo@ted
herein by reference to the Comp’s Current Report on Forn-K dated August 19, 2005, Exhibit 4..

Officers’ Certificate dated September 12, 2006, establisthiagerms of the 6.625% Notes due 2016 (incorpd
herein by reference to the Comp’s Current Report on Forn-K dated September 12, 2006, Exhibit 4

Officers’ Certificate dated March 7, 2007, estdtilig the terms of the 5 7/8% Notes due 2014 (ino@ied
herein by reference to the Comp’s Current Report on Forn-K dated March 7, 2007, Exhibit 4.:

Indenture dated as of June 22, 2010, between thgp@wmy and Wells Fargo Bank, National Associati@n, a
Trustee, providing for the issuance of Debt Se@siin one or more series (incorporated hereirefgrence to tt
Compan’s Current Report on Forn-K dated June 22, 2010, Exhibit 4.

Officers’ Certificate establishing the terms of 51875% Notes due 2020 (incorporated herein byeat® to the
Compan’s Current Report on Forn-K dated June 22, 2010, Exhibit 4.

Note: The total amount of securities authorizedaurahy other instrument that defines the rightisadflers of the
Company’s long-term debt does not exceed 10% offata assets of the Company and its subsidianes o
consolidated basis. Therefore, these instrumentaatrrequired to be filed as exhibits to this Repbhe
Company agrees to furnish copies of such instrusnenthe Commission upon reque

Executive Compensation Plans and Arrangement

2011 Amended and Restated Employment Agreemend d&teruary 11, 2011 between the Company and Roy
Vallee (incorporated herein by reference to the gamy’'s Current Report on Form 8-K dated February2041,
Exhibit 10.1).

2011 Amended and Restated Employment Agreemend dratieruary 11, 2011 between the Company and Rit
Hamada (incorporated herein by reference to thegamyis Current Report on Form 8-K dated February 14
2011, Exhibit 10.2)

Form of Change of Control Agreement dated Febr@arn2011 between the Company and each of Roy Vallee
and Richard Hamada (incorporated herein by referém¢he Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K dated
February 14, 2011, Exhibit 10.!

Form of Employment Agreement dated December 198 2@®ween the Company and each of its Executive
Officers (other than Roy Vallee and Richard Hamddaorporated herein by reference to the Commayrren
Report on Form -K dated December 22, 2008, Exhibit 10

Form of Change of Control Agreement dated Decerhi®eR008 between the Company and each of the BExer
Officers (other than Roy Vallee and Richard Hamdda)orporated herein by reference to the Compayirren
Report on Form -K dated December 22, 2008, Exhibit 10
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Exhibit
Number Exhibit
10.€ Avnet 1995 Stock Option Plan (incorporated hergimeference to the Company’s Current Report on Ry
dated February 12, 1996, Exhibit 1
10.7 Avnet 1996 Incentive Stock Option Plan (incorpodaterein by reference to the Company’s Registration
Statement on Form-8, Registration No. 3:-17271, Exhibit 99)
10.¢ Amended and Restated Avnet 1997 Stock Option Paoerporated herein by reference to the Company’s
Current Report on Form-K dated August 29, 2006, Exhibit 10.
10.¢ Retirement Plan for Outside Directors of Avnet,.Jf@mended and Restated Effective Generally alofiary 1,
2009) (incorporated herein by reference to the Gomwijs Current Report on Form 8-K dated August T3,@®
Exhibit 10.1).
10.12(C Avnet, Inc. Deferred Compensation Plan for Outfditectors (Amended and Restated Effective Genepalgf
January 1, 2009) (incorporated herein by referém¢ke Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K dated
August 13, 2010, Exhibit 10.2
10.11 Avnet Supplemental Executive Officers’ RetiremelarR(Amended and Restated Effective Generally as of
January 1, 2009) (incorporated herein by referémt¢ke Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K dated
August 13, 2010, Exhibit 10.3
10.1z Avnet 1999 Stock Option Plan (incorporated hergimeference to the Company’s Current Report on Féxih
dated August 29, 2006 Exhibit 10.,
10.1: Avnet, Inc. Executive Incentive Plan (incorporatestein by reference to Appendix A to the Compa®raxy
Statement dated September 28, 20
10.1¢ Avnet, Inc. 2003 Stock Compensation Plan (AmendetRestated Effective Generally as of January Q90
(incorporated herein by reference to the Compa@yisent Report on Form 8-K dated August 13, 2010,
Exhibit 10.4).
10.1¢ Avnet, Inc. 2003 Stock Compensation Pl
(a) Form of nonqualified stock option agreerr
(b) Form of nonqualified stock option agreememtrfor-employee directao
(c) Form of incentive stock option agreem
(d) Form of performance stock unit term st
(incorporated herein by reference to the Compa@yisent Report on Form 8-K dated August 29, 2006,
Exhibit 10.3).
10.1¢€ Avnet, Inc. 2006 Stock Compensation Plan (AmendetRestated Effective Generally as of January Q90
(incorporated herein by reference to the Compa@yisent Report on Form 8-K dated August 13, 2010,
Exhibit 10.5).
10.1% Avnet, Inc. 2006 Stock Compensation Pl
(a) Form of nonqualified stock option agreerr
(b) Form of nonqualified stock option agreememtrfor-employee directao
(c) Form of performance stock unit term sheetiged effective August 13, 2009 by (f) belo
(d) Form of incentive stock option agreem
(e) Long Term Incentive Lett
(incorporated herein by reference to the Compa@ysent Report on Form 8-K dated May 16, 2007,
Exhibit 99.1).
(f) Form of performance stock unit term sheetdiporated herein by reference to the Company’sedur
Report on Form-K dated August 19, 2009, Exhibit 99.
10.1¢ Avnet, Inc. 2010 Stock Compensation Plan (incorfemtderein by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Canys

Registration Statement on Forr-8, Registration No. 3:-171291).
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Exhibit
Number Exhibit
10.1¢ Avnet, Inc. 2010 Stock Compensation Pl
(a) Form of nonqualified stock option agreem
(b) Form of incentive stock option agreem
(c) Form of performance stock unit term sk
(d) Form of Long Term Incentive Lett
(incorporated herein by reference to the Compa@ysent Report on Form 8-K dated January 3, 2011,
Exhibit 10.1).
10.2( Avnet Deferred Compensation Plan (Amended and RebEffective Generally as of January 1, 2009)
(incorporated herein by reference to the Compa@yisent Report on Form 8-K dated August 13, 2010,
Exhibit 10.6).
10.21** Amendment No. 1 to Avnet Deferred Compensation PAanended and Restated Effective Generally as of
January 1, 2009
10.22 Form of Indemnity Agreement. The Company enters this form of agreement with each of its directans!
officers (incorporated herein by reference to tloenPany’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q dated Ma3(®6,
Exhibit 10.1).
10.2: Form option agreements for stock option plans (ipeated herein by reference to the Compsat@urrent Repo
on Form K dated September 8, 2004, Exhibit 10
(a) Nor-Quialified stock option agreement for 1999 Stocki@pPlan
(b) Incentive stock option agreement for 1999 StOpkion Plar
(c) Incentive stock option agreement for 1996 StOgkion Plar
(d) Nor-Qualified stock option agreement for 1995 Stocki@pPlan
Bank Agreements
10.2¢ Securitization Prograt

(a) Receivables Sale Agreement, dated as of Z8n2001 between Avnet, Inc., as Originator, andétv
Receivables Corporation as Buyer (incorporatedihdngreference to the Company’s Current Report on
Form ¢-K dated September 26, 2002, Exhibit 1(

(b) Amendment No. 1, dated as of February 6, 2@Receivables Sale Agreement in 10.24(a) above
(incorporated herein by reference to the Compa@yisent Report on Form 8-K dated September 26,
2002, Exhibit 10K)

(c) Amendment No. 2, dated as of June 26, 2@DRgeteivables Sale Agreement in 10.24(a) above
(incorporated herein by reference to the Compa@yisent Report on Form 8-K dated September 26,
2002, Exhibit 10L)

(d) Amendment No. 3, dated as of November 2522@DReceivables Sale Agreement in 10.24(a) above
(incorporated herein by reference to the Compa@yisent Report on Form 8-K dated December 17,
2002, Exhibit 10B)

(e) Amendment No. 4, dated as of December 122 200Receivables Sale Agreement in 10.24(a) above
(incorporated herein by reference to the Compa@yisent Report on Form 8-K dated December 17,
2002, Exhibit 10E)

(H Amendment No. 5, dated as of August 15, 2@0Receivables Sale Agreement in 10.24(a) above
(incorporated herein by reference to the Compa@yisent Report on Form 8-K dated September 15,
2003, Exhibit 10C)

() Amendment No. 6, dated as of August 3, 2@@Receivables Sale Agreement in 10.24(a) above
(incorporated herein by reference to the Compa@yisent Report on Form 8-K dated September 13,
2005, Exhibit 10.1)

(h) Amendment No. 7, dated as of August 29,728® Receivables Sale Agreement in 10.24(a) above
(incorporated herein by reference to the Compa@yigent Report on Form 8-K dated August 13, 2010,



Exhibit 10.7).
(i) Amendment No. 8, dated as of August 26, 2@d®Receivables Sale Agreement in 10.24(a) above

(incorporated herein by reference to the Compa@yisent Report on Form 8-K dated September 1,
2010, Exhibit 10.2)
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Exhibit
Number Exhibit
() Second Amended and Restated Receivableh®secAgreement dated as of August 26, 2010 among
Avnet Receivables Corporation, as Seller, Avnat,,las Servicer, the Financial Institutions pahigréeto
and JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A. as Agent (incorpdrageein by reference to the Company’s Current
Report on Form -K dated September 1, 2010, Exhibit 10
(k) Amendment No. 1, dated as of December 2802t the Second Amended and Restated Receivables
Purchase Agreement in 10.24(j) above (incorporhgzdin by reference to the Company’s Quarterly
Report on Form 1-Q dated January 28, 2011, Exhibit 10
10.2¢ Credit Agreement dated September 27, 2007 amongtAlmc., Avnet Japan Co., Ltd., certain other glibges,
Banc of America Securities LLC, as administratigert, and each lender thereto (incorporated hégein
reference to the Compg’'s Current Report on Forn-K dated September 28, 2007, Exhibit 10
10.2¢ Guaranty dated as of September 27, 2007 made bgtAwrt. to Bank of America, N.A., as administratagent,
and each of the lenders (incorporated herein lreete to the Company’s Current Report on Formdated
September 28, 2007, Exhibit 10.
12.1+* Ratio of Earnings to Fixed Charg:
21** List of subsidiaries of the Company as of July@.2.
23. 1 Consent of KPMG LLP
31.1* Certification pursuant to Section 302 of the Sads-Oxley Act of 2002
31.2%* Certification pursuant to Section 302 of the Sads-Oxley Act of 2002
32.1x** Certification pursuant to Section 906 of the Sads-Oxley Act of 2002
32.2x** Certification pursuant to Section 906 of the Sads-Oxley Act of 2002

101.INSHx**

101.SCH***

101.CAL****

101.LAB****

101.PREP***

101.DEP***

XBRL Instance Documen

XBRL Taxonomy Extension Schema Documg

XBRL Taxonomy Extension Calculation Linkbase Docun
XBRL Taxonomy Extension Label Linkbase Docum
XBRL Taxonomy Extension Presentation Linkbase Doenir

XBRL Taxonomy Extension Definition Linkbase Docurhe

* This Exhibit does not include the Exhibits and Stles thereto as listed in its table of contentee Tompany undertakes
furnish any such Exhibits and Schedules to the i@esiand Exchange Commission upon its reqt

**  Filed herewith
***  Furnished herewitt
**** To be filed within 30 days in accordance with R&B5(a)(2) of Regulation-T.
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Exhibit 10.21

First Amendment to the Avnet Deferred CompensatiorPlan
(As Amended and Restated Effective Generally as danuary 1, 2009)

WHEREAS, Avnet, Inc., a New York corporation (th@dmpany”), maintains the Avnet Deferred Compensafitan (the
“Plan™;

WHEREAS, Section 8.4 of the Plan provides thatGoenpany may amend the Plan, by action of the Dede@rompensation
Plan Committee (the “Committee”) appointed by treail to administer the Plan; and

WHEREAS, the Company wishes to amend the Plandbilpit participation by any employee whose expectedual
compensation is less than the limit prescribed éxstiBn 401(a)(17) of the Internal Revenue Code9@6] as amended, and to make
certain clarifications;

NOW, THEREFORE, the Plan is hereby amended asdétlielow, effective as of January 1, 2009, exespitherwise
provided:

1. Effective for Plan Years starting after Decem®l, 2011, Section 1.15 of the Plan (definitibickigible Employee) is amended
by replacing the last sentence thereof (“In addijteffective for Salary earned after December 83082 . . .”) with the
following:

No individual shall qualify as an Eligible Employf® a Plan Year unless the individual's projec@mmpensation for
such Plan Year is no less than the following amount

(a) Effective for Plan Years ending before Marcl2@12, for Salary earned after December 31, 20@8rzzentive
Compensation earned after February 28, 2009, $060,0

(b) Effective for Plan Years starting after DecemBg, 2011, the limit prescribed by section 401(@)(of the Code
for the calendar year that ends during the Plarr.Yea

2. Section 3.2(b) of the Plan is clarified by replacthe term“second last Business L[" with “second to last Business [".
3. Section 6.1(d) of the Plan (Mandatory Lump Sum fiilistions) is clarified as follows

a. The term“Section (" is replaced witt* Article 6”.

b. Inclause (i) thereof, the following parentheticsahdded after the phra“at his or her termination of employm”

(or, with respect to Section 409A Covered &g payable by reason of a Section 409A Disahiéit his or her Payment
Eligibility Date, as defined in subsection (g), ).




c. The phrase “if a Participant terminates ewplent prior to completing at least five (5) yeafservice with the Company
or an Affiliate or for reasons other than a longwteisability (which qualifies as a Section 409AsBlility with respect to
Section 409A Covered Benefits)” is replaced withbject to the disability provisions of Section @&)lénd (g), if a
Participant terminates employment prior to complgtit least five (5) years of service with the Campor an Affiliate’.

4. Section 6.1 of the Plan is clarified by adding & isbsection (g) at the end thereof, to read iantirety as follows

(9) Disability . With respect to Section 409A Covered Benefits,fitovisions of Section 6.1(#)at relate to a “long-
term disability” apply only in the event of a Secti409A Disability. The Payment Eligibility Daterfa Participant who is
“no longer employed” because he “terminates empkmytas a result of a long-term disability,” withire meaning of
clause (i) of Section 6.1(a)s the first anniversary of the Participant’s ecnencement of short-term disability benefits by
reason of a Section 409A Disability, without regerdvhether or when the Participant’s employmerhwhe Company
and Affiliates terminates. In the event of a Setd@9A Disability, subject to subsection (d) (Matog Lump Sum
Distributions), above, the Participant’s Sectio®AGovered Benefit shall be paid in the form elddbg the Participant
under_Section 6.1(kpr, if the Participant has not made an electiodeurSection 6.1(b)in annual installments over
15 years). In accordance with Section 6.1(&a Participant Account is distributed because of a Section 4D&ability,
the Participant is not required to satisfy the fiBgyears of service condition to receive hisrdisition in installments.

5. Section 6.2(d) of the Plan is clarified by replacthe reference therein “subsection (I” with “subsection (¢".
6. Section 6.4 of the Plan is clarified as follo\

a. The reference therein “Section 6.1(¢" is replaced witt" Section 6.1(a) and ((as applicable’.

b. The phras¢many only mak” is replaced witt*may make onl”.

c. Each reference therein “this Section 6.5 is replaced witt“this Section 6.4".




A clarifying parenthetical is added to the lastteane thereof, such that the sentence readséntitety as follows

Notwithstanding the foregoing, if a Participaninténates employment with the Company for any regsonwith respec
to Section 409A Covered Benefits, if the first ammgary of the Participant’s commencement of steort disability
benefits by reason of a Section 409A Disabilitywosg prior to the date on which a payment is sclesbito be made
pursuant to thiSection 6.4, the Participar' s entire Account balance will be paid pursuanhtgrovisions oSection 6.1.

7. Section 6.6(a) of the Plan is clarified by replacthe reference therein “this Section 6.7" with “this Section 6.€".

8. Section 7.3(a)(1) of the Plan is clarified by rejhg the reference therein“ Section 3.2(b” with “ Section 3.2".



Exhibit 12.1

Avnet, Inc.
Computation of Ratios of Earnings to Fixed Charges

Fiscal Year Ended
July 2, July 3, June 27, June 28, June 30,
2011 2010 2009 2008 2007
(in thousands

Earnings:
Income (loss) from continuing

operations before income tax $ 870,96t $ 585,08: $ (1,09496) $ 693,40« $ 572,23(
Add fixed charge: 123,98: 85,56 103,30 111,12! 111,52
Total earnings (loss $ 994,94 $ 670,64 $ (991669 $ 804,52 $ 683,75
Fixed charges
Interest on indebtedne $ 92,45 $ 61,74¢ $ 78,66¢ $ 88,22¢ $ 91,94¢
Amortization of debt expen: 2,62¢ 2,317 3,171 3,17¢ 3,41
Interest component of rent expet 28,90: 21,49¢ 21,46: 19,72¢ 16,16
Total fixed charge $ 123,98. $ 85,56 $ 103,30: $ 111,12¢ $ 111,52

8.C 7.8 * 7.2 6.1

*  Earnings were deficient in covering fixed charge$h.09 billion for the fiscal year ended June 2009.



Foreign and Domestic Subsidiaries

Company Name

Avnet, Inc.

Country

Exhibit 21

Abacus Electronics Holdings L

Abacus Group Limite:

Alpha 3 Manufacturing Lt

Avnet (Asia Pacific Holdings) Limite
Avnet (Australia) Pty. Ltd

Avnet (Holdings) Ltc

Avnet (N2)

Avnet (Shanghai) Limite:

Avnet (Tianjin) Logistics Ltd

Avnet Abacus Limitec

Avnet AG

Avnet Asia Pte Ltc

Avnet ASIC Israel Ltc

Avnet Azure Sdn. Bhc

Avnet B.V.

Avnet Beteiligung-Verwaltungs Gmbt
Avnet Chile S.A.

Avnet Components Brasil Participacdes L1
Avnet Components Israel Limite

Avnet de Mexico, S.A. de C.\

Avnet de Puerto Rico, In

Avnet Delaware Holdings, In

Avnet Delaware LLC

Avnet do Brasil LTDA

Avnet Electronics Marketing (Australia) Pty L
Avnet EM Holdings Japan Kabushiki Kais
Avnet EM Sp. z.0.c

Avnet EMG AG

Avnet EMG Elektronische Bauelemente Gm
Avnet EMG France S./A

Avnet EMG GmbH

Avnet EMG ltaly S.r.l.

Avnet EMG Ltd

Avnet Erste Vermoegensverwaltungs GmbH & Co.

Avnet Europe Comm. V/
Avnet Finance B.V

United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
Hong Kong
Australia
United Kingdom
New Zealanc
China

China

Hong Kong
Switzerlanc
Singapore

Israel

Malaysia
Netherlands
Germany

Chile

Brazil

Israel

Mexico

Puerto Ricc
Delaware
Delaware

Brazil

Australia

Japar

Poland
Switzerlanc
Austria

France
Germany

Italy

United Kingdom
Germany
Belgium
Netherlands




Company Name Country
Avnet France S.A.S France

Avnet Holding B.V. Netherland:
Avnet Holding Europe BVB/ Belgium

Avnet Holding Germany Gmbl Germany

Avnet Holding South Africa (Pty) Limite South Africa
Avnet Holdings (Australia) Pty. Limite Australia

Avnet Holdings UK Limitec United Kingdom
Avnet Holdings, LLC Delaware
Avnet Iberia S.A Spain

Avnet India Private Limite India

Avnet Integrated Resources Reparo de Eletrdnicda. Brazil

Avnet International (Canada) Lt Canade

Avnet International, LLC Delaware
Avnet Italy Srl Italy

Avnet Japan Co., Ltc Japar

Avnet Kopp (Pty) Limitec

Avnet Korea, Inc

Avnet Limited

Avnet Logistics (Shenzhen) Lt

Avnet Logistics B.V.B.A.

Avnet Logistics do Brasil Ltde

Avnet Logistics GmbF

Avnet Logistics Pte. Ltc

Avnet Malaysia Sdn Bh

Avnet Microproducts Mexico, S.A. de C.
Avnet Nortec A/S

Avnet Nortec AB

Avnet Nortec AS

Avnet Nortec Oy

Avnet Pacific Pty Limitec

Avnet Partner Solutions (Malaysia) Sdn. B
Avnet Partner Solutions, S. de R.L. de C
Avnet Philippines Pty Ltd., Inc

Avnet Receivables Corporatic

Avnet S.r.l.

Avnet s.r.c

Avnet Solutions Pte. Ltc

Avnet Solutions Sdn. Bh

Avnet Sp. z.0.0

Avnet Sunrise Limitec

Avnet Technology (Thailand) Lt

Avnet Technology Hong Kong Limite
Avnet Technology Solutions (ASEAN) Pte. L
Avnet Technology Solutions (Australia) Pty L
Avnet Technology Solutions (China) L

South Africa
Korea, Republic o
Ireland

China

Belgium

Brazil
Germany
Singapore
Malaysia
Mexico
Denmark
Sweder
Norway
Finland
Australia
Malaysia
Mexico
Philippines
Delaware

Italy

Czech Republi
Singapore
Malaysia
Poland

Hong Kong
Thailand

Hong Kong
Singapore
Australia
China




Company Name Country
Avnet Technology Solutions (India) Private Limit India
Avnet Technology Solutions (Singapore) Pte. | Singapore
Avnet Technology Solutions (Thailand) L Thailand
Avnet Technology Solutions (Tianjin) L China
Avnet Technology Solutions (Vietnam) Company Lirdi Viet Nam
Avnet Technology Solutions Argentina S. Argentina
Avnet Technology Solutions B.\ Netherland:
Avnet Technology Solutions Brasil S. Brazil
Avnet Technology Solutions Chile, S. Chile
Avnet Technology Solutions Colombia S.A Colombia
Avnet Technology Solutions Ecuador, S Ecuadol
Avnet Technology Solutions Gmk Germany
Avnet Technology Solutions Handelsgesellschaft ish. Austria
Avnet Technology Solutions K Hungary
Avnet Technology Solutions L1 United Kingdom
Avnet Technology Solutions s.r Italy

Avnet Technology Solutions S.R. Romania
Avnet Technology Solutions s.r. Slovakia
Avnet Technology Solutions Sanayi Ve Ticaret Anoi8irketi Turkey
Avnet Technology Solutions SA France
Avnet Technology Solutions Venezuela, C Venezuel:
Avnet Trader S.A Chile
Avnet TS Ireland Limitec Ireland
Avnet Verwaltungs Gmbt Germany
Azzurri Technology S.A.R.L France
Beijing Vanda Suntech Software Engineering Comgdamjted China
Beijing Vanda Yunda IT Services Co., L China

Bell Microproducts Brazil Holdings, LL( Minnesota
Bell Microproducts BV Netherland:
Bell Microproducts BVBA Belgium
Bell Microproducts Europe (Holdings) B Netherlands
Bell Microproducts Gmbt Germany

Bell Microproducts Limitec

Bell Microproducts Mexico Shareholder, LL
Bell Microproducts Spain SLI

BFIIBEXSA International LLC

Changchun Vanda Software Engineering Co.,
Chinatronic Technology Limite

Clarity Technology Limitec

Client Solutions Limitec

CM Satellite Systems, In:

Deltron Electronics Lt

DEM Manufacturing Ltc

Dritte TENVA Property GmbH Nettet:

EBV Beteiligung-Verwaltungs Gmbt

United Kingdom
Florida

Spain

Delaware
China

Hong Kong
United Kingdom
Ireland

New York
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
Germany
Germany




Company Name Country
EBV Elektronik ApS Denmark

EBV Elektronik France SA: France

EBV Elektronik GmbH & Co. KC Germany

EBV Elektronik Kft Hungary

EBV Elektronik Limited Hong Kong

EBV Elektronik M

EBV Elektronik OU

EBV Elektronik S.r.l.

EBV Elektronik S.R.L.

EBV Elektronik s.r.o

EBV Elektronik SAS

EBV Elektronik sp. z o.c

EBV Elektronik Spain S.L

EBV Elektronik spol. s r.c

EBV Elektronik Ticaret Limited Sirke'

EBV Elektronik TOV

EBV Elektronik, Druzba Za Posredovanje D.O
EBV Elektronik, Unipessoal Ld:

EBV Management Gmbl

EBV Vermoegensverwaltungs Gmt
EBV-Elektronik GmbH

Electrolink (PTY) Ltd

Electron House (Overseas) Limit

Enlaces Computacionales, S. de R.L. de (
Erste TENVA Property GmbH Gruber Stre
Flint Distribution Holdings Limitec

Flint Distribution Limited
Grundbesitzverwaltungsgesellschaft Be-Motzener Stral3e mb
Horizon Open Systems (NI) Limite
Horizon Technology Group Limite

Import Holdings LLC

Instituto de Educacion Avanzada, S. de R.L. de
Interactive Technology Limite

itX Group Limited

Kent One Corporatio

L&C Importadora, S. de R.L. de C.
Memec (Asia Pacific) Limite

Memec Europe Limite:

Memec Group Holdings Limite

Memec Group Limitec

Memec Holdings Limitet

Memec Pty Limitec

Mexico Holdings LLC

Net Storage Computers, Lt

Polar Ltd

Russian Federatic
Estonia

Italy

Romania
Slovakia
France

Poland

Spain

Czech Republi
Turkey

Ukraine
Slovenia
Portugal
Germany
Germany
Austria

South Africa
United Kingdom
Mexico
Germany
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
Germany
United Kingdom
Ireland
California
Mexico

Virgin Islands, Britisk
Australia
Delaware
Mexico

Hong Kong
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
Australia
California

Brazil

United Kingdom




Company Name

Country

Pride Well Limited

PT Avnet Datamation Solutior

SEC International Holding Company I, L.L.

SEC International Holding Company, L.L.

Société Civile Immobiliére du 22 rue de Dan
Soluciones Mercantiles, S. de R.L. de C

Source Electronics (HK) Limite

Source Electronics Asia Limite

Telmil Electronics, Inc

Tenva Belgium Comm. V/

Tenva Financial Management B.V.B.

Thomas Kaubisch Gmb

Unidux Inc.

Vanda Computer & Equipment Company Limit
Vanda Computer Service (Hong Kong) Company Lim
Vanda Computer Service (Macau) Company Lim
Vanda Computer System Integration (Shanghai) Cogpanited
Vanda Computer System Integration (Shenzhen) Gad.
Vanda IT Solutions & Systems Management Lim|
Vanda Software Engineering Company Limi
Vandasoft Technology Holdings Limite

WBT Systems Limite

WBT Systems, Inc

Wiseasia Computer Service (Macau) Company Lirr
WiseAsia.com Limitec

YEL Electronics (China) Limite:

YEL Electronics (Shanghai) Limite

YEL Electronics (Shenzhen) L

YEL Electronics Hong Kong Limite

YEL Electronics Pte Lt

YEL Electronics Sdn Bh

YEL Korea (HK) Limited

ZWEITE TENVA Property GmbH Im Technologiepe

Virgin Islands, Britisk
Indonesie

New Hampshire
New Hampshire
France

Mexico

Hong Kong
Hong Kong
Delaware
Belgium
Belgium
Germany
Japar

Hong Kong
Hong Kong
Macao

China

China

Virgin Islands, Britisk
Hong Kong
Virgin Islands, Britisk
Ireland
Delaware
Macao

Hong Kong
Hong Kong
China

China

Hong Kong
Singapore
Malaysia

Hong Kong
Germany



Exhibit 23.1
Consent of Independent Registered Public Accountingirm

The Board of Directors
Avnet, Inc.:

We consent to the incorporation by reference inrtggstration statements No. 333-155971 on Forma®eB Nos. 33-64765, 333-
17271, 333-45735, 333-55806, 333-00129, 333-45383;101039, 333-112057, 333-112062, 333-112063;138®03, and 333-
171291 on Form 8-of Avnet, Inc. of our report dated August 11, 20With respect to the consolidated balance stafeisnet, Inc.
and subsidiaries as of July 2, 2011 and July 3028fd related consolidated statements of opestairareholdergquity, and cas
flows for each of the years in the thrgear period ended July 2, 2011, the related firerstatement schedule, and the effective
of internal control over financial reporting asJfly 2, 2011 which report appears in the July 2,1228nnual report on Form 30-of
Avnet, Inc.

As discussed in note 1 to the consolidated findisteaements, effective June 28, 2009, Avnet, dgdopted FASB ASC 470-20ebt
with Conversion and Other Optio(f®rmerly FSP APB 14-1).

/sl KPMG LLP

Phoenix, Arizona
August 11, 2011



Exhibit 31.1
CERTIFICATION OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER
I, Richard Hamada, certify that:
1. | have reviewed this annual report on Forr-K of Avnet, Inc.;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report doescantain any untrue statement of a material factoit to state a material fact
necessary to make the statements made, in ligheafircumstances under which such statementswade, not
misleading with respect to the period covered ligy tbport;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statémend other financial information included ifstreport, fairly present in
all material respects the financial condition, issaf operations and cash flows of the registesnof, and for, the periods
presented in this repol

4.  The registrant’s other certifying officer@)d | are responsible for establishing and maiirtgidisclosure controls and
procedures (as such term is defined in ExchangdRAits 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal cobotrer financial
reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules-15(f) and 15-15(f)) for the registrant and hav

a. designed such disclosure controls and ptoesdor caused such disclosure controls and puoesdo be
designed under our supervision, to ensure thatriabieformation relating to the registrant, inclog its
consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to ustbgre within those entities, particularly during tberiod in
which this report is being prepare

b. designed such internal control over financial répgy or caused such internal control over finahe@aorting tc
be designed under our supervision, to provide regde assurance regarding the reliability of finahc
reporting and the preparation of financial statetséor external purposes in accordance with gelyeaateptec
accounting principles

c. evaluated the effectiveness of the regisgalisclosure controls and procedures and predentthis report our
conclusions about the effectiveness of the disciosantrols and procedures, as of the end of thegeoverec
by this report based on such evaluation;

d. disclosed in this report any change in #gggstrant’s internal control over financial repogithat occurred
during the registrant’s most recent fiscal quafttee registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the cafan annual
report) that has materially affected, or is reabbnbkely to materially affect, the registrant'sternal control
over financial reporting; an

5.  The registrand’other certifying officer(s) and | have discloskdsed on our most recent evaluation of internatrobover
financial reporting, to the registrant’s auditorglahe audit committee of the registrant’s boardicéctors (or persons
performing equivalent functions

a. all significant deficiencies and materiakkmesses in the design or operation of internatrobaver financial
reporting which are reasonably likely to adversdfgct the registrant’s ability to record, processnmarize
and report financial information; at

b. any fraud, whether or not material, thabimes management or other employees who have disagn role in
the registrar' s internal control over financial reportir

Date: August 12, 2011

/s/ RICHARD HAMADA
Richard Hamade
Chief Executive Officer




Exhibit 31.2
CERTIFICATION OF CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER
I, Raymond Sadowski, certify that:
1. | have reviewed this annual report on Forr-K of Avnet, Inc.;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report doescantain any untrue statement of a material factoit to state a material fact
necessary to make the statements made, in ligheafircumstances under which such statementswade, not
misleading with respect to the period covered ligy tbport;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statémend other financial information included ifstreport, fairly present in
all material respects the financial condition, issaf operations and cash flows of the registesnof, and for, the periods
presented in this repol

4.  The registrant’s other certifying officer@)d | are responsible for establishing and maiirtgidisclosure controls and
procedures (as such term is defined in ExchangdRAits 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal cobotrer financial
reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules-15(f) and 15-15(f)) for the registrant and hav

a. designed such disclosure controls and ptoesdor caused such disclosure controls and puoesdo be
designed under our supervision, to ensure thatriabieformation relating to the registrant, inclog its
consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to ustbgre within those entities, particularly during tberiod in
which this report is being prepare

b. designed such internal control over financial répgy or caused such internal control over finahe@aorting tc
be designed under our supervision, to provide regde assurance regarding the reliability of finahc
reporting and the preparation of financial statetséor external purposes in accordance with gelyeaateptec
accounting principles

c. evaluated the effectiveness of the regisgalisclosure controls and procedures and predentthis report our
conclusions about the effectiveness of the disciosantrols and procedures, as of the end of thegeoverec
by this report based on such evaluation;

d. disclosed in this report any change in #gggstrant’s internal control over financial repogithat occurred
during the registrant’s most recent fiscal quafttee registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the cafan annual
report) that has materially affected, or is reabbnbkely to materially affect, the registrant'sternal control
over financial reporting; an

5.  The registrand’other certifying officer(s) and | have discloskdsed on our most recent evaluation of internatrobover
financial reporting, to the registrant’s auditorglahe audit committee of the registrant’s boardicéctors (or persons
performing equivalent functions

a. all significant deficiencies and materiakkmesses in the design or operation of internatrobaver financial
reporting which are reasonably likely to adversdfgct the registrant’s ability to record, processnmarize
and report financial information; at

b. any fraud, whether or not material, thabimes management or other employees who have disagn role in
the registrar' s internal control over financial reportir

Date: August 12, 2011

/sl RAYMOND SADOWSKI
Raymond Sadowsk
Chief Financial Officer




Exhibit 32.1

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO 18 U.S.C. &cTion 1350
(As ADOPTED PURSUANT TO SECTION 9060F THE SARBANES-OXLEY AcT oF 2002)

In connection with the Annual Report on Form 10eK the year ended July 2, 2011 (the “Report”),ithard Hamada, Chief
Executive Officer of Avnet, Inc., (the “Company”¢teby certify that:

1. The Report fully complies with the requirertseof Section 13(a) or 15(d), as applicable, ef$iecurities Exchange Act of
1934; anc

The information contained in the Reportl§agresents, in all material respects, the finadnmiadition and results of
operations of the Compan

Date: August 12, 2011
/sl RICHARD HAMADA

Richard Hamadze
Chief Executive Officer




Exhibit 32.2

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO 18 U.S.C. &cTion 1350
(As ADOPTED PURSUANT TO SECTION 9060F THE SARBANES-OXLEY AcT oF 2002)

In connection with the Annual Report on Form 10eK the year ended July 2, 2011 (the “Report”),dyRond Sadowski, Chief
Financial Officer of Avnet, Inc., (the “Company”gteby certify that:

1. The Report fully complies with the requirertseof Section 13(a) or 15(d), as applicable, ef$iecurities Exchange Act of
1934; anc

The information contained in the Reportl§agresents, in all material respects, the finadnmiadition and results of
operations of the Compan

Date: August 12, 2011
/sl RAYMOND SADOWSKI
Raymond Sadowsk
Chief Financial Officer




